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KENNETH FERGUSON,

JESS G. SUTLIFFE,

405 lMontgomery Street,
San Francisco, Callfornia.
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, IN AND FOR THE

COUNTY OF INYO.

NATURAL SODA PRODUCTS COMPANY,
a corporation,

Plalnbiffl,
vs.
CITY QF LOS ANGELES, a mun105191
corporation; DEPARTIIE NL [ATER ¢ No. 3817
AND POVWER.OF THE CITY OF LOo

f

ANGELES ; FIRST DOE; ‘"COHD DOE -
THIRD DOE; FOURTH DOE; FIFTH

DCE ; STXTH DOE; SEVENTH DOE: :
EIGHTH DOE; NINTH DOE; and

TENTH DOE, :
Defendants.
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STIPULATED that the depositions of STANIEY

PEDDER, the President of plaintiff corporation, G. A. KEEP, the

Superintendent of plaintiff corporation, and of CHAS. ECKLAND, the

=h

Treasurer of plainti

f corporation, may be taken as witnesses on
behalf of defendants called under Section 2055 of the Code of
Civil Procedure, commencing on lionday, October 2, 1939, at the
hour of ten o'clock A. M., at 514 Financial Center Building, San

Prancisco, California, before MARY D. F. HUDSON, a Notary Public

in and for the City and County of San Francisco, State of Califor-

nia, and continuing from day to day, or as otherwise stipulated
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by the parties hereto, until completed.

AND IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that such depositions, so

taken, may be used in all respects in like manner and with like
3 X

. effect and upon like conditions in the action in the above

| entitled court entitled "¥Watural Soda Products Company, a corpora-

tion, vs. Clty of Los Angeles, a municipal corporation, et al.,

numbered thereil

separately from,

n 3783,

entitled action.

Dated :

October 2

whether the trial of said action be held

wol,

or be consollidated with,

the trial of the above

i\,
3 78)

—
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ttornevs for P aintif

RAY L. CHESEBRO, City Attorney,

5. Bl
Ci ‘u}
Powe

ROBINSOH Chief Assistant
utorney fof dJater and

SANUEL POORMAN, JR., Assistant

City

ROBT.

B. MOORE, J
CityAttor ﬁéif
By'

Attorney,

=

ol Deputyg
v/ b

Robt. B, Moore m Jri,
Deputy City Attorney.

Attorneys for Defendants.
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF INYO.

NATURAL SODA PRODUCTS COMPANY,
a corporation,

Pladntiftits

SVS= No. 3817
CITY OF LOS ANGELES, a municipal
corporation; DEPARTMENT OF WATER
AND POWER OF THE CITY OF LOS
ANGELES; FIRST DOE, SECOND DOE,
THIRD DCE, FOURTH DOE, FIFTH DOE,
SIXTH DOE, SEVENTH DO&, EIGHTH
DOE, NINTH DOE and TENTH DOE,

e e M e M e e e N N e N e e N

Defendants.

BE IT REMEVBERED, that pursuant to Stipulation, hereto
snnexed, and on lMonday, the 2nd day of October, 1939, com-
mencing at the hour orf 10 o'clock A. 1. thereof, at Room 514
Financial Center Building, San Francisco, California, before
me, MARY D, F. HUDSON, a Notary Public in and Tor the City and
County of San Francisco, State of California, personally appeard

STANLEY PEDDER, G. A, KEEP and CHARIES ECKLAND,

who, being by me first duly sworn, were thereupon examined and
interrogated as witnesses in said cause.

Messrs,. KENNETH FERGUSCON and JESS G. SUTLIFF, by KENNETH
FERGUSON, Esquire, appeared as attorneys for the plaintiff;
RAY L. CHESEBRO, City Attorney, S. B. ROBINSON, Chief Assistant

City Attorney for Water end Power, SAMUEL POORMAN, JR., Assis-

HART & HART
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tant City Attorney, and ROBT. E. II00RE, JR., Deputy City
Attorney, by ROBT. B, [MOORE, JR., and REX B. GOCDCELL, JR.,
appeared as attorneys for the defendants; and HON LARL WARREN,
attorney General, by BURDETT J. DANIELS, Deputy Attorney
General, appeared as amicus curiae.

It was stipulated between counsel for the respective par-
ties that the Notary Public, after administering the oath to
the witnesses, need not remain further during the talking of
these depositions.

It was further stipulated that the said depositions should

be reported in shorthand by HAROLD H. HART, a competent official

-

shorthand reporter and a disinterested person, and thereafter
transcribed by him into longhand typewriting, to be read to,
or by, the said witnesses, who, after making such corrections
therein as may be necessary, will subscribe the same.

It was further stipulatec that all objections to questions
propounded to the said witnesses shall be reserved by each of
the parties, save and except any objectlions as to the form of
the questions propounded,

It was further stipulated that if the witnesses should be
instructed not to answer cuestions propounded by counsel, in
the absence of the Notary Public, it shall be deemed that the
Notary Public has so instructed the witnesses to answer, but
that they still refuse to answer.

o =

MR. MOORLE: Let the record show that both of these gentle-

HART & HART
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men's depositions are to be taken under Section 2055 of the Code
of Civil Procedure, ami that they will be taken in shorthand
and transcribed, and you will have thé opportunity to read the
questions and to correct them, end then to swear to them before
any Notary; and that they may be used in the trial of both
actions, if they are consolidated - in the trial of both the
injunction and the damage suits.

MR, FERGUSON: That is, the first damage suit.

MR, MOORE: The first damage suit.

MR. FERGUSCN: Mfay we elso stipulate that the Notary does
not need to remain present, and she may be excused unless called

MR. LMOORE: Yes.,

MR. FERGUSON: May the record also show the appearance of
amicus curiee, the Attorney General of the State of Californies,

by Mr. Burdett Daniels, of the Attorney General's office.

STANLEY PEDDER,

called as a witness under Section 2055 of the Code of Civil
Procedure of the State of California, being first duly sworn
by the Notary Public to tell the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

EXAVMINATION BY MR. MOORE

M. MOORE: Q. Mr. Pedder, I would like to ask you a few
preliminary questions with respect to your experience prior to

April, of 1932; the reason being to find if you were connected

HART & HART
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in any way with the soda ash industry prior to that time.

A, I was not.

L. You have been a practicing attorney in California?

A. Yes.

Q. Fcr how long? A. 26 years.

Q. At any time prior to April, 1932, did you act as attorney
for any producer of soda ash or kindred products?

a, No.

. Prior to April, of 1932, were you acquainted with the
Owens Valley, and more particularly Cwens Lake?

A, No.

Q. You had never visited that territory? A, No.

Q. You are president of the Natural Soda Ash Products
Company, a Delaware corporation?

A. Yes,

Q. How long have you been president?

A. The minute book, please,

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: Februery 13th, 1933.

MR. MOORE: Q. Can you state the date of the incorporation
of the present company?

MR, FERGUSON: By "the present company," you mean the
plaintiff in this case?

MR. MOORE: The plaintiff in this action.

A, I know it was early in 1932. Do you want the exact

date?

HART & HART
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Q. If you can get it, yes.
Assrsthinks Tlcans 29th day of February, 1932.
Q. &nd when did it qualify to do business in California;j
that is, the certificate filed with the Commissioner of CorpoTa-
tions? A. Well, T haven't the exact dete. It was
early in -- shortly after it was incorporated in 1932, I will
get that for you, Offhand, I don't know.

4. Would it be sometime in April, 1932, as far as you know?

A. I think it was in March. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

Q. At the same time, could you get the file number of the
Corporation Commissioner's offlice, please?

A. Yes., Will you make a note of that?

Q. Did the plaeintiff do any business elsewhere than in the
Owens Valley prior to 19327 A. No.

Q. And it was organized to engege in the production and
sale of soda ash and kindred products?

AN esis

Q. Generally or in the Owens Valley? A. Generally.

9. However, they have confined their operations to in and

about Owens Lake, have they not?
A, Correct,.
Q. Is the pleaintiff a subsidiary of any other company?
A. Will you please define the word "subsidiary"?
Q. Say in April, of 1932, was your stock, either your pre-

ferred or your coumon, held by any other company as & holding

HART & HART
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company? A. No.

Q. Or held individuelly? Jas the stock held by individual
stockholders®? A, No.

Q. Will you state who did hold the stock; that is, in
April, 1932% A, I think the stock records will tell the

story better.

MR. FPERGUSON: In other words, what you want to know is
was it held by anyone -- in any major amount by aany outside
company -- any one single corporation?

£ WITNESS: Non el =aid MNowE
MR, MOORE: Off the récorda
(Unreported discussion.)
MR, MOORE: Q. Was it held by any corporation?
A, It was held by corporations,
Q. Will you state who held it?

A, It was owned at that time by Mitchum Tully Participations

Inc,
Q. Is that a Delaware corporation? #£. Yes,
Q. Both the preferred and the common? A. One moment.,
Q. I beg your pardon. A. And Mitchum Tully Parti-

cipations, Inc. No. 2, and the Leslie California Salt Company.
Q. That was both the preferred and the common?
A, Yés.
Q. The preferred at that time was no par value?
A, Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

?

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUFKERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCKRY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAS 0118



o 3

10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

THE WITNESS: No, all without par value. You are correctg

MR, MOORE: &. Has there been any amendment of the articles
of incorporation of the plaintiff since 19329

ALY esr

Q. Will you state the date or dates of such amendments,
please? A. In the year 1937, the articles of incorpora-
tion were amended.

Q. Do you have the exact date on which the certificate
was filed? A. July 12th, 1937.

Q. Do you have the filing number for that in the Corpora-
tion Commissionerts office?

A, No. We will get that for you.

Q. Can you obtain that for me? A, I think so.

A

v

. Was there any change in the stock structure between
1932 and the amendments of the articles in 19377

A, Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

Q. May I ask a guestion which might assist in this: Were
the amendments of your articles of incorporation filed in con-
nection with the proceedings initiated by your corporation
under 77 (b) of the Bankruptcy Act?

A, Correct, yes.

9. I believe the record would show, would it not, that --

A. Pardon me?

¢. The record would show - : . 4,000 shares of preferred of

a par value of $50.00, is that correct? A. Yes,

HART & HART
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&. and 4,000 shares of common of no par value?

A. Yes.

%. Was there any change between 1932 and the amendment of
the articles in 1937 as to the stock holdings®? In other words,
did Mitchum Tully Participations, Inc., and Mitchum Tully
Participations, Inc., No. 2, end Leslie California Salt Company
hold the stock of the corporation in the same amounts?

A, No, there were changes.

Q. There were changes? A, Oh, yes.

@, Can you state what those changes were?
A, No, not without reference to the books.
Q. Do you have your stock book here?

A, No, they are in Delaware.

2. You have no local records of the --

A, Oh, I think we have.

Q. (Continuing) -- of the stock transfers?

A. Yes, I think we have a local record.

MR. FERGUSON : I want to inquire at this time what the
competency of this line of inquiry is?

MR. IMOORE: I will be very glad to state it to you, lr.
Ferguson. We believe that the Natural Soda Products Company
was more or less formed with the idea of experimenting in and
about Owens Lake in the soda ash industry; that from time to
time various corporations either were interested or became
interested in its operations; assisted it financially or by

giving it advice of various types; and particularly because of

HART & HART
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the financial assistance, acquired interests in the corpora-
tion in exchange for financing; and that rather than any profits
having been made by the compeny certainly in the latter years
of its operations, it was sustained from time to time by this
new financing brought in; snd we feel that we should know who
did the financing, and for what purposes the moneysso obtained
were used.

MR. FERGUSON: Well, then, I am going to object to any
testimony along this line, because it is totally irresponsive
to any issues in the case. Now, I cannot conceive what bearing
it would have upon the issues that there was some identity of
interest between this corporation and the prior corporations
and the prior owner of the land, as to who owns this corpora-
tion; and that it is entirely outside of the issues in the
case; and I am going to object to any testimony along that line;
and instruct the witness not to answer. If that is the sole
purpose, Iir. loore, I cannot conceive that it has got anything
to do with the issues in the case, frankly.

MR. LIOORE: Well, if I can explain off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: Just for the purpose of the record, we offer
to prove by this witness the stock holdings of the corporation
for the purpose of showing the sources of financing, repairs,
betterments and additions to plant, which, in our opinion,
affect the question of whether profits were in fact earned dqur-

ing the period set forth in the complaint.

HART & HART
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MR, FERGUSON: That being the purpose of this line of
questioning, I object to that line of guestioning; and instruct
the witness not to answer.

MR, LIOORE: Q. With respect to the Natural Soda Products
Company, a California corporation, you are acquainted with the
fact that there existed on Uwens Lake prior to 1932 a corpora-
tion known as the Natural Soda Products Company, a California
corporation®

4. I understood that, yes.

Q. 4and you are familiar with the fact that it was at about
that time in Federal receivership?

A ES,

Q. Did the plaintiff corporation in and gbout the early
pert of the year 1932 acquaire any of the assets of the Natural
Soda Products Company, a California corporation?

A, Yes, I beliesve it acquired all of them,

Q. Are you able to state of what those assets consisted?

A, In a general way, yes.

Q. Will you state in a general way, please?

A. Consisted of real estate; improvements thereon; in-
ventories of various kinds; accounts receivable; and I believe
some stock of other corporations. In other words, the usual
line of assets that a corporation has.

G. Of what did the real estate consist; that is, generally?

A, Well, it consisted of certain parcels of land, two

hundred and something acres owned in fee; other parcels of land,

HART & HART
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2500 acres, being purchased under contract from the State of
California.

Q. Was that in the residual part of the lake - Cwens Lake?
A. The 2500 acres --
Q. The 2500 acres you refer to?

A, The residual --. No, that is the leke land locations
end certain leases.

Q. When you say this was purchased under contract, camn you
state - or do you have a copy of the contract available?

A. We have several certificates of purchase, I think they
are called, rather than contracts.

Q. That was from the State of California?

A ST,

. Did it give you title in fee? A. Pardon?

0. Did it give you title in fee of the 2500 acres?

A. Tt .agrees so to do upon payment of the price, yes.

,. Have you completed those contracts?

A, Ve have kept them in good shape.

]

(,. Requires an annual payment? A, An annual
payment of interest.

Q. Did you say "of interest"? e EES

Q. What about the principal eamount? Is there any payment
due on that? A. It could be paid off at any tTime.

{. Have you purchased eny land from anyone other than from
the old Natural Soda Products Company or from the State?

A. Yes, we have purchased from the Great lWiestern Hlectro

HART & HART
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Chemical Company the land which comprises a part of the town

of Keeler.

12

6,. Did the property contain improvements, the property that

you purchased from the Great Western?
A Very litbtdé, if ‘any.

G. The property that you are purchasing by contract from
the State, does that contain deposits of chemicals?

A, No. Will you amend your guestion and put in the word
"naturael deposits of chemicals"?

Q. Natural deposits? #A. No.

Q. Then you have had certain leases of residual lands and
of rights-of-way, have you not?

A. That is right.

Q. Do you have records showing what those leases were in
1932 - the numbers? A, Oh, yes; I will get them
for you. 1 don't know offhand. 4All of those original leases
have been modified with new leases as time went on.

Q. Have any of these leases been entirely abandoned?

A. Technically, yes. You have to abandon to get a new one.

. Well, I will ask you this way: The leases presently

held by the Natural Soda Products Company, the plaintiff herein,

cover substantially the same properties as the original leases®

A. Yes, plus additional areas.

Q. Can you state when these additional areas were acquired

under lease? A. Yes. In 1933 and in 1935,

-~

Q. Would new rights-of-way be included in that?

HART & HART
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Q. The new rights-of-way were acquired in '3% and '357

A, Yes,

Q. Were any of your rights-of-way entirely abandoned or are

A, Practically speaking, no, though they may have been
slightly modified.

Q. What improvements did you acquire from the old Natural
Soda Products Company: A plant?

4. A very substantial plant, with a lot of buildings of all
kinds, and a camp site with a great memny buildings.

Q. Any vats or storage facilities?

O

A, Vats and storage facilities on lake land loceations
primarily.
Q. Did you take over any contracts of the old company with

]

respect to lake land contracts - contracts with the State of

California®? A. Yes.

0. (Continuing) -- in that 2500 acres? A, Yes.

n. (Continuing) -- that were previously under contract to
the old company? A. Yes.

(. These improvements will include power lines?

A, Yes.
Q. Roadways? A, Yes,
Q. And pipe lines? A, Pipe lines.

Q. Any wells? Ay e st
Q. Was the plant of the old Natural Soda Products Company

in operation at the time of your acquisition? A. Yes,

HART & HART
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Q. You mentioned certain inventories: of what did they
consist, generally? hA. Soda ash; bicarbonate of
— 7 &”37_':
soda primarily; e = AP =
o

Q. Did they include both dense and light ash?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you have any by-products that were --

A, Oh, there may have been some by-products.

Q. Would your records show how much of these inventories
you acquired? A. Yes.

¢ . Your accounting records? A. Yes, the books of account
would show. There was elso trona in vats.

Q. Did you acquire any brine in the liquid form?

A, No.

Q. The books of account would also show what treatment you
made of this as to whether you capitalized it; and if so, how
much? A Ohiiyes S Vesy

Q. The 200 acres that you mentioned are the 200 acres
referred to in paragraph VII of the second amended complaint,
ere they not? I have a copy. Will it be satisTactory to you
to let him see it?

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: Yes, that is right.

MR, MOORI: Q. In that connection, you --

MR. FERGUSON: I have it here. Possibly it is better to
let him look at it.

(Document shown to the witness.)

HART & HART
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THE WITNESS: A. 0Oh, yes. The answer is yes.

MR. MOORE: Q. Yes. In that connection, you certified
the second amended complaint, did you not?

A. I think I did. Let me see.

Q. I believe it shows -- A. Yes, yes, I verified it.

@ . What records do you have which would show the number and
extent of the originel leases, and the number and extent of the
present leases of the company?

A, Well, we could compare the leases themselves.

Q. But you actually have the leases; and could produce thems?

AnsTothink #s0, yeos., I don't think that the old lease --

I don't think we could have let that go. If we did, then T
wouldn't have it. I do not think that is the case.

Q. What records do you have that show the lengths of the
roadways and the materials out of which they are made, and the
length of the power lines and pipe lines? Do you have any
records that would show that, aside from the accounting records
showing the wvalue?

A, You mean the total?

Q. Yes., A, Oh, I think we have a property ledger.
Of course, that really is part of the accounting.

¢. And in this property ledger would show any replacements
or changes in that from time to time?

A, Oh, yes, yes.

0. And these books of account show the various considera-

v

tions that you paid in to the receiver for these properties?
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The books of account?

Q. Yes. A. Oh, yes, yes.

0. You wouldn't be able to state of your own knowledge
what they were?

THE WITNESS: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOOR®: & . Your books would also show the accounts
receivable, and your stock ledger would show the stock of
other corporations? A, No, the stock ledger
wouldn't.

@ . What book do you have that would show that?

A. The general ledger.

The general ledger? e VEE -
Q. Did you acquire from the old company any contracts with
other corporations or persons for the supplying to them of soda

ash and other kindred products?

A. As a matter of ract, we did not deal with the old cor-
poration at all. We only dealt with the receiver.

Q. I was going to inquire into that.

A. The business was done with the receiver; and the under
standing, no doubt, expressed in the various documents or
contracts he made; and the negotiations were conducted in the
ordinary course of business. Now, I doubt very much whether
we have a record of that. There were no long term contracts
or anything of that kind, as far as I remember,

Q. Do you know whether a detailed outline or agreement of

Y]
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the sale by the receiver to the plaintiff corporation is in
the Federal records? A. I don't know,

Q. Did you acguire any chemical reports, hydrographic
reports and reports of the output from the old company, showing
the rainfall in and around the lake, lake levels from time to
time; records of the analyses of brine and material of that
type?

A. No doubt there were some, I have never seen them.

2. Who in your organization would know that?

A, Ve have nobody in our organization who would know that.

Q% Youlhave no consulting chemist?

A. Yes; but they weren't there at that time.

Q. Well, who would be in possession of any such records 1if
they still existed, if you have kept them - any records you
might have acquired?

A. They would be in the office at Keeler. We call it
Keeler. It is at the plant. And if they existed, I presume
they may have been filed; and Mr. Keep would know of them.

Q. You personally don't know of them?

A, No.

‘ 2. Do you know of any patents obtained by you at that time
in respect to chemical processes for the production of soda
ash and other products?

A, No.

% . Any such informetion of that type would &lso be in ir,

Keep's possession? A, Yes; but I might also say
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there were no patents.

Q. There were records of the processes being used by the
0ld company, were there not?

A. Records?

Q. Yes, showing the processes used and their application tTo
the production. A, The ordinary production
records, yes; L presume there were,

Q. And those would be in the possession of Iir. Keep?

a0 Yes.

Q. Was any chemist or superintendent or other person in
charge of the chemical operations of the old compeny employed
by the new company? A, For a while, yes.

Q. What was his name? A. Schilling was the super-
intendent at the time the cowmpany took over the property; and
he remained in that position until January, 1934.

Q. And did Mr. Keep take over from that point?

AaYiesy,

Q. As superintendent. And Mr. Keep has been superintendent

A, Ever since.

Q. (Continuing) -- to date? A, Yes.

Q. Immediately prior to the commencement by the plaintiff
corporation of operations on Owens Lake, can you state what
investigations were made by the company or its representatives
as to lake conditions, brine conditions, et cetera? state

whether any investigations were made, first.

A, I don't know what investigations were made. You see, T
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did not become president of this company until a year, almost,

after it took over from_g%g:;}gégzessor company . ,,//”‘ ’?ggﬁi

R+ You took over as of what date? A ST

Q. Yes. A, I gave it to you earlier. February
15th, I think it was, 1933.

MR. GOODCELL: February 13th.

MR. MOORE: Yes, that ‘is right. « ‘That is’ correct.

Q. Who was president at that time®?

A, Mr., Jasper W. Tully.

Q. Are there any officers at the present time in the plain-
tiff corporation who held their position from the inception in
April, 1932°% AL Nodd thelirecord,

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: I was elected as secretery on the 1léth dayffﬁs
of March, 1932; end I am the only officer who }S—-S-g}-'f‘-;_————:?z://ﬁ‘
y¥e= -~ then an officer who still remains an officer. //Eéi'

MR, MOORE: Q. Do you know of any records in the possession

of the corporation, which would reveal investigations, if they
were made, or reports of any sort?

A, No, no, I don't. The only record that I have is one
from the receiver made a long time afterwards.

Q. Made a long time subsequent to April, 1932°%

4, Yes; and does not cover any of those points which you
have mentioned, anyway.

Q. Do you know who entered into the negotiations for the

purchase of the old company's assets?
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HY oS, Kinzie Miller.

(. What relationship did he have to the plaintiff corpoTra-
Glion ‘in . April, of 1938272

A., I don't think he had any; but I will check that. He
had none. le was neither a director nor an officer.

Q. Did he later become an officer?

A, He later beceame both & director and an officer.

Q. Will you give me the date of that, please?
J T N il o
2. You can supply that later. A, No, I can
give it to you now. He was elected later in the same meeting.
off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: He was elected later on that same day -- what
was that date? March leth, was 1t? Yes, apparently that
st it

MR. LMOORE: Q. 0f what year? 19327

A, Yes., He was elected on the 16th of lfarch, 193z,
Q. To what office? s, Director.

But not an officer? A, Not ean officer, no.
Q. Do you know if he later beceme an officer?

A. Later he beceame vice-president.

Is he now an officer and director?

A, He is not. He is not either.

Q. This meeting on lfarch léth, 1932, was the first organiza+

tion meeting, was it not? &+, Yes, that is correct,

HART 8& HART
OFFICIAL GUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAs 0118



@® 2

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

€. Would your record show whether at that meeting any

report was read as to both the condition of the assets and the

general conditions of the industry?

A. Yes, it would if it were done. It shows no such report.

. Do you know in what capacity Mr. Kinzie Liiller nego-

tiated the transfer of the assets?

the

any

A. NO.
Q. Do you know by whom he was employed?
A, litchum Tully & Company.

These negotiations were prior to the organization of

e

plaintiff corporation? AL B SSyeiSEERy e ST,
5. You wouldn't know whether Ifitchum Tully & Company had
such report as I previously mentioned?

£, NO °

). Subsequent to March 16th, 1932, did you or any officer

a3

of the plaintiff corporation make &an independent investigation

of the soda ash industry, the conditions around the lake, and

the

and

general conditions in the vicinity with respect to rainfall

4. I did not until considerably later.

Then did you make your investigation?

L. After the commencement of these suilts.

Q. Do you know if anyone else made one prior to that time?
A, I don't know.

2, lould you say that they did not?

A. I told you I don't know.
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Who in your organization would know if such a report
was made®? A. T don't know.

Q. Was such an investigation made by any other corporetion
interested in the plaintiff corporation?

A, Not to my knowledge.

%. What was the purpose of the plaintiff corporetion in
acquiring the properties of the old Natural Soda Products
Company in 19327 A. To enter into the soda
ash business, and to have what they believed would be a profit-
able operation.

Q. and you immediately commenced operations toward that end?

A, That dis right,

Q. In going into such a business, it is customary, is it
not, to make an appraisal of the general situation to the end
of determining whether you had a reasonable chance of a profit?

A. It would seem so.

Q. There was such an appraisal made?

4, I told you that I don't know.
Q. I believe you have also stated that you don't know anyons
who does know. A, I couldn't state that.

Q. Well, do you know anyone that knows?

4, I presume that the people who were instrumental in the
purchase of this corporation made normal investigations; but I
was not part or parcel of the aggregation of individuals that

made the investigation.

Q. Do you refer to Mitchum Tully & Company?
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A. Naturelly. 3

¢ . And the other corporations you mentioned?

A, Naturally.

&. Subsequent to april, of 1932, will you state what addi-
tions of betterments were made to the plant of the plaintiff
corporation, generally?

A, Generally? That is rather hard.

0. May I state this: That we are interested primarily in
any major changes that you might have made there with respect
to the processes or in the expansion of your operations.

A, Yes.

Q. If you can give us the dates and approximately what was
done. A. In 1933 we extended the pipe line, and
the necessary works that go along with a pipe line and electric
line, and so forth, further out into the lake in order to tTap
more brine.

&. Pardon me, In that connection, did you install addi-
tional wells? A, Yes.

Q. And what about facilities for settling the brine; were
they increased at that time?

A, No, not at that time. In 1935 -- coff the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS : We will put it that way: We made further ,.7
extensions of the pipe lines out into the deepgg% portion of the

lake; and, of course, made additional roads, electric lines,

new wells, and so on and so forth. In 1935, we built the first

-U\js-%‘
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unit more as a pilot plant, to make ash, - soda ash under our
new process. In 1936 and 1937 primarily - principally in
1937 - we practically completed that plant on a commercial
production basis.

Q. You first called it a pilot plant. You mean that you
continued development of that particular plant to a cavacity --

n, Yes.

%. (Continuing) -- that is, on a commercial basis?

A, llade it on a commercial basis. Of coursesimst 936/ or
1957 we replaced considerable of the roads and other things
which were destroyed by the later and Power Department.

Y. Yes, we are going to ask you about those just a little
later. L was getting to the general additions and betterments.

A. That states 1t in a general way. I can amplify that to
the 'nth degree, but it would mean very little more outside of
the accounting --

MR. FERGUSON: Cne moment. I think, so that there may be
no misunderstending, Mr. Moore, if you want to develop this
logically, you understand the plant that was developed to the
present plant was the new pilot plant that he referred to.

MR. MOORE: Yes, I understood that.

IR. FERGUSON: It wasn't the old plant that was changed ove

MR, MOORE: Yes',

IMR. FERGUSON: All right.

MR. MOORE: I understood that he first had a pilot plant

for testing the new process, and then when they perfected that
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plant, they put it on a commercial basis.

THE WITNESS: Thatids fa chty

MR. FERGUSON: Yes.

MR. IMOORE: And generally, those were the only additions
and betterments?

A. Well, we added - in 1936, we built lerge new vats to teke
care of the dekahydrates.

L. Where were they located?

A. Just north of the plant on our -- on the upland, so to
speak .

. Was theat part of the 2500 acres or part of the 200 acres?

A, I think wholly part of the 200 acres. Is that correct,
Mr, Keep?

MR, KELP: No, it is not on the 2500 acres.

THE WITNESS: Wholly on the 200 acres.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: Y. You would not be able to give the exact
amounts expended and the breakdown of the items?

A, Oh, no, That is up to the accounting department.

Q. I see. That i1s entirely accounting. Can you state how
the amount of $500,000.00 referred to in paragraph VII of your
second amended complaint is to be allocated?

MR, FERGUSCN; Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: Page 11, I believe, towards the top of the pagel

Part of it is apparently acquisition, and part of it is subse-
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quent improvements. Would you be able to give that breakdown?

A. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

A, I can give it to you in a rough, general way.

Q. Could you do that, and then perhaps we will get specific
A, Subject to correction. The books of account will show
that.

Q... Yesj. surely, A, In short, the property
cost in the general neighborhood of between $350,000.00 and
$400,000.00, Since then there has been expended in improvements
I think I had better let the accounting record speek for itself.

Q. I see, A, Because I cannot quickly differentiate
replacements from new costs. The figure of $500,000,00 is
extremely conservative. It 1is upwards of $500,000.00, with a
big upwards.

&+ Does the initial cost of $350,000.00 to $400,000.00
represent an outlay of cash or --

A, No, not wholly. About $125,000.00 worth of cash, and
the issuance of $225,000.00 of bonds; and then there was the
assumption of certain current liabilities.

Q. These bonds were purchased by whom? Were they issued
to the company supplying the financing?

A, Oh, no, no. They were issued to prior creditors of the
old company; bondholders, I believe, as far as I remember,

Q. And then in the improvements of '33 to 'S5 and '36, and

'36 to '37, you expended further sums, which would run the total
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to an amount in excess of $500,000.00°%
A, Considerably in excess.
<. And which your records will show? A, Will show.
Q. Can you state generally how the money was obtained to
make these improvements?

A, Yes. $209,000.00 was acquired by assessment upon the

stockholders.
Q. As of what date? A, Approximately lay, 1934.
Q. Yes, A. That, however, was not wholly put into

property at that time; but all by degrees went into the property
and $297,000.00 was obtained by a mortgage upon the property,
as part and parcel of the reorganization plan; all cash and
no commissions.

Q. Do you know if the Federal records in 77 (b) would con-
tain a copy of the mortgage and the information in respect to it

MR. FERGUSON: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. LIOORE: Q. What was the purpose of the assessment in
1934°

MR. FERGUSON: Object to that. I do not think that is
material.,

MR, GOODCELL: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. "ERGUSON: I will withdraw my objection.

A. What was the question?

(Question read by reporter,)

~

(2]
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A. Was the objection withdrawn?
MR, FERGUSON: The objection was withdraswn.
A. It was to put the compeny into a position where it could
improve its methods of manufacture so as to meet a new condi-
tion in the soda ash industry which had resulted in a sub-
stential reduction of the price of the product,

MR. IIOORE: Q. You are referring to an improvement of the
product itself?

A. Well, an improvement of the process and an improvement
of the product, of course, go hand in hand. There was no
apparent immediate need for the improvement of the product,

inasmuch as we were able to sell all that we made; but it was

ik,

desirable, of course, in developing a new process, to develop-

\

one which would produce tgz-produot with a better standard at
a lesser cost; and it was obvious in 1934 that that was the
course of the industry.

Q. Will you state what those circumstances were in the
industry?

A. Yes. It was a new soda ash plant in course of construc-
tion. I think it went into operation toward the end of 134,
but I can't be sure,

Q. Is that on the lake or elsewhere?

A, That was on Searles Lake.i

.. You have mentioned the $209,000.00 and the $297,000,00.
Were there any others?

A. No other mortgeges or assessments, no.

‘J’\\:‘

LR
s \}\"
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Q. Would this $297,000.00 include the money borrowed abt
that time from the ifichigan Alkali Company or from the Ford
Collieries Company?

A. $297,000.00%

Q. Yes. A. That is what it is, yes. That is tie same
thing.

Q. Some of the money obtained from the stockholders, of
that $209,000.00, was used for the purchase of the Imeryville
Chemical Company? A, Yes, and subsequently the
Emeryville Chemical Company was sold, and that money used in
the plant,

Q. At the same time that you built your pilot plant, I be-
lieve you extended your pipe lines into more favorable brine
areas, isn't that correct?

A, It mightnot have been exactly at that time; but at or
around that time, yes.

Q. What reasons lay back of the building of a new plant and
developing the new process in 1935 and 19367

A, To develop it; make it possible to produce a better
product at a lesser price.

& . The seme reason that prompted your activities in '34°9

Ay Yes, surely.

Q. Were there any new competitors in the field?

A. No,

Q. Has there been any competition during that period from

the Dupont Company? A. Dupont?
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Q. Dupont or Solvay Corporation? 4. NO.
-
4. They did not engage in any soda ash? — 69//
4’7-/?‘
o T on A fasde Covel T
A. Not to any extent, Just a little. - e

~
)

L. Could you tell us as of a period around the first of the
year 1937, what companies were producing soda ash in the
United States? A, In the United States?

Q. Would they be a large number?

A. Oh, a very large number; but I may be so bold as to say
that would have very little relaetion to the Pacific Coast.

Q. Am I to understand that the Pacific Coast supply is
almost entirely produced by soda ash that comes from around
the Pacific Coast area?

A. Primarily. There are certain grades which are used in
very small quantities out here, which it would not be economical
to produce out here; perhaps impossible; I don't know; and
they are imported from the East; but generally speaking, the
Pacific Coast requirements are taken care of by the Pacific
Coast plants.

Qs Which are located where?

4, All in California, The American Potasﬂ%Chemical Com-
pany on Searles Lake; the West End Chemical Company on Searles
Leke; the Pacific Alkali Company on Cwens Lake; and the Watural
so0da Products Compeany on Owens Lake.

Q. So there would be only two on Owens Lake?

A

A. Yes.

Q. as of that date? A, Yes,
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@ . Is that condition of there being two operators on Owens
Lake true in 1938 also? A, Yes,

€. The Pacific Alkali and the Natural Soda Products Company?

A. Yes,

Q. Can you state what the comparative production activities
of the plant of the Pacific Alkeli Compeny and the Natural Soda
Products Company are?

4., Approximately?

Qs esy 4. I would say that the Pacific Alkali

o )

approxi-
mately 10,000 tons a year.

%. Can you give that in terms of per day; tons per day?

A. Yes. That would be -- well, roughly call it 30 tons a
day; and ours 100 tons a day.

Q. Was the market for your product entirely within the
State of California?

A. Oh, no, not entirely. Primarily.

. What other markets did you have available?

A. Well, there is an appreciable export market, and some
market in the northwest Pacific Coast States; some of it went
into Utah and Nevada; and as far east as Denver. I think
Denver is the dividing freight point.

& VWhat were your types of --

A, And Arizona, yes. Arizona end New llexico.

%. Soda ash is used for the manufacture of glass and other
thingsh, s ats not? AL NEeS,

Q. what other types of markets did you have besides the
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glass menufacturing market? A, Soaps.

Q. (Continuing) -- for your products?

A, Soaps; sugar.

Q. For the refining of sugar? K v e sy LGl
used in sugar. The steel companies use it appreciably.

Quite a little use by oil companies. Quite a little use by
water companies. That is about the whole thing.

Q. Would you be able to give us a physical description
of your roadways, pipe lines, heating plants, and so forth,
immediately prior to February of 1937; materials of roadways
and of what construction?

A, No, I think Mr. Keep would be able to do that better
than I. He supervised 1t, and I would be very much on a limb.
. The same would apply to the plant?

A, Yes,

~and to the various improvements that you referred to?

A, Oh, yes, that is right.

Q. Have you spent much time since you became associated
with the plaintiff corporation in and around Owens Lake?

H.NGh Yo, quite aTiliittier

Wi And prior to '377 A, Oh LSS

3. ¥With respect to any so-called flooding of the lake
prior to 1937, did you have occasion to observe any at any
time between '32 and '377%

A, I think '35 was the Tirst time that they -- that we hag

occasion to protest the flooding of the lake.

HART & HART
OFFICIAL EUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHARCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOugLAB O118




a » G N

o =N o

10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

395

.. Well, I mean to observe it. You may not have protested
earlier; but did you observe any unusual -- what you cons idered
unusual additions to the lake?

A, No.

Q. (Continuing) -- prior to 19357

A. No, I think '35 was the first time.

L. DO you remember approximately what month in '35%2

A. My impression is that it was March or April; but that
is subject to correction from the record.

(Mr. Ferguson hends document to the witness.)

MR. FERGUSCN: You may refresh your recollection.

MR, MOORE: Pardon me. May I ask off the rTecord -—-

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WIINESS: Xes, 4t ils Aprpdldi s 193558

MR, MOORE: Q. And at that time did you communicate with
the Department of Water and Power relative to that?

A. That is my recollection, Yyes.

Q. Do you know how many times?

A, Oh, I think only once in regard to 1935. It only lasted
for a very short time; and it didn't cause any particular
disturbance to us.

¢. Do you have any records that would show any rise in the
leke et Keeler or in or about your plant at that time, if it
occurred? A. I haven't, no.

. Well, I mean, has the corporetionf?

AN [ dion N EElcn oW,
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«we+ Does the corporation have such records?

A, I don't know. You will have to ask lir. Keep.

Qe Yes. A, Tt only lasted, as I say, just a short
time, and had no appreciable effect, as far as I remember.

We protested it, because we wondered what in t== thunder was
happening.

Q. Now, the next time --

A. The next time was in 1936.

& What month? A. Starting in February.
February to lay.

Q. And what communicetions at that time did you have with
the Department? A. My recollection again is
that there 1s both correspondence and conversation.

G. With whom did you have your conversations?

A, Well, T couldn't say for sure whether it was only lNr.
Phillips that year, or whether it was Mr, Phillipsand ir,

Ven Norman; but I think it was both.

&. You are sure of Mr. Phillips. That is your recollec-
tion that it was with Mr, Phillips, and that it was also with
Mr. Van Norman? A, Yes. 4And our Los Angeles
man had numerous -- made numerous calls also; reporting to me
that he had made numerous calls.,

Q. Who is he? | A, Frank dJones.

Q. What capacity did he have at that time?

A. Well, he has no official cepacity. He is, I might say,

a general utility man in Los Angeles. He is our purchasing
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agent and our salesman and our liaison officer, you may call
him, or factotum.
@. You maintained at that time a Los Angeles office?
A. Yes, and still do.
€. Now, again in 1937°%
A. The same old thing went on.
2. And that is correct of 1933 also?
A, Oh, no. In 1938 we stopped protesting. e started a suil
Q. But you still noticed a condition of water --
A, Oh, yes. I misunderstood your question,

Q. And my question was goling to the observation of flooding.

A Yess
& . So-called flooding. A, Yes.
0. And any protest that you made. LS YieSS

Q. And Mr. Keep would have the records, if any,'snowing the
various rises in lake levels, and things of that type?
A.s Tthrink “so; - yes.

~

G,. There are one or two general gquestions I would like to
ask you, Mr. Pedder, with respect to the correspondence; but
before I do that, I would like to ask you something off the
record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: lIr, Pedder, I will show you a photostatic copy
of a letter dated December 27th, 1937 -- I beg your pardon,
that is not the letter., It is December 17th, 1935.

(Document in question handed to lMr. Ferguson and to the

cr
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witness.)

MR. MOORE; It is a letter purportedly addressed by you
on behalf of the Natural Soda Products Company to the Division
of State Lands, and ask if you can identify that letter and
your signature and the letter as having been sent.

A. Yes. Oh, yes.

%. In the last varagraph on the first page, you refer to
certain individual wells as apperently varying in quantity and
quality of brine. Will you staﬁe what you mean by that para-
graph?

A. Shall I read the paragraph?

Q. Yes. A. It is quite i clear. #¥e,' of course, do
not know how long individual wells will hold up either in
quantity or quality of brine, which is the reason for asking at
this time for a variety of laterels, as we would then be in
a position to drill wells in various locations calculated to
give us both quelity and gquantity Tor our current and future
operations.,"” That is exactly what I meant.

Q. Well, by that do you mean that an individual well Ffron
time to time varies in the quality of the brine, and perhaps
becomes dry, so to speak?

A, No, I didn't mean'that. I do not say that. We were
then for the first time drilling in the deepest portion of the
lake; and we were teking a normal; . cautious attitude toward
a quantity which was only partially known; and, therefore, we

did not wish to be definitely bound to a circumscribed line or
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definite line, if by chance the topographic survey of the
bottom of the lake proved not to be in accordance with what was
shown on the map. You see we had gone out and we had drilled
22 wells, I think it was, just tapping and testing; and now for
the State purposes we hed to define a line for our right-of-way;
and on thet line are the laterals. WWell, we are humen; not
like the Water and Power Department; and consequently, we wanted
to have certain leeways in case in the determination of the
location of a well we made a mistake. That is all it means.
That is exactly what it says. As a matter of fect, we know
now that the variations in quantity depends solely upon the
thickness of the crystalline cake and the brine underneath to

the bottom.

0

S

Now, you say that you meant the distance between the
bottom of the cake and the top of the sandy gravel bottom?

4, I presume sco. I have never personally dug one of those
wells; but that is what I meant as a layman.

Q. Now, I will show you this.

IMR. FERGUSON: Is that the other one?

MR, UOORE: Thet is his March letter. This is not the one
that you looked at.

(Document in question handed to Mr. Ferguson.)

MR, IMOORE: & . I show you another letter addressed to the
State of California, Department of Finance, dated March 19th,
1936, and ask if such a letter was sent by you? (Document

in question handed to the witness.)
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Q. Now, in this letter you refer to the condition of the
soda ash industry as being extremely unsatisfactory. Uhet did
you haeve in mind in making that statement?

A. The price commencing with 1935 dropped off about 30
per cent.

Q. Could you state what it was in connection with soda ash;
from what price to what price the drop was?

A. Yes. Taking the lowest price, from approximately $17.00
a ton to approximately $1l2.40, I think it was, a ton.

Q. And the demonstration plant and the extension of the
pipe line referred to in that letter are those that you have
previously explained as being the improvements and edditions
made in 1936 and '37°7

4., The commencement of the improvements, yes.

Q. Now, in connection with that seme letter, you speak of
"putting the industry on Owens Leke in a competitive position."
What did you meen by that?

A, fay I see the letter?

Q. Yes. About the middle of the first paragraph, I believe,

A, Well, I don't think this needs any explanation. I say
here, "The condition of soda ash industry for the past year
end a half has been extremely unsatisfactory, and we have been
spending very considerable sums of money in research, the
building of a demonstration plant, and the extension of our

pipe line to a more favorable brine area in the hope that we
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would again put the industry on Owens Lake in a competitive
position." In other words, we were going to improve our
product and reduce our cost.

Q. Might we not assume from this that you were not in a
competitive position prior to that time? In other words --

A. You can assume anything you wish. I stand by my letter.

Q. Is 1t not a fact that other corporations were able ToO
outsell you on the competitive market at that time; and that
is what you meant by your letter?

4. I meant what I say; that we were suffering losses; and
those losses were caused by the inefficiency of our then process
and plant; consequently, as indicated there very clearly, we
spent time and money developing a new plant and preparing --
developing a new process and preparing to put in a new plant.

Q. lhat was your competition at that time?

A, Our competition at that time were the other manufsacturers
of soda ash on the Coast.

Q. The three that you mentioned?

1205 VI

Q. Previously? A. Yes.
Q. Two on Searles Lake? A, Yes.
Q. 4And the Pacific Alkali? A. Yes.

&+ What did you mean by the difficulty with a desert opera-
tion? L. A desert operation is not an easy operation
to run, lir. bMoore.

& . Was that due to the distance or --
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#. Due to distance and location and conditions; distance
from & market, freight differential, and things of that kind;
but in theat, we were no different from any of our competitors.
But generally speaking, a desert operation is not an attractive
one ,

MR. LOORE: I wonder if at this time we might suspend.

IMR. FERGUSON: Yes.

(Discussion. Thereupon an ad journment was taken until
& o'clock P. If,, Monday, October 2nd, 1939, and by consent of
counsel to be resumed at the same place.)
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Room 514 Financial Center Building, San Francisco, Calif.,
Mond ey, October Z2nd, 1939, 2:00 P. Ii.
(Pursuant to the foregoing adjournment, depositions in the
above-entitled cause were resumed, there being the same appear-
ances as heretofore indicated.)

STANLEY PEDDER,

recalled, having been previously sworn, testified as follows:

EXAMINATION BY MR. MCORE (Resumed)

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. IMOORZK : 2. I will ask that as the first question: You
state in paragraph VII of your second amended complaint, '"That
Naturel Soda Products Company upon said condition and upon
the continued diversion of said waters of said Owens River by
defendant into said aqueduct, and on or about april 15th, 1932,
plaintiff purchased approximately 200 acres of land upon the
shore of and riparian to said Owens Lake as 1t existed prior
to defendant's said diversion.” Did you assume that reliance,
or did you have information in your possession showing the
basis of that reliance?

A, It is a very difficult question to answer. My under-
standing at the time of the formation of the company and there-
after for several years was that the lake was a fast drying and
practically a dry lake, because the City of Los aAngeles had

eppropriated all of the waters of Owens River, and diverted them
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from the lake. Does that answer your question?
Q. I wanted to know upon what information you base that
knowledge of that condition.

A, Well, I presume that the informetion came from --

O

. Did you have information in your possession?

4. Vhat do you mean by "information"?

Q. Showing long term diversion.

A, Do you mean did I have any record of that personally?
Q. Yes, H.o NOo

L. Did the company have any records?

A, I don't know.

MR, FPERGUSON: But the information might be gained by
other than documentary evidence of the information.

MR, MOORE: Q. You were personally informed, is that 1%t?

A, I was informed that the City of Los ingeles had appro-
priated and diverted all of the waters of Owens watershed so
that they would no longer come into the lake.

Q. By whom were you so informed?

A. That would be very hard to answer specifically. Iy
conversations on that matter were naturally with the parties
who formed this company, to-wit, Messrs. Tully and ifiller.

Q. In paragreph X of your first cause of action of your
second amended complaint, certain allegations are made with
respect Tto activities of the plaintiff in mitigation of damages.
Do you know of your own knowledge what acts were done by the

employees or representatives of the corporation in mitigation
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of damages? #. Oh, yes, in a very general way. A4t a_ﬂﬂi

I%Rr$*
v

very considerable expense we replaced all of the Lew workswhich]
had been destroyed by the flooding of 1936.

Q. When did theat flooding occur? hat month?

A, Well, that occurred --

Q. I believe you stated before it was February to liay, is
that correct? A. February to iday, yes; almost into June.
Wait a minute. Am I twisted up on my years here? et me
get a file that I have here. I em just trying to re-
create these facts here. Wwell, it was after the flooding of
1937 that we -- the first flooding of 1937 that we replaced
our pipe line, and so on and so forth,

@. Let me ask you in that connection this: Did you make
any replacements in 19367

A. I don't remember of fhand how serious the damage in 1936
was; but my belief is that all of it that was substantially

damaged was roads,

Q. The records in the possession of Iir. Eckland would show
that as to dates? lah NESE G
4. And amounts? A, snd amounts, yes.

%, Then your substantial expeanditures in mitigation of
damages were after the first flooding in 1837, is that correct?

#, That is right. That 1s right. And at that time what
we dild was to raise our pipe lines from about a foot and a half
or two feet to Tour feet.

Q. The expenditures to which you refer are those contained
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in paragraph IX of the second amended complaint?
A. Page what?
Q. Pages 13 to 15. A. Yes, that is right. Those

are the items. 1 have no records; and I do not think it is

H

in the suit about any demages resulting from the flooding o
1936.

MR. LOORE: This' is off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: Q. But in 1936, you did make some repairs?

A. Yes, in the roadways. I have forgotten about the pipe
line; but the record will show if there were any damages to
the pipe line in that year.

Q. In 1987, the roadways were_raised, were they?

A. Not the roadways particularly; but the pipe line was
raised; the roadways were also raised to some extent, but not
pronortionately.

Qs And you now say that would be for the protection or
insuletion that you rebuilt your pipe line?

A. Yes; not, however, with the thought that would prevent
its demolition by flooding, because we thought we were putting
the pipe line then in 1937 higher than even any remote possi-
bility that flooding could possibly reach.

2. Did you change the location of any of your power lines
in. L9877 A, I believe we did, to a small extent;
but Keep would know more about that. He may heve straightened

out the power lines to some extent, not meking them follow the
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road quite as slavishly.

G. In this paragraph X, you say that equipment and plant
were damaged. By "plant," do you refer only to the items
conteined in paragraph IX or to the same portion of the plant
located on the shore?

A. There was no portion of the plant located on the high
lend - on the rim of the lake - demaged at any time by these
floods. It was the lake plant,

¢. Then your lake plant would consist of roadweys, pipe

lines -- A, Power line.

3. Power line and wells?

b

A. And pumping station, and things of that kind.

IMR. FERGUSON: Let me interpolate here: Fg+ ittmot "a .laet,
Mr. Pedder, that each of the wells was also pumped to the brine
heaters, and so forth?

A "¥egel oh; yed,

VR. IFERGUSON: Q. So, at least, the lake plant 1s dis-~
tinguished from the regular plant?

AReYeisT Well, in reletion to the pumping, when we speak
of the leke plant, we mean all of those things that are part
and parcel of the pumping equipment.

MR. MOORL: Q. Were there any dykes built subsequent to
the first flooding in 1937 to protect your pipe lines and road-
ways against wind and wave action?

A. To some extent that was done; particularly around the

wells and the roads.
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Q. And how high were those built?. .

v

A. I don't know. You will have to ask Keep. I have%fj%§§7
seen them,,\é&éwl couldn't estimate Bﬁe&ﬁw —

6. As to the chemical process, I will ask you for the

\
A
N

purpose of the record: The process which you acquired from
the old Natural Soda Products Company, you continued in opera-

tion until sometime in 19857

A. I will Jjust check that date. That is my recollection;

but I can easily check it. (Witness examines document.)
Yes, in 1936. I think on April 18th, 1936, we shut down the
old plant.

Q. What process did you use between '35 and '36?
A. We started --. I think I had better check that date.
off the record.
(Unreported discussion.)
MR. LIOORE: Q. Have you used the old plant since that time?
A. Only for a subsidiary purpose: For calcining trona
into what we call concentrates, but not for making soda ash.
That is an incidental part of our business, is the maeking of wha
are called concentrates, or low alkalinity sode, which is
useful for some purposes, but not useful for soda ash purposes.
0. And since April, of 1936, your production of soda ash
has been entirely from the pilot plant and from its enlargement?
A, That is Tight.

G. For commercial purposes? A, That is right.

«. Are you acquainted with the aqueduct system ol the Depart

F
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ment from its intake at a point near what is known as charlie's
Butte down to the --

A, Only from seeing it on the map. I have gone over partvs
of it personally; but did not stop; and only from seeing it on
the map.

Q. Have you ever been up to the intake itself?

A. No.

Q. I will direct your attention, Mr. Pedder, to paragreph
VI, pages & and 4 of the second amended complaint.

L. Yes.

. And ask you what is meant by the words®lake bed" used in
that paragraph on page &7

A, Well, that means . the surface of the 1lake.

Q. Would it be the portion above the crystalline csake?

ARaes,

6. Or at the surface of the crystalline cake?

A. At the surface of the crystalline cake.

&. Now, on the last line you speak of a high degree of
alkalinity. IR eSS

&. What do you refer to in that connection? ﬁf%i

A, The sub-surface waters have ta acquirégé high degreéfl%;:
of alkelinity. 3

Qo Yesy A, But I mean they have been impregnated with
the sodium salts to a high degree. Now, a "high degree of

alkalinity," of course, is a relative term.

Q. When you said "sodium salts,” do you refer to sodium
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carbonate - bicarbonate of soda?

A, Sodium is referred to usually as nag0O; and it may coll-
prise either bicarbonate or a straight carbonate. It also
comprises, perhaps frequently in its use, a little borax; but it
mekes no difference which it 1is.

%. In other words, your ratio, though, is in terms of nag0,
and that is what you mean by high alkalinity?

A, Is what I mean by high alkalinity.

Q. Now, you refer in this paragreph to salts of a consider-
gble value for commerciel exploitation.

A, Yes.

. What salts do you refer to?

A. Well, I am speaking of the nas0 content of the salts
primarily; but there are other salts in the lake which are
suscéptible to commercial exploitation as well,

Q. Are there salts other than the na20 that you have com-
mercially produced from the brine?

A. Not thet we have commercially produced from the brine, ng

Q. Well, would you tell us what those salts are?

A. Primarily potash and borax; but there are others also;
but those are the primary ones.

Q. Now, you refer to dekahydrate of sodium carbonate.

AR Yech

0. That does not exist in the brine as such, does it? &
: L i

A. Not while it is brine, no; butﬂprecipitqteﬁ eut underj

temperature changes which occur which permit it to fall out.

P2 vy
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Q. And in this connection with the crystallizationofdéiahydra
of sodium carbonate, is the brine pumped during the cold fall
and winter months, or is it that the brine is pumped at SoOme
other period and the crystallization takes place in tihe cold
fall and winter mounths? Bxplain that.

A, It can be either. You get dekahydrate precipitation

under either circumstances; but if you are going to control the
Wwwdw

precipitation of it, you weudid hé}e to pum 3 “121;1;::zj'%§
M. fecep Laho~ Ko gptolydioti He ot Cigun 4,/44.
f%/ ' o ] 1 Leud ke

p n/)

& . What were your actual operations?
A, Our actual process. is to start pumping as soon as the

nights become sufficiently cold to precipitate dekahydreate;

and we added e  a spray system so as to =
precipitate the dekahydrateAfree@ : e =

sul EL eEe,

Q. And that generally takes place then - the whole process
involving the crystallization takes place in the cold fall and
winter months? A, Yes, that is correct; the whole process.

Q. Now, will you turn to paragraph VII, page 11, please.

A. Yes.

Q. I believe, with respect to that, that you stated Wr,
Keep would be able to give the information better than you on
the 100 tons of soda capacity of the plant?

A, Yes, if you wish to go into details.

. When you use the word "normal," is that the same as the

use of the actual plant as a commercial plant capacity that you
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have referred to? A. No. That really means
exactly what it says: The normel plant capacity. You might
boost it up to 110 temporarily, but it would not be an efficient
point at which to keep it; or by making a slight change here
or there or somewhere else you might get it up to 115; but as
installed under normal conditions, it would have an average of
100 tons a day, as I understand it.

Q. And that was not based upon any gquestion of demand .for
the product? A. Why, of course, Of course
it was. We believed thst we could sell 100 tons a day, or

thereabouts.

b}

™

&

. And constructed your plant accordingly?

A, And constructed out plant accordingly. That is, the
market demand indicated that 100 tons a day was the amount which
we could efficiently make and sell under normal conditions.

Q. And that would include then the words "means of mer-
chandising"? A, That is right.

Q. What do you refer to in that paragraph when you speak
of normeal seasonal cyclic changes?

A, Well, now, you are getting rather deeply into chemistry
there; but in layman's language, with the variations of tempera-
ture, there are changes in the composition of the brine. In
the cold months, there is less nas0 in the subsurface brine,
and more precipitated underneath the top surface, which would
not come out with the brine. In the warm weather, more of

that is liquefied -- what is the word I want To use -- dissolved
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into the brine itself, so that when you pump the brine, you
get 1t out. That is just a layman's way of explaining it.

<. Well, then, that being the case, if there is less nagl
in the cold fall and winter months -- and I am correct in my
understanding of your testimony in that respect?

AN Ne s, May LI just glve --

0. Why is it pumped out at that time?

A, Because it has --, Those months are not cold in the
open air, except that they cool off during the night; but they
heve a series of very hot months from April, let us say, until
August - extremely hot months - so that there has been an ﬁig%;
opportunity for éﬁgé‘to permeate through the upper crust and
dissolve a great deal of the nas0 into the brine; so that when
you pump 1t out in September, you have the highest alkalinity
available at any time of the year, running from September to
December, and perhaps into January, and even into January, or
at the latest February 1lst it decreases because of the effect
of the lower éemperatures upon the upper crust, and therefore
on the brine, and it is decreased to a point where it won't be
worth while to pump those wells for the purpose of precipitating
dekahydrate.

Q. Do you know over what period of time you normally pumped?
How many months?

A, Well, we can't be very exact about that; but it would
be from three to four months., Sometimes it might be a little

more; or it might be a little less.

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPZRIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCIECO
DOuGLAsS 0113



@ 3

10
161k
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

52

e

Q. 4And you have to pump in that time the full amount of
brine necessary?

A. Precipitate enough dekahydrate for the yearts supply.

Q. For your year's supply? ai o yes s

9. Now, in paragraph VIII on page 13, you refer to flooding
of the bed of the lake.

o NEElG

Q. What portion of the lake do you refer to in making that
statement? A, Well, I was referring to
such portion of the surface of the lake as was actually covered
by water; end which included all of the area where our lake
wells were located, and a very large part of the area which

was crossed by our pipe line.

Q. It didn't quite come to the plant? _5ﬂ@f

A, Didn't come actually up to our plant ,for—imssesee, at
any time that I know; but, of course, there was a nine mile
pipe line, Now, I don't know of -- you can check this with
Mr. Keep -- I don't know at any time it came nearer than three
miles, approximately. llaybe it was & little more from our
plant.

Q. But all of your wells --

A. But all of our wells were completely under water, at one
time, ‘I believe), gight or nine feet; and sufficient of the
pipe line had been inundated to make it practically useless,
even had we been able to pump, vwhich, of course, we were not 9

=
able to with our l}ew wells thoroughly covered with water, <&

&
>
/“\f)'--\,i I
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). Now, in peragreph XI, page 18, about the middle of the
page -- A, Yes.

Q. It is stated that plaintiff was and is unable to procure
dekahydrate of sodium carbonate elsewhere in sufficient purity,
quality end quantity and at such price at plaintiff's plant sO
as to economically or profitably meet the balance of plaintiff's
sald requirements. What efforts were made in that behalf to
obtain the products?

A. Well, we know first of all that there is no such quan-
tity of dekahydrate made anywhere as we would have reguired to
operate our plant. Wle know also that %he -- even if it were
made or could be made elsewhere, it could not be made at such
a price which would permit it to be conveyed to Keeler, by
reason of freight rates and other handling charges, so that it
could be manufactured into soda ash at our plant. It was a
practical impossibility.

%. So that in view of that fact, you made no actual effort
to obtain it? You just knew that was the condition of the
market, and where you could obtain that product?

A. And we knew that there was no place from which we could
obtain such a product. There was no place where it was made,
e kmow a little about the chemical business; not much, but a
little; but we know that it just isn't made.

>+ What about obtaining it from Searles Lake?

A, They didn't make it.

¢. You mean the product Hmotthe same type that you were pro-
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ducing, or no product there which would be available?

4. They made soda ash., Ve could buy soda ash.

“. But this dekahydrate?

L. Tle are talking about dekahydrate here.

. bon't you menufacture your soda ash from your dekahydrate

L. Yes; but they .don't.

Q. Well, do you ==

A, At least, that is my impression.

'« Do you supply your market with dekahydrate in that form,
or do you supply it in the form of soda ash?

Ay We supply it in the form of soda ash.

. It was impossible to obtain a soda ash which you could
supply -- A. T don't say that. I say we couldn't get
dekehydrete. 7l ddid buy soda ash; but there are market require-
ments for it, as our statement of claim will show. We bought
soda ash in 1937 and 1938 and 1939.

0. Would Mr. Keep have records or lr. Eckland have records
of the prices at which you procured that?

A. Yes.

0, The quantity? A - Yes e EtTiis there fas fawpant
of our claim, all set out in deteail; because we naturally off-
set the smount of our claim with the profits that we have made
on buying and reselling soda ash,

L. When you state your claim, you mean the sheet from which
these allegations were made? AR Yes,

(5. Because the claim that was actually filed with us does

),
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not give that detalled information.

A, No; but I mean the further data that you are going to
get in the course of these depositions from others.

Q. May I ask one more question?

A, Ask &s many as you like, sir,

4. In some of your correspondence with the State, I bellieve

e

there is some discussion of the Inyo Chemical case, is there not

A, Yes.

Q. Did you have any knowledge of the circumstances of the
Inyo Chemical case prior to that correspondence; or was that
called to your attention for the first time by lir. Sturzen-
backer?

MR. FERGUSON: One moment. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: I really don't remember when I first came
across that case. I am sure it was after '32; I am sure it
was after '33; but how long after, I don't know. I don't even
remember when it came up in the correspondence with the Land
Division now.

MR. MOORE; Does that refresh your recollection?

(Document shown to the witness.)

A. Yes, in a way. I would say that I gave this matter of

the flooding of the lake by the Water and Power Department no

consideration even prior to that first flooding in 1935, ‘@JE
/Y o

Ao -7
L. Is 1t your statement that you hadﬁknowledge prior to'{iiy

—

that time of eny flooding of the lake?

=3

CRv
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A, I believe that is true. L believe that is true.

Q. May I ask it in this way: We have used the word
"flooding;" and perhaps you and I have a different conception
of the word, or are giving it a different meaning. I will
put it this way: Did you have any knowledge prior to '35 of
there being waters in the natural channel of the Cwens River
flowing on down to the lake in any quantities whatsoever?

A, What do you mean by"any quantities whatsoever"? There
was always -- I mean not always, but practically always somnme
little water going under the Owens Bridge, which is what the --
the point to which the first --

3. You refer to the Keeler Bridge? Is- that what you refer
to when you say the Owens Bridge?

A. The Owens River Bridge; the one at Keeler, yes.

MR, FERGUSON: The one on the road to Keeler.

MR. MOCRE: The one on the road to Keeler?

A. Yes, that is the one.

&+ That is what we refer to as the Keeler Bridge.

A, Well, it has always been known ever since I have been
going there as the Owens Bridge, which is since 1933; and there
were some small amounts of water from time to time, perhaps
continuously, going under the bridge.

Q. Did you ever make any estimate of the amount?

A. Personally I never did, because the amounts which went

under there were of no -- were normelly not of a volume which

bothered us at all, or could bother us under any condition,
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It was only when the excess waters which we assumed had been
appropriated or were diverted by the Water and Power Depaftm-ent
were permitted to go under there, that any damage could occur
to us. These trifling little amounts of a few inches or evel
up to a foot or two at some times of the year could not possibly
be of eny detriment to us.

Q. As far as you remember, you had seen no quantities in
excess of a second foot?

A, I wouldn't know a second foot from a man on the street
when it is spread over that width of the -- under the bridge
there, You see, I don't think you realize perhaps, Mr. Moore,
that the ordinary small amounts of water evaporate to the pointl
in fact, they evaporate so completely that they don't bother
us at all. Now, I don't know how serious -- lir., Keep can
probably tell us -- terXZk—ws how serious that two or three days

in 1935, I think it was -- yes, there was a portion of April,

ct

1935. I don't believe that bothered us at all; but I may be
wrong . Because there was a large amount of water come under
for just two or three days, and then it evaporated. T ApTails,
Heavens, that was all gone by July. It didan't bother us any.
Q. I would like to show you a letter of February 28th,
1936. Perhaps I had better show it to counsel first.
(Document shown to lMir. Ferguson and the witness.)
A, Yes. What 1is your question?
Q. I wanted to specifically call your attention to the use

of the word "again." This is February, 1936; so it must be
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Mr. Keep reported that to me. L certainly did not measure

referring to some previous time.

L. 1935 is the first time that we protested. I think I
told you that before.

€. I wondered if that was the time you referred to in that
letter? #. I think so. I think so, I would have to

look at my owm correspondence file; but whether as a result 3§5f:
the protest or not, I don't knowg{bat the amount of water théé,/
was turned into the lake in 1935 was very, very small. e
naturally protested, though.

. From what record did you get the 100 second feet at
Keeler? A, Let me see.

Q. (Continuing) -- referred to in the first paragraph?

A, Well, I presume that my correspondence will show theat

it myself.

Q. Any records to that effect would be in his possession,
then? A, Tfsthere "are-any,aves,

Q. Mr. Goudey has asked that I direct one further question
to you, Mr. Pedder: You mentioned that some of the uses for
the soda ash were the manufacture of glass, socap --

A, Yes.

Q. (Continuing) -- sugar and steel; or used in the steel
industry, and used in the oil industry, and water softening?

A, Yes.

Q. Did you sell that product of your own knowledge for all

of those different uses? A, Yes, I think so. We cer-
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tainly sold it for soap, to the Los ungeles Soap Company.
We sold 1t for glass, to the Owens Illinois Pacific. lihat sre
the others?

Q. Then refining of sugar? A. Refining of sugar. Ve

v

sold to several of the sugar companies.

Q. Entirely on the VWest Coast? R Y, el
think so. |

Q. How about the steel industry? 4. The steel
industry? We still sell that.

Q. Wheat is the use of soda ash in the steel industry®

A. VWhy, it is used for desulfurization, for ome of their
uses. Now, exactly what use they make of thals particular
product, I don't know; but for desulfurization is one of the
uses of soda ash in the steel industry.

Q. In the oil industry? A, Tn-thesoeiil industry, T
don't know. I am not sufficiently familiar. The Shell people
use it for a water softener at one of their plants; but whéther
the other compenies use it solely for that purpose, or whether
they use it for some other purpose, I don't know.

Q. Did you sell some to the Shell Company?

“ye

A. Yes. Oh, yes, the Southern Pacific bought it in their A
ol

3 (7
: A

foundry, = = o x I
9. Did you sell any to municipelities or water companies?

L. Not as far as 1 know; but I may have.

MR, IMOORE: I think that will be all with Mr. Pedder.

Did you care to cross examine him?

O
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Gy A, KEDR:

called as a witness under Section 2055 of the Code of Civil

Procedure of the State of California, being first duly sworn
by the Notary Public to tell the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the tfuth, testified as follows:

SLAMTNATION BY MR, MOORE

MR. MOCRE: @ . You are presently associated with the

Natural Soda Products Company, a Delaware corporation?

l;xn Yeso
Q. In what capacity? A. General superintendent.
9.« Are you an officer or director? A. No.

=3 e

Q. How long have you been associated with the company?
A. Since January 15th, 1934.
Q. In the same capacity? Lo aYes:
Q. What are your duties in connection with your position?
A, Well, I think they are similar to any general superin-
tendent. I have charge and am responsible for the production
end of the business; and also connected with production in the
way of reduction of costs, improvements on production; develop-
ment of potential production, and so forth. Does that answer
your question?
@ YESh A, Handling of labor and handling of the camp;
the industrial relations with employees.
WVR. FERGUSON: <. You are general superintendent of the
whole plant operation? Mo VEE G

MR, 1IOORE: 4. Including the maintenance of the plant?
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"which I have never read.

A. Oh, yes.

Q. And its facilities? A. Yes.

Q. In that connection, do you keep, directly or under youl
control and direction, records with respect to the various
processes used eand enalyses made of brines and products?

A. Yes, we keep such records that we think are necessary
for the operation of the plant, or records of such a nature
that they may be useful to us in the future in regard to such
things.,

0

G

. Vhen you took over your duties in January, of 1934, there
were turned over to you certain records of that type that had
already been compiled with respect to the operations from April,

132 to January, '34%

A, Well, all the records that were there were turned over

Q. Well, there were such, K records, were there not?

4, Yes, there was to an extent records.

Q. Were there any records of the old Naturel Soda Products
Company, a California corporation, turned over to you?

A, Well, as a matter of fact, Mr, lioore, there was a greatg

number of files of various sorts, of correspondence there,

0, I refer primarily to the technical records.
A. There were a great many years records there made by
previous superintendents, I think; and a lot of those I never

read. I glanced over a few of them, and saw they were not of
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1 any particular value or of interest to me. Lost of them have
2| to do with various breaskdowns end troubles, and things of that
3| nature; and so I don't know exectly what is there, or may have
. 4| been there, as far as that is concerned.

5 f. The records with respect to the process being actually
8 used by the company at the time you went in as superintendent --
7 A. Well, there were records there pertaining to how much

8| they produced and shipped out in a month, and things of that

9| nature., I don't know just what sort of records you mesn.

10 Q. Did you acquaint yourself with the operations of the

11| plant so that you could teke over and operate it?

12 A. Well, in the first place I had a great meny years of

13| experience.

14 Q. In the soda ash industry? A. No, sir, in the chemical

15| dindustry; in the metallurgical industry.

e 16 Q. What type of experience was that?
17 A, Well, for one thing, I was connected for ten years with
18| the Grasselli Chemical Company, which is now a subsidiary of
19| the Dupont, - &a subsidiary which now conducts all of the heavy
oo/ chemical manufacturing for the Dupont Company.
21 2. What was your position immediately prior to going with
oo | the Natural Soda Products Company? —Qﬂﬂk
23 A. I had been a superintendent of the pocket pyrites depart-
24| ment at the Cerro de Pasco Copper Corporation.
W 25 . In what capacity? As a consulting chemist?

Fresa

26 A, No, I was superintendent of what was known as the pockeﬁ
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pyrites department. If you want to know more about thab, the
purpose of that department was to develop a process of TEeCOvVET—
ing primarily silver from the low-grade ores of the Cerro de
Pasco mine of Peru, which was owned by the Cerro de Pasco
Copner Corporation. This particular silver body being, I
believe, the lergest known deposit of silver in the world.

Q. Prior to 1934, what experience had you had with the soda
ash industry? 4. No experience in the manufacture of
soda ash, but considerable experience in the use of it; and of
the maeking of chemicals.

Q. Did you have any experience of its application to the
manufacture of the various products such as those that have
been enumerated? A, Yes,

Q. Glass, socap -- A. Well, there are a great
meny other products chemically made from soda ash.

Q. Besides those that were mentioned?

A Yes. For instance, the Grasselli Chemical Company
mede silicate of soda, of course. It i1s a product made over
here by the Emeryville Chemical Compeny in aafg'ouanthtvesJ%g;&jg
They used large quantities of soda ash for that purpose. As
a matter of fact, we were talking of dekahydrate a little

while ago; and a large quantity of soda ash is used in the

” _ Y. &s é%glk
~sxtractiorl of sode—andso—S sal soda. bodwum Dhospnates ES//;
1 T

ere made from soda ash. Its products are used largely in
weighting silk. woaruin.phosphates are also made of soda Qggébw

and there are numerous others of that nature.

\)‘\:
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Q. I wes simply trying to get your general experience,
rather then all of the products with which you are familiet

A, Well, you asked what use is made of those products, and
I have stated a few of then. There are many others. Ior
instance, the hypo you use to develop films is all made from
soda.,. . The chemical industry mekes a great many products
from soda ash.

D, In connection with the use of soda ash for these

products, did you become familiar with the processes necessary

for the making of soda ash itself? ‘

4. Not particularly the making of the ash, because at thai ‘

Gk
time Grasselli made no ash. They were producing all of 1t, =z
4 /
L £
end the Duweont Company were using it. 7§Z¢T
/‘Q_‘Z'?’."z,

9. When you came in as superintendent in 1934, then it was
necessary to acquaint yourself with that particular industry,
was it not? LYo S

n, And you made a study of the processes then being used
by the Natural Soda FProducts Company?

A. Yes; but it didn't take me long to understand that.
I not only made a study of it, but I made a study of the condi-
tions on Owens Lake and immediately about it.

Q. What type of study on Owens Lake did you make?

A, Well, I think I asked for and received authority to put
dovn the wells, the prospect wells, out on Owens Lake.

Q. There were no wells there at that time?

A. Oh, yes, there were some wells; but I say the prospect
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wells; the 22 prospect wells; and I think we started thosé

gbout two weeks after I got there. That was when I received

authority to do that.

£i o :..LI’ ° l)edd el

Q. From whom?
In connection with learning the various types of processg

)

in

v |

then used, did you refer to any records that were alread;
the possession of the company showing alkalinity of brines for

any purpose; things of that sort?

A, Well, to a limited extent. Mr. Schilling stayed there
a week with me after I got there, and went over the various

parts of the workings there; out on the lake, and explained to

me what the situation was, &s much e&s he could during thet time.

'R
<G @

Can you state of what steps the process used in

consisted?
A, When I went there?
Q" Yes. Rlases s usime

Will you do that, please?

A. When I went there, brine of what we now regard as low
alkalinity was pumped into the plant.,
was from

&L

A. Yes, out in the neighborhood, we will say roughly, five

@. Can you state how that was acquired? That

)
v

=== pumps that were placed out in the lake?

miles from the plant, where there was a series of shallow wells,

C

w e

How deep would you say they were?
A, Well, they varied from two feet to a point -- I think

well o. 17, that was about four feet deep. The well was sunk
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"in the winter.

in deep into the mud.

O 1
Y

L)

hen you say it was sunk into the mud, do you mean that

if pierced the crystalline cake? A. Yes.

. 4nd went down into the mud below that?

Al e g

. Was there any brine between the crystalline cake and the
mud ? A. No distinet layer, no.

Qs NeRdistinet i ayer: A Non

gL Allssrich it tBroceed,

A. There was some four or five of those. A4is I say, some of
them were only two feet, Naturally, they were affected by the
winter weather very aquickly, because when it cooled off, the
alkalinity dersi¥y dropped in the brine.

sl
two feet over the c=alem?

Apoianed
A. Yes, 1t just Iilked in at that shallow depth; and S%E%Eyf

of the wells became so that you couldn't operate them at all

G. Did you .meke any tests to see how deep this mud layer
was before you reached the sand and gravel? f/f§5¥¢3

A, Vell, once you go through,there out imethe, laker it is
very fine mud. After you bresk through this cake -- you can
take a pipe and push it down in there as much as you want to;
and we have heard - that was before my time - that it is 500
feet deep - they have gone that far, and never hit any bottom

alTar Sl & It was mud all the way..
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Q. On some of tine wells nearer shore, did you make &ny
tests with a view of ascertaining the actual measurement of the

depth of the mud? L. No, I don't think that

would be of any help. That mud may be found to be §Ai3ﬁﬁ’aeep,

y/

or even deeper;.ant ljow cen go back into geology. The Owe%ffﬁb%ﬁ

.

Hlver,yaamr“xfﬁﬁ%-unc Owens Lake and out over Little Lake and

into Indian Wells Valley; and in the long ago geological tTimeEs,

&

t1g in the basin of Owens Lake; and all th¢

mud that came down settled in there, So there was no deposit
of salt, solid salt, in Owens Lake until the city diverted the

water into the agueduct, thereby causing the lake to evaporate

; ; A S 4
to a point where solid salts-- b cipitated. 4? ;7
T _///,JJ

3. There is no distinct layer of brine or liquid above the
mud, but below the crystalline cake?

A, Not at any point that I know of.

&. As far as you know?

A. No, T don't think there is any.
Q. Will you go on and describe the type of well and the

operation of the well in that first system?

A. Well, the wells are different somewhat one from the other.

We had two wells, No. 16 and 17, on which they put the main
dependence for the supply of brine. sAs I said, Lthose two wells
pierced the rour fget of salt at that particular point; and had
a casing down into the mud, and the brine seeped in. The other
wells were shallower, and had pumps located on them; but they

were so shallow that in the wintertime at times the pipe lines
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would crystallize or the brine would get very low in alkalinity
end then in 16 and 17 there was a very great decrease in
quantity of brine available in cold weather.

0,. Did you have heaters in connection with these wells?

A. No, sir. They were all what we would call low alkalinity

Q. It didn't require healbing, is that 1t®?

A Yes Sabhat 5.5 by,

Q. Now, they were pumped through these pipe lines, I presumng,

into vats? A, No, they were not.
Q. Well, then -- A. They were pumped into the
plant into the receiving -- well, when I say vatg -- %ﬁ@gﬁ%@t@fg

vats. They were pumped into the plant into,dﬁégp
storage; and this storage being dug out of the ground; but
Jjust for the storage of brine; and from that point, the
brine was pumped out into what we call the carbonating towers.
0. Pardon me a question: YWere tests made of this brine
as to temperature and concentration and so forth?
A, Oh, yes, we have records of that, The temperature of
the brine, the alkalinity of the brine being pumped in there,
0., That is what I mean. 2y NER
Q. It was carried into what you cell the carbonating towers
A, Carbonating towers,
Q. Then what was done witq“it?

e a2 3
4L, Well, at that point, Lhey were—treated with carbon

dioxide gas, which was obtained by calcining dolomite limeg é%%'

HART & HART
OFFICIAL BUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuUGLAS 0118

Ry



LS

10
11
12
13
14
15
186
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

70-"7

in kilns. The gas from the kilns was conducted into compressol]

and compressed up to about 45 pounds pressure, and then led
into the bottom of these towers, where it bubbled up through

the towers. Then there was a reaction, chemical reaction,

JL

S,

between the sodium carbonates contained in the lake brine dpdékﬁ /
’ll

4 & ’
the D@7, which converted the sodium carbonate into a sodium biz| .

it)
carbonate.

Q. Then thaet sodium carbonate was in solid form?

A, The sodium bicarbonate is less soluble in the brine than
the carbonate, and was precipitated out as sodium bicerbonate in
the solid form.

¢,. That would be in the bottom of the tower?

A..Precipitated out through the tower. It is more or less
of & continuous process. You put in brine continuously at the

top of the 90 foot tower, and you drew out the sludge consisting

(018}

of brine and sodium carberr@teé from the bottom of the tower all
the time.

Q. That was conducted where?

A. That was conducted through filter presses of the
Oliver type, where the solid bicarbonate was separated.

. Were there aeny impurities contained in the sodium bi-
carbonate? A, YES,

Q. You have a record of the percentage of impurities from
time to time? A, Yes.

Q. How did you go about removing those?

A. Ve did not remove themn.

o
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&. You mean -- A. We endeavored to conduct
our operations with the towers so as to avoid the formetion of
these lmpurities as much as was possible; but furtier than
that we had no control over those impurities.

Q. There was no other step in the process of removing those

impurities after they left the tower?

A NoL MM#\&MMW'WW- 5
Gputstism rodt cleove %ﬁq‘(/@p.p,
Q. And compressed in the Oliver filter?

A, After I was there, we made quite a research into that

phase of the question.

. I want to get this other process completed.
A. Well, it was with the idea of removing some of these
impurities; but we could find no commercial practical s way of
accomplishing such a result.
%. Did you get any by-products from the tower process which
you used? Was there anything --
W‘O—{'—Xz \f

A, No. ‘"hey used to make it a practice of running faese
e (=]

—

liquors into vats and letting the salt evaporate; but they wer

/
at a later date; but to answer your question I will say no, ti

never of any greet use. We did recover some sodium chloride
1ét -
there were no particularAby—products. 2

&

<. How did you go from your sodium bicarbonate to your dense
ash; first, to the second-grade dense ash?

A. No, to your light ash, You take the light ash first.

%, All right. 4, The sodium bicarbonate w
r /
got from the ‘scaw was conducted and fed into what is known as tap
—0
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light ash furnace, which is a long revolving cylindrical shell

heated from the outside to a temperature sufficient éo daey thab
part of the COy in%&'sodium bicarbonatqﬁ,which you introducefﬁggn_
in the towers; thereby converting the sodium bicarbonate back

into sodium carbonate.

Q. Is that the same as ash? 1

A, That is soda ash. Sodium carbonate is soda ash. That 1
: d i ; £ L
product from that furnace wes known as light ash‘haﬂause—-—;i%iﬁo

wholly because of its weight per cubic feet, if you want to
look at it that way. That is one way of looking at it. The
CO, evolved from this furnace driven off by the heat as desor;b—
. 2
/08

‘ e : NRRANNL s % .
ed was conducted into =o=e compressors, which handled the gzgfihjﬁ
(QUy7 -

coming from the lime kilns.

. It went back into the towers and was used again?

A, It went back into the towers and was used again.

Y0er 67N J
Q. Were there anjAcr§stals in this light ash®? {%%Z 2
— QB

A. No, none.

Q. Well, in the dense ash, there was some waters in that,

was there not? A, NO.
2. There was not? ne oo
Q. What makes the difference? What step in the process?
A, Vell, the dense ash -- what makes the dense ash the way
it was -- at the Natural Soda Product Company's plant, it may

be described as starting from the filter presses, the sodium

bicarbonate cakey weze conducted into the dense ash furnacé%ﬁég;é
ezt 47,

-

These were circular brick furnaces similar in shape to those in
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3 3 . * = i e P o
which they burn fire brick. In tlose furnaces the bicarbonate

wes not only heated enough to drive off the COp gas, but the ,
Cevidinued .
heating was continucus to the point where the soda ash was _ ()

actually fused into a molten liguid; and this liquid continuousSr
ly ran out as it was melted and was blown with air and granu-
lated - cooled and granulated. These pellets that resulted
from this granulation were then ground in a hammer mill, and
in that way the dense ash was produced, having much greater
weight per cubic foot than the light ash.

,. Were any of the soda concentrates made in the same
process, or was that a separate process?

A. No, the soda concentrates are entirely a separate
process, and do not originate from brine,

Q. Did you menufacture some at the time that you came in/dﬁ%yﬁ

Z g

At £ ey £ J_.%ﬁ/i‘\

January, 19347 A. WE GG HOT OCEIT OpPeTaTIng T
we were not operating -- making concentrates right at the time

I ceme in; but we made plenty of them that summer; and we have
mede them ever since.,

Q. Have you usedthe same process all the way through on
those concentrates?

A, From then to now?

Q. Yes. A, Yes, we used what we would call the same
process, but with this difference: That the gases from the

dense ash furnace that I have described before, the gases are

necessarily pretty hot coming off there; and it used to be the

-~

Wog.
practice to §E£§§¥E-or to carry those hot gases into the rotary
-
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furnace where the sode concentrates were made, TO utilize that
heat; and after the carbonating plant was closed down, it
became necessary to build up a fire for the concentrates; and
that was done with fuel oil.

Q. Sinece the process thet you have used after 1935 did not

give off these hot gases, is that the reason for that differencg

vailable

O

A. Yes, that is correct. There were no hot gases

Y/
for such purposes,a#&u‘uk¢¢akﬂm~¢qug #J&Ldj‘Mfaéﬂjkuxzkbufn;/ﬁim}%’

7

0., And were you mining trona in January, of 1934%

A, We weren't actually mining it at that time, no. We had

74

Vs
; : . on e S /_/’lq,,
available a considerable tonnage of it ai Line lon® TNAT nag%@gga

@

been stacked up previously; and we had considerable tonnag
Eféfﬁﬁﬁ%g_éigééﬁéféé in vats near the plant, and which we /;2?ﬂf<
recovered from time to time.
0. You obtained that from the HNatural Soda Products Company,
did you® A, The trona?
4,. The precipitation from that?

A, "Yes. Whet trona was precipitated in—41me --

in the vats was all made before my tine.

Q. Oh, I see. 4. The other trona that we
used when I first went out there was a natural trona laid
down in the lake.

Q. Well, did you ever operate after you came there speci-

fically to obtain trona, or were your activities confined to

the soda ash?

4, Well, our only operation in regard to trona was to collegt
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the trona that was there laid down naturally, or that had been
made artificially. e have never produced any trona since I
have been there; nor up to now has there ever been any made
naturally.

Q. Have you stated generally -- ‘4, As Tan. as
this trona is concerned, it was the first salt to become
insoluble, you know, in Owens Lake brine, due to the eva aporation

of Owens Lake, It was the first one precipitated out.

c+

,. Then in connection with the operations when you firs

came in January, 1934, did you keep any records with respect
to the height of the waters in the lake?

oy

A, When I first went there, there wasn't any wate

=
PJ
o
B
ch
=
[0)]

Q. None at any point near your wells?

A, No. Well, I told you we went out a distance of some
nine miles from the plant.

(,. I meen prior to the time you made your 22 test wells?

A. Well, at that time, I drove all over the lake with an

automobile. There was no water on the surface in our vicinitv

at all; Jpews no water or brine. To look at it, it looked q,/ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

The brine in that dry lake exists very close to the surfece.

W

The condition that existed out there is that after a long dry

Under conditions like thet,n\e drove an automobile

b?éna?>and/fﬁ would immediately flow into the depressed tra

period the surface brine is all evaporated, and the salt is

thrown out, end then when the brine surface recedes below the

I

# :
Q%
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surface of the solids, the rate of evaporation is jmmediately

ﬂ)
6]

slowed dowvn. It does not cease, but it almost cees

brine ruas very close to the surface. And that sort of & Pg_

situation existed &ll the time up until enough water was put

on the lake to cause surface brine to exist there. The ten-

Q. Have you any records of eveaporation?

@s-0n the leke? A, Yes, but not previous tO

this year,

Q. Well, do you have any prior to this year?

A, What?

Q. Do you have any records of evaporation of the lake prior

to this year? A, Only in a general way.
We know when we were flooded before gpproximately how deep //ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
that was; but we know - when: . 1t evaporated down, and when it

exposed our wells again, the first time we were flooded out.

. Do you have a record showing that rate?

A, Only in a general way. We know that during the spring
of/YM,L.n4usL_uana_beeg_—gaem we had some two and a half feet
of water or brine on the surface; and by August lst it had gotis
evaporated down to our,t— if that is what you mean; but nothing
previous to that. We have no records of our own in regard to

evaporation on Owens Lake, what 1t was previous to Time I came

That seme condition holds down at Searles Lake.

S
¥:
VO

74
(2078

dency is for eny surface brine to be eveporated,erd te—£ive é%fﬁ’

¥
]
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there.

&. That is what I mean. A. We know from opinions
that have been expressed about it.

0. But you have no recordsa your own? A, No.

Q. There are two types of evaporation we are interested in:
First, of the brine or waters on the surface of tne cake; and
secondly, evaporation from the cake itself. Did you have

any records of that? A, No. As I seid -- I just

got through explaining it -- that it evaporates down to the//ﬁséﬁ?

ot ph

surfaece - the surface is exposed, and the giir=eee-0of the DrlL
ghowe after a very long dry period there of many years, \M* %g%z?
jz”ﬁs right close to the surface; that is, when you go out to
the main body.

(Discussion. Thereupon an adjournment was taken until
10 St cilloclkcs AT My, Tuesday, October™dnrd, 1939 ¢ and by censent of
counsel to be resumed at the same place.)
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Room 514 Financisl Center Building, San Francisco, Calif.,
Tuesday, October 3rd, 1939, 10:00 A, I

(Pursuant to the foregoing adjournment, depositions in the
above-entitled cause were resumed, there being the same appear-
ances as heretofore indicated.)

G. A. KEEP,

recalled, having been previously sworn, testified as follows:

EXAVINATION BY MR. MOORE (Resumed)

MR. MOORE: Are you ready to go ashead?

MR. FERGUSCN: Yes',

MR, IMOORE: . Lir. Keep, yesterday we were discussing the
first process that was used and your experience with it after
you went in in January of 1934; and there are a few additional
guestions I would like to ask along that line. As you pumped
the brine from the various wells which were in use at the
time you came, were temperatures taken of brine at the wells?

A, YWell, the chances are that we have records of that sort;
but we didn't meke it a regular practice to take temperature
every morning or every hour or every day.

Q. How often would you say that you took them?

A, Well, as a matter of fact, as I told you, some of those
wells are two feet; and when it got very cold at night, on some
of the wells -- the smell wells in this heighborhood = (=

dicating on Appendix "A"),
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¢. Pardon me just a minute, I think --

A. The brine temperature might go down to 8 or 10 degrees
centigrade, end it might still be lower; and you cen't speax
of the brine --

wonder if we might make this an exhibit

=

Q. Excuse me.
to the deposition. Tt is a recessional mep of Owens Lake
preparedbytie Cliief of the Division of otate Lands

of the State of California; end I believe that we cen, at least,
get the relative locations of the plant and the lake land end
location of pipe lines on here.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. IOCRI: ind if it is acceptable to you, lir. Ferguson,
we will have lir. Keep draw on this map merely the relative
locations, and not according to the distance or the exact size,
or things of that sort.

THE WITNESS: You don't have one there which your contour

lines are in it, do you?
MR, MOORE: No, I am sorry I don'®t. It is the only
mep I find that the State prepares; but the Federal Government,

I think, has maps of contours.

A. The contours I speak of were put on by the City Water

and Power Department.

MR. MOORE: - Pardon me. Just & minute. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. FERGUSON: T have no objection to this map being used

to indicate on it, understanding that it is to a small scalej;
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and that anything that is noted is purely relevant.

MR, MOORE: Purely relevant.

MR, FERGUSON: It depends upon whether the witness under-
stands the map, too.

MR, MOORE: Qe Will you look at this map and see if you
can orientate yourself.

L. oesye Tyam femiliar with-it.

Q. You are Tfeamiliar with it? Ay Nes o vam
familiar with those sections,

. I wonder if you would, before you make any further
explenation, care to draw on there the position of the plant -
relative position of the plant along the shore line.

(Witness does as requested.)

MR. FERGUSON: The witness is drawing this in red.

MR. MOORE: Yes. ‘

Q. Draw the plant as it existed in January, 1934, Ais I
understand it, then you only had two plants? Thet ds. coerrect,
is it not, that you only had two plants?

A. You know, the plant is going to be a pretty small item
on that map.

Q. ALl I am trying to get at 1s the relative location with
respect to the pipe lines and wells, and so forth. I think we
will indicate the plant with two rectangles. Will you indicate
the plant in red with two rectangles, please?

A. If I put it in according to the approximate size, it

would be just about there; about that size.
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0. Will you mark that by en arrow and a "P" in the s&me
color, red?

(Witness does as requested.)

¢. Now, that is the plant as it existed in January, 19347

Y e s8 Me -y

0. Will you draw in blue the lake land locations that have

been referred to? A, I haven't referred to any

yet.

Q. That was referred to by Mr. Pedder. You are familiar
with them? A. I was not here when he referred to them;
so I don't know what you are talking about.

Q. I will state Mr. Pedder testified that there was some
2500 acres of lake land location acquired from the State under
contract. A. 0k, Now, I think --

<. Draw that in in blue, plesase.

MR, FERGUSON: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE: For the purpoée of the record, we will indicate
that the witness prior to the time that the depositicns is
finally signed will fill in and indicate the lake land locationsg
on the map, which we will refer to at this time as Appendix
UL/ Is that all right?

MR. FERGUSON: Yes. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, IJOOR%: Q. May I ask you if the plant marked by the

letter "P" covers a part of the 200 acres which were acquired
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from the old Natural Socda Products Company?

A, Yes, I believe it does. Tt s the fee Jlend. ' Ib is
not located as you have indicated here. First the fee coOmes
in here, which is indicated on this map; and finally located
on what was the parcel that is a part of the 200 acres that
he frefers ok

MR, PEDDER: 209 acres.

MR. MOORH: Yes.

2. Would you be able to draw the pipe line and well location

2s they existed in 19347 AL Yes.,

@+ Will you do so in blue? AZYes sl Mcan,

Q. The approximate relative locations,

(Witness does as requested.)

THE WITNESS: Something like that: I think there was
another one out about there.

MR, PEDDIR: You had better indicate that, too.

MR. MOORE: Will you mark that?

A, I can't remember ell of them. Here are the two main
wells here; here were No. 17 and No. 16. I told you yesterday

they were in a place where 1t was approximately -- the salts

were approximately three and a half to four feet deep; and here

it might have been only 18 inches deep. Now, these numbers,

I can't remember whether they were 8, 9 or 10. That is to say,
this was 8. I can remember that; and we will still call that
No. 8; but these others --

Q. Mark the numbers in blue, indicating the location of the

0]
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wells in 1984 - in January, of 1934,

A, This is more or less approximate, you see, except for
16 and 17 and 8; they are very accurate as to location.

Q. Do you know the number of the well which you have in-
dicated in blue?

A, No, I don't remember. I just got through telling you
I remember where 8 was. I don't remember whether these were

9 or 6, or what.

Q. Wheat was the total number of wells?

A. There were at least three, and maybe about five altogethe
G. Five altogether? #, Yes, around in there.

(. VWere pumps located at each of the locations which you
have indicated as wells? AEeVesy

Q. Will you indicate -- A. They were connected by
roads so that you could drive from one to the other.

Q. And did the roeds follow along the pipe line, as you
have drawn in blue? A. Approximately, yes. The
road was a little bit out; comes out here, and comes over
there; but approximately follows the pipe line, yes,

Y

Q. Will you draw an arrow from the pipe line and mark

}—IA
ct

"P. L.,", indicating pipe line, please?

(Witness does as requested.)

Q. What was the size of that pipe line?

A. Well, the pipe line, I believe, from No. 8 in here i
8 inch,

Q. You mean into the plant? AoYeg onThel line from No.: 2

L
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out to No. 17 was 6 inch. The line --. There was & line
then -- I am not sure whether thab was in or whether we pub it

in afterwards, or it came around this way; but these lines

consisted of some 6, some 4 and maybe some 3 inch lines con-

necting in. _—opy?

7
Lucileon scnslostopd I Gk
3. Would you be able to say what it was from 165867
A. No. They were sixes. I just got through telling you
there was some 6, There was a line in here, but I am not sure

thet was in at that time, or whether we put it in afterwards,

connecting across there. There wes some 6, some 4 and some O.

7

Now, that is the best I can do for you. I dontt—if it is %4ﬁ%yﬂi
: Prresi : e
matter of great importance; but there was some 6 and some 4 and

some 3 inch lines located in there.
Q. Will you draw by an arrow to 8, 16 and 17, and indicate
it by a "W, denoting a well?

A, What is that?

Q. Draw an arrow to 8, A, ALl right.
3. (Continuing) -- 16 and 17, indicated by "W' to indicate
wells. A, Yes.

Q. In connection with this plant, et that time did you
have storage facilities for the brine?

A, We had a small vat.

Q. Will you draw that in green?

(Witness does as reguested.)

Q. It was on the lake side of the plant? LYo SRR ol

near the plant.
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. Will you mark that by "V" to show vat?

(Vitness does as requested.)

(. What was the capacity of that?

A. I don't know.

¢. I believe you mentioned yesterday that the brine wnich
you pumped from these wells was of low-alkalinity, is that
correct, in January, of 19347

A, The test was low alkalinity then in the summertime as
compared with the brine which we found on our prospect was
available at the same time in this area.

Q. That is, the prospect that you made after you came in?

A. I told you I started it after about two weeks after I
came in; and the idea was to see if there existed in the lake
brine of higher alkalinity or better brine; if so, where it was.
That was the object of the prospect.

Q. Are you fTamiliar with the allegations of the second
amended complaint? Have you looked at the second amended
complaint? A, No. I might have looked at it; but I
doubt it.

Q. I show you on page 16 of the second amended complaint
an allegation with respect to sodium carbonate content of the
subsurface brine after the flooding of 1937. Will you read
that portion of it?

#. where do you want me to start?

3. Pardon me. Pointing in here to the alkalinity.

THE WITIESS: This is off the record. I am just reading
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.cold, that alkaelinity would drop. It might drop down as low

this.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: <. VMay I ask you, in respect to that, if you
know what the relative alkaelinity in percentage of sodium
carbonate was in 1934 from the wells that you --

4. From these wells?

Q. (Continuing) -- the wells that you have indicated on the
map 7 4. 8 per cent alkalinity from these wells would
be regarded as a high alkalinity.

That would be the maximum alkalinity from those wel

A. I said if we got 8,it would be regarded as high alkalinit

at that time from these wells, during the summertime when the

alkalinity was at its best. In the wintertinme

as 6, or possibly lower,

Q. 4And sometimes in the summer months it would go higher
than 8 in some of the wells? . Not much, if any higher
8, as I sald, was regarded as high alkalinity.

. With respect -- Sy bt wouldn'ﬁ say it might
not have gotten up to 8.2, or something like that; but I an
giving you the straight .dope on the proposition. : e

&. With respect to the purity of the bicarbsmase of soda,
which I believe is the product you obtained from your towers -
carbonizing towers, is that correct?

A, No, we obtained bicarbonates from the carbonizing towers,

and converted that into carbonate.

HART 8& HART
OFFICIAL BUPEZRIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCKRY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAS 0118



(93]

o

oa) 8 N1 v Y]

10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

88

& . What percentage of purity did you obtain?

A. What are you speaking of now?

Q. Of the carbonate. 4. Well, we never exXpress
it in that form.

Q. How did you express the purity of your product; and O
what product did you make those tests?

A. Well, you express the purity of soda ash by the alkalinlty

Q. In terms of nay0? A. Yes, that is the way it is
done .
And what product did you use to arrive et that?
A, What?

. At what stage of your process did you make thait Test?

o

A. Well, we made it after it is finishe
In the form of dense or light ash? 5. Yes.
0. Do you know what percentage of purity you obtained in
that process? A. Well, in this process we made &n &ash
that was about 57 elkalinity. It might be 57.2, and it might
be a little below; but I would sey 57 alkalinity. For your
information, I might add that ash of high purity would have =
slkalinity of 58 per cent; and the impurities of such ash would
be very low.

Q. It is sometimes expressed in terms of 99 centigrade -
that is, in relation to 58 per cent?

A. The 58 per cent ash would be about a 99 plus per cent

sodium carbonate; but the trade does not express it, as a rule,

that wey. They buy the soda ash on an alkalinity basis. You
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caueggﬁgg;‘tho alkalinity into carbonates, if you wi h LO,_;%ggé(
express it in that term; but I would say it would be approx
mately 99 per cent.

&. Did you break down those impurities into percentage
when you made these tests?

A. ¥e know what the impurities in the ash were. /e made
an adalysis right aiong in the plant and on the shipments both.
4and those records would be available?

Avcies sswatihave tHems

1. At the plant? A. 'Yes. —Of "course, I ‘can.tell
you approximately what the impurities were.

. Do you mean the type of impuritiles? e S

2., Will you tell us what they were?

A. Well, the main impurities in that ash were silicate,
sulphates - sodiwa sulphates, and borax.

&. Would there be any potash in that?

A. 1Jo. The potash would be so low that we never bothered
to hunt for potash.

J. In connection withthe testimoeny of, sl beilieve. 57,2
per cent for your soda na,0 content, was that the same for
both dense and light ash?

A, More or less.

Q. It did vary some? A, There wasn't --. When ydu
melted it, you didn't change the impurities any to speak of,

except that there existed some organic matter in the light

ash ﬁQ -- inveryminute guantities; and such organic mﬁttff;g%g;g
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would be destroyed by the high heat in the dense ash furnaces;
S . 4
but sometimes we took light esh and instead of feeding straight

bicarbonate into the ash furnaces, we actually fed the lignt

9 s . z : ; O /.
ash and converted it into dense ash. Due to the change lﬂlgngé

powithing

the composition at the tlmeifGQat {léstroyed these impuritlées,
Jhe sulphates, the silicate, and so forth, e meF dedisged

2. Did you mention the thickness of the crystal body at sy
each of the wells that you have indicated on the map marked
Appendix M"A"?

A. I told you here in the testimony.

e ¥

2+ You nentioned two feet, I believe, for one or two of

]

ct
F5'
(@]

wells; but I don't remember whether you indicated the depth
of eech well,

A, Well, since I have been here, I told you -- I have
already stated this this morning, that at 16 and 17, the depth
of the salt was approximately three and a half to tour: foek:
but that No. 8 was approximately eighteen inches to two feet.

Q. I believe you stated yesterday that at those points
you didn't know the exact depth of the body beneath that
crystalline cake?

4., What body do you mean?

Q. I believe you stated there was mud.

A, Yes, my opinion is that it is hundreds of feet, because
right here is a well that I told you - I have been through

that - that goes down 500 Teet in the mud.

2. That 1s near the area you have marked with the line ang

/

K

s

.
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SAERND A, Yes, it is right in here; so I presume that
the depth of the mud in Owens Lake is very great; and T don't
know of anyone who has determined the depth of it.

Q. Did your wells ever pump any nmud?

A o,
C. Did you use a filter of some sort to keep it out?

Vo. I told you yesterday that these two wells had a

[
¥
°
¥

casing; and they went down below, and the brine flowed into the

bottom in those wells.

Q. Will you explain, if there is mud below the crystalline
cake, whether there is any strata in which there is pure brine
as ‘distinguished from mud?

A, No, sir, not that I know of anywhere in the lake.

0. So that the wells drew from this lake of mud - the brine
flowed in without the mud following it?

A, It didn't drew from the layer of mud. It drew from the
salt body.

Q. Above it? A, Lying above, yes.
Q. Lying above? BSOS

Q. Then your No. 8 was less than 2 feet in depth above the

surface? A. Yes, and it had ditches dug out from it so
that the brine would seep into those ditches and run into the
well.

@, Is that true of 16 end 17 &alsof?

A. Not when I went there; but later on, this same spring,

as I remember, I dug a long ditch out from 17 here, because
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there is a strong tendency, as I testified yesterday, for these

wells to deteriorate in the amount and quantity of prine thab
would flow into them during cold weather; and the reason Ior
that drop in the quantity of brine available was due to the
fact that when cold weather comes along, part of your sodium
carbonate content is crystallized out of the brine as deka-
hydrate of soda or sal soda, thereby taking out part of the

alkalinity of the brine; and since dekahydrate carries ten

-3
L

waters of crystallization with it, it takes out a great deal ©
the water constituent of the brine, so it not only reduces the
alkalinity, but also the gquantity of the brine avallable; and
by digging ditches out here, we helped increase that --

Q. Quantity of brine?

A. Duantity of the brine of lower alkalinity. Now, I was
not setisfied with the situation as I found it out there; so
that is the reaeson why one of the first things that I did was

to ask Mr. Pedder's permission, as I have stated before, to see
A 3 b ]

“Lr Al

whether there was in Owens Leke a better supply of brine ﬁ%ﬁéﬁg
<$he. existing -- during cold weather. .
0. Now, when you went in January of 1934, in what months
of the year were they pumping?
A. How is that?
0. Tn what months of the year were they pumping?
A. Oh, pumping all the -- every month of the year.

0. Including the summer months? A, Oh, yes.

Pumped brine from here right to this'plant, every month of the

74

Ve,

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuaLAs 0118



o

10
13k
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

year; practically every month of the year.

MR, PEDDER: lfay I say something off the record?

MR. MOORE: Yes,

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE: Q. Did you in January, 1934, or shortly there-
after, notice any springs or artesian wells in and about the

well locetions that you have indicated on the map?

bottom of the lake, why, I don't know of them; and they don't
show on the surface. If they exist in the lake, they are in
the main portion of the body of the lake.

Q. And the artesian wells -- -

VL)

A. There are wells located - I should say it is in this
section 18. Thet is the one I have referred to here (indicat-
ing on map).

@. That is, in Township 17 South, Range 38 East?

A. Yes, right here.

oy
°

). Is that the well you referred to as going down 500 feet?

A. That is what I have been told. I only know that by
hearsay, as to the depth of it. It just runs all the time.

3. That is the only one that you know of?

A. Why, if you are interested in it, I know approximately
where it is. |

G. Do you know what capacity it has in second feet?

A. No, I don't, It just runs out onto the surface, and

runs out into the lake. It would be about like this, I never

HART & HART
OFFICIAL BUPERIOR COURY SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHARCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DQuaLAs 0118




162

® =N o

10
11
12
13
14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

94

made any use of it.

Q. Now, you made an investigation in 1934 of these condi-
tions of brine by putting down 22 test wells.

e WAL
Q% Did ‘you,note? A, Yes.
N, Will you state what you did in that connection?
A, Well, we started from the farthest point we had out he
A That is, at Nos -17% A, At No. 17, yes; and we

ran along & straight line in a south --

/

I‘e -

Q. Westerly direction? A, Westerly direction out %O -

A, Yes, Now, the reason we started to run the prospect
out in this direction was that the contour map indicated that
this was the lowest point in Owens Lake where there was any
salt deposited therein; and, therefore, that the depth of the

salt body should be greater at that point. So we headed

directly for the center of that locality. Also the old soda

ash plant located in the south end of the lake had scme wells
in this locality, too.

Q. Will you mark those wells by red pencil, please?

A, AIAERI ghit's I will mark it approximately.

(Witness does as requested.)

Q. Do you know the name of the plant?

A. This is the Inyo Chemical Company.
Q. Will you mark those wells by an "I. C." in red peneil,

the four of them together; and will you mark in green the

Q. Will you show that rumming by the green pencil, please®

Lp
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prospect lime "PR. L"2

(WVitness does as requested.)

A. Well, after, in reaching this point, we turned this
prospect line; and now I can only give it to you approxinately .
Q. That will be all right.

A Because '—-

¢. This is only approximate, anyway.

A. Then we turned --

<. Due north? 4. That line due north; and at some points

n this section

=t

in here, - now, I can't remember whether it is
or this section - but I will indicate from the line some

laterals more or less like that. Now, we put a hole down

=

starting from No. 17 every 3,000 feet -- a hole gpproximately
three or four feet square, and dug clear down to the bottom of
the lake; and we had to --

Q. Vhen you say to the bottom, do you mean to the sand?
R Po ithiesmuds
QL iTo. thesmud® A. Yes, through the salt body;
and we had --
Q. Do you want to draw one of those in blue, just to
indicate 1it?

(Witness does as requested.)

A, Those are located 3,000 feet apart.

Q. Will you mark that "T. W."? A, What?

0. Those test wells, mark them "T. UW." A Well ~thet

is only two of them.
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&. Yes.

(Witness does as requested.)

THE WITNESS: They were all the way out to here.

MR. HMOORE: . Well, I understend, but how far was it out
to the Tarthest point on your southwesterly lateral, or the --

A, I would say it is about 40,000 feet,

Q. 40,000 feet? A. That is approximate.

2. How far -- A. And you can check up my
figures, if you want, by seeing how far this section goes; bud,
as I remember it, it is close to 40,000 feet.

Q. How far in a northerly direction?

A, I told you without having a map here, I can't remember
just where we stopped it; but in a general way, this is -- of
course, I have got records of all this, and we have got a
record of every hole we put down, as far as that is concerned,
and how much flow there was, and found out what the alkalinity

there was, and what dateitwesputdownNaturally, I have that; but

I cen't remember it. I don't have it with me, because I didn!

(i)

expect you were going to ask me about it.

Q. Altogether you put dovwmn 22°% A Yesh
Q. Along those two lines? Sy WSR-S
started in around the 1lst of February, and we quit around the
lst of April, as I remember it, or sometime in March; but we
put them down as feast as we could -- as Tast as it was possible
to do with the equipment that we had.

Q. aAfter you made these tests, what did you do with respect

v
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to putting down new wells for pumping purposes?

A. Vlell, of course, we found that when the brine was maybe
five or six or seven down here, it was as nigh --

MR, FERGUSON: Wait a minute. Vhen you say "down here,"
you mean in wells 16 or 17°?

Be0 18 oTTLT, The cuantity of flow had receded -- we found
out that in this viecinity -- thet is, at the end of this south-
western line, that the alkalinities were up around 10, and as
high as 11 to 12; and that the flow of brine was much greater.
In other words, it was & superior type of brine existing out

there during the cold weather.

MR. ILIOORL: &. And again when you use the term "10 or 11
or 12 per cent," that is in relation to the nag0 or sodium
carbonate? &. We always speak of alkalinity as na,C. Now,

I might tell you that is not exactly the percentage. It is
expressed in grams per deciliter. So unless otherwise
specified, when we speak of the alkalinity of liguids, we are
expressing that alkaelinity in terms of grams per deciliter;
and you can obtain the actual per cent by weight from that
by dividing byithe specific gravity of the brine, which is 1.33.
Q. Was that increase in the elkalinity also true in your
northerly prospect line? Did you rind that same condition
to exist?
A. wWell, as we ran out this way, we naturally -- naturally,
it got shallower.

,. As you got further north? £, Yes; as I

]
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told you, this is the deepest, see

shallower again; and, as a general

to drop. However,

by

started to get warm.
&. That would be in

A. I ©told you about

around there is wien we

the approximate figure, because I haven't got my

the lake gets warmer,
the time, even in here

that would be going up

Tl JEE

the time we

about wvhat
around the

stopped.,

the alkalinity goes

and 17, by that time

cetting

<

; so it started
rule, the alkalinity

got througn, the weath

month?

lst of April; somewher

Now, I would have To &

at b

o

o

up again; and a

here, because as it warms up the

dekahydrate which was thrown out goes back into solution

and adds to the quantity of

The one thing that --

dekahydrate sodium carbonate carries waters of

and it melts with its

95 degreesi; so if it were just there by itself
wasn't any other brine at the time,

whenever it reached such a temperature; and it would turn ip};%g

OWIlL

ava

I might stop and explain

ilable brine in

here that

crystalliz

and there

it would turn into a

=

e_‘—q

2]
ive

&

[0}

33

probably

the salt body.

this

etion,

water of crystallization at about

liguid

A

salt body as a liguid or solid, depending upon the temperature
3 p (S>] Tl e °

r

3. Will you mark the northerly prospect line &as "

in the same way as the other?

A

R

It is all one prospect line.

0. (Continuing) -- with tais green pencil,

L., Where do you want that marked?

L.l'.'
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Q. Anywhere along the northerly prospect line. ifark it
BTl Ty )

(Witness does as requested.)

@ ALl Trd ghite Thank you. Now, subsequent to the making

of these test holes or wells, what wells did you put in, and

at what times? A, Subseguent to this?
Q. Yes. A, You mean after we made that --

v

¢. As I understand you, those -were purely test holes?

.A.. YeSo

(. Did you ever put eny wells in at any time afterwards

v

along that same location? A, Yesi'we ddid.
& . When were those put in? 4., They were put in in the

spring, in about January or February, 1935.

Q. And how many of those were put in? A, Two.
€. Will you indicate on the map with this orange pencil the

location of those two?

(Witness does as requested.)

. Will you draw a line end mark those 1935 Wells"?

(Witness does as reguested.)

(. £nd that is shown at approximately the lowest point -
near the lowest point of your southwesterly prospect line?

A, Well, that isn't clear.

MR. FERGUSOW: You mean the most southerly point?

MR, MOORE: I mean the southerly point of your south-
westerly prospect line.

A, It is lccated near there. The most southerly hole was
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gbout there as I have indicated, &approximately.
Q. Well, I believe my statement was that it was near the

most southerly --

A. You said at the lowest. T didn't know what you meant

. . o > . +

by "the lowest." I presume what you did meean was abt the polnt
at which the old lake bottom was -- had its lowest point. The

surface, however, of the lake from here to here is almost level;

but the body underneath slopes from -- (witness ind cating)

il

Q. Thet is, from well 17 to your 1935 well, the surface of

it is almost level?
AL ithe Sbop- yos:
Q. Whaich-of-itisis. on a slant?
A. The mud bottomn.
%,. The mud bottom? #. Yes, that is true.

0. Now, these two wells that you have just drawn as the
1935 wells were operated under the old process, were they?

A. Yes, they were started up about the lst of april -- I
think about the 2nd or 3rd of april - at least, one of them -
if not both of them - in 1935; end just a few days -- within
two or three dsys after that was the first time the city turned
the water into the lake and ran it for a period of a week or
ten days.

G . And did it flood those two wells?

A. No, sir, it didn‘'t; but it flooded these Wells, and it

washed out --

Q. When you refer to"these," you meen 16 and 17?2

o e
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A. Yes; and if we had not had these wells in service, then

we would have had to shut down; but luckily we just started
these up, so it did not interfere with the operation of the
old plant, because it did not reach up nere; but it flooded in
here; and we had started to construct a roed out here --

0. Do you mean along the southwesterly --

A. Yes.

0. (Continuing) -- prospect line?

A, Yes. We spent some time in putting a road up there,
vhich was made by piling up of salt. When this flooding ceame
on here, of course, it reached up into here, and very rapidly
dissolved away that road, so we gave up all idea of trying to
put a road across the lake in that place ageain with salt.

n. Did the pipe line from the 1935 wells follow generally
the southwesterly prospect line?

Ar Yes: génerally it follows right along this line. We
went down the shortest distance here. as & matter of fact,

I started to follow out to here, and then later after I got
out this far, then I changed my mind and swung it down this way
a little bit.

Q. A little more southerly of the prospect line?

A. Yes, because we didn't heve any exact survey of tnis.
That is, we hadn‘®t gone over it with an instrument; but we knew
approximately where we were; end I was trying to center this

here in the center of the low area here in the deepest part of

the leke.

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCYRY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuaGLAs O118




@ =

10
1L
12

13

14
15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

102

0. Did the pipe line from the 1935 wells connect upD with
the pipe line already in existence at well 177

A. Yes, and these wells were still hooked on the line and
pumping.

Qo 0On 6 and. 7 ARYesh

0., Did you use eny heaters in the old process there in com-

v

nection with these wells? A, Not that spring.
§. Not the spring of 193567 £, NO.
Q. But at any time -- A. It was not necessary to us§

heaters at that time.
). Well, did you have heeters there for use at that time
A. Not when we first constructed the wells. We simply
put the wells down there. It was in ﬁhe spring of the year,
and there was no reason to. It wasn't cold enough to require
any heaters.
Q. But prior to the adoption of the new process, did you
use hesters at any time in those new wells?
A. I will have to find out to be sure whether we put the
heaters in before we shut down the old plant or afterwards.
I don't remember that. I will have to search around and see
if I can find the date. 1 have some records here. Two brine
heaters were installed on No. 1 and 2 lake wells; and a third

pump was also installed during the fall of 1935.

Q. You say a third pump. At winat location was the third6

/o
pump located? A, No. 3 pump was one from old HO.‘&ﬁ’well,Ei

and after remodeling the pump, adding additional stages to it,

D4
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it wes installed near Jo. 1 and 2 wells as a part of the regulal
lake punping system.

Q. Let me see. Does this indicate another well?

A. Wo. 3, T just told you we put the pump here, and added

two more stages to it, and installed it here as the No. 3.

&+ That was during what time?

A. You have thet in the record there. That same fall, why,
we insulated this pipe line.

3. Will you indicate the two orange wells by putting in the
numbers "1" and "2," please; and the other one by "No. 3," the
one in green®

(Witness does as requested.)

Q. Thank you. These are all of the wells that you installed
prior to the adoption of the new process - the three that you
have just indicated? A, We had two more, but I will
have to check up and see just when they were --. I am trying
to find.out when the old plant --. Have you got a record there
of when the old plant was shut down? Has that been given to
you?

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: Then you know now whether we had brine

heeters before we shut down the old plant. You asked that a

little while ago.
(Unreported discussion.)
THE WITNESS: Well, then, I would say during the winter of-

part of the winter of 1936, in January and February, and so
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1| forth, we operated the brine heaters to heat the brine, and

2| Dbrought it into the old plant.
3 Graeilin F19067 4. That would be my opinion.
@ 4 . Wouldn't you say that with relation to April of 1936,
5| wyou put in the two other wells you referred to? You have
8| indicated there wells No. 1, 2 and 3. Now, I understood you
7| to say that you also installed two more wells before you
8| finished your operations under the old plant. Is that correct?
9 A ANo g T didntd isSayathiabs I said we have installed two

10| eadditional wells to supply the new plant; but I didn't know

11| when they were installed.

174 12 i« Oh, well, I misunderstoocd you.
13 i, We had plenty already to supply the old plant.
P 14 (Unreported discussion.)
15 G . Do you rate these wells by capacity of the pumping of
1¢| the brine? A. No, they all have the same capacity.
17 Q. What is that? A, Well, the wells there --

r

SO A BT S

bav]

18| all the lake wells located here and known as 1,
19| are Layne Bowler 8 stage deep well type pumps, driven with

20! 25 horsepower General pklectric motors, with automatic starters,
21| which take care of starting the pumps and shutting them off

22| in case the power goes off,. They are also equipped with one
23 gallon automatic oiling devices, which shut the oll off when

24| the power goes off, and turns the oil on when the powers goes

. 25| on. The cepacity of such & pump varies, as it does with all

26| similar pumps, with the pressure against which i1t is operating;
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and that is generally by what is known as the characteristic
curve of the pump. In this case, we not only have the charac-
teristic curve furnisied by the manufacturer, but after these
1 and 2 wells were put in, we asked the manufacturer to corne
out to our plant and bring a man with him, because we wanted
him with us to make an actual characteristic curve of these
pumps pumping through the line from the lake to the plant,
which was done, by having a receiving tank placed here, and
checking the pump as against various pressures out of the lake;
and it was found that the pumping capacity was somewhat greater
than the manufacturer's guareantee. L tell you that so that
if you want to get in touch with the manufacturer, why, you
can do that. He can give you all that.

Q. The wells 4 and 5 that you referred to, you have not
indicated on the map, is that correct?

A. Yes., I am telling you all the pumps are the same.

Q. Do you have any records there which would show the
gallons per minute that they pumped under various combinations,
or do you have such records?

A. Yes. This is something that you will have to get a

little later when you get to the new plant, as To how much OUEHZEEQ

pumping capacity is. However, I have a -- this is taken upon
the characteristic curve, and expresses it in gauge pressure
of pounds per square inch, and the gallons per minute of brine
pumped with those pumps. And so with two pumps operating --

I haven't it indicated here -- but I will say that the capacity
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‘is at least 500 gallons; 250 gallons apiece out of them.

Q. I will look at that for a minute, please., Off the
record.,

(Unreported discussion.)

A. Here is one copy of the characteristic curve of those
pumps .

MR. FERGUSON: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: Q. What was the normal operating capsacity of
the old plant with the wells 1, 2 and 3, as well as the wells
IHreil 7 and "84 A. About 90 tons a day. You mentioned 16.

We took the pump out of 16 and put it on' 3, and used 1t there;
and that was no longer pumped; but we did maintain this No. 17
for some time to come - until after we shut down the old plant.

Q. And this amount of 90 tons a day was sub ject to the
demands of the market? B Ye sy

Q. #nd other factors of that type? HoEVess

Q. Were the changes in the wells and pipe lines or addi-
tions that you have indicated on the map the only ones that were
made prior to the introduction of the new process and the
building of the new plant?

4, Well, I can't answer that as you probably would like to
heve me, because the development of the new process and the
building of the eventual final plant covered a period of two
or three years, As e matter of fact, you might say that at—7E4

1935
least part of it dates from all of 193&—efter we completed this
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line and we ran some of this brine in the fall, during Octobel
end ilovember, into the same old vats that were down west of the
plant, and made some 12,000 or 15,000 tons of dekahydrate, to

a depth of some two or three feet there, as a demonstration of
our actual ability to make dekahydrate crystals from the lake
brine, as a demonstration to the people who had put up money
for such a thing, having to be convinced that you could do vhat

S e

you think you could do; so it really dates from tha

o

L me S Ol

But if you want me to stop here and go into the development of

3

the new process, we can do it; but it is going to cover the

i«

0]

proposition of having to do the work on a laboratory scale, |
and then on a test scale, and then on more or less of a small
pilot scale, demonstrating the adaptability of the equipment,
the capacity of the equipment; and then on the 50 ton scale,

and then finally increasing it, after we were absolutely

Q

ertein of everything, to a 100 .ton scale. Now, that took
time; and I can't Jjust answer your question right offhand on

it, see; because, I say, with these three pumps still in opera-
) ) ) J s = B L

: : _ 1935 _ d/é
tion in the feall of 1926, we actually started the demonstratich |

of the fundamental principle of meaking dekahydrate in vats to
supply that new process.

J. Well, I don't think you understood my question, 1iy
question was whether prior to the commencement of these varidus
activities you have just mentioned, did you meke any other
changes in your pipe lines and wells than those that you have

aglready indicated on tie map? 48 I understand, you used the

OF
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1 saie wells and pipe lines that you have indicated on the iiap,

2 and started your demonstration of the dekahydrate Lrocess;/ﬁngﬁ
S R L X UK

3 As Yes, 1n the fall of 566.

. 4 &. Prior to the fall of 1936, did you mske any other addi-
5| tions to or changes in your pipe line and wells other than tThos§
(3] indicated on the map?
i A. Well, I mentioned one thing, end I think you will find
8| it in the record, but I doubt if you hesrd it; and that was

9 that we insulated this line.

10 Qv Well <Isdidnt t-Hear “thak:. AL No.

11 §. When was that? A, This gentleman has it in

et hesrecord .

13 ;. Would you mind repeating for me when you insulated the
. 14| pipe line, and what portions of it you insulated?

15 A. Well, I had better check on some of this, The pipe line

16| was insulated in the Tell of 19355.

17 Q. Was that entire portion used, that was insulated?
18 A. The insulation of the pipe line wes completed December

19| 28th, 1935; and the part insuleted weas approximately -- I will
00! say 45,000 feet, and included &ll of the pipe line from the
23 | old No. 17 well out to No. 1 well; and a portion of the pipe

29 line between No. 17 well and lo. 8 well. Now, one thiing you

180 03| have neglected to ask me is the size of this pipe line out here.
24 Q. Well, we are interested in that. Will you give that to

& o5 | us? A. Yes. It is-s-or 10 inch -- I think it is

26 10-5/8 inches inside diageter. 1 don't remember the specifica-
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tions exactly; but about 10-1/2 inch dnside diemeter.
4. whet form of insulation was used in 19357

4. Rudeeed special -- it is made by the Plant Rubber &

: s ; Jeneche ol '
Asbestos Company. Lt 1s magne51%,gox1ae];ﬂﬁ cement plp?//ﬁﬁﬁvﬁ
covering.

When were the wells No. 4 end 5 put in?

A, Well, as near as I can recollect, the two additional
. o . Lra 1] = AL o =z « amd
wells were put in during 1936; the summer and fall of 1986; and
they were ready for operation late in the fall of 1936.

3. Would you mark -- A, And the additional hegters

were put in.

Q. Would you indicate those with this purple pencil on the

map?
(Witness does as requested.)

S

THE WITNESS: A, How, No., =--. Tnis continued when you
flooded us here the last time.

1R, MOORE: Q. You refer to what period?

A, Well, I don't know, Take this off the record,

(Unreported discussion.)

Q. After you put in wells 4 and 5, were there any wells

put in prior to February of 19377 A Wells?
Q. Wells. Are these all of the wells?

A. That is all of the wells there were; but there was an
edditional pump.
;. When was that put in? A, That was put in the same

e

faliof 1906,
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=« AL the locetion of wells 4 and 5¢%

A. No, sir. Near the location of old No. 8.

(,. Is that what you referred to before as the booster pPumD?

A, Yes. Do you want the details of that?

Q. No, I don't:think se.. OFff the mwecord.

(Unreported discussion.)

Q. State as generally as possible the development of tie
new process which was in use in 1937, at the time of the flood-
ing. A. All right. As previously
explained, the old process, we started with the brine containing

sod ium carboneate. We went to the expense of burning limestone

and subsequently spending additionel money either in dense
ash furnaces or in light ash furnaces, in driving off this CO
that we had just finished putting in; so even a layman would
think of the idea that if you could avoid a step that was
apparently so useless as that, and produce the carbonate
directly from the brine without the necessity of dealing with
carbon dioxide gas, you would be making a step forward, and
probably would be lowering the cost of production; end that
is the thought that occurred to us, and led us to seek ways and
means of accomplishing such a result. So I would s&y that
along about the middle part of 1934, we started to experiment

along the lines above mentioned; and we early discovered that

if you took lake brine, particularly leke brine of good alka-
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linity, and cooled it, a crystallization of dekahydrate took

W

lace. As a matter of fact, this crystallization of dekehydrat

e

is something that had been observed taking place in the wells
that we put dovn; and, as I have indicated heretofore in this
record, it takes place in the whole lake body during the winter-
time. It is a well known and common practice to purify any
particular salt by crystallization. In other words, when you
cause crystallization of a particular compound to take place

out of the solution it tends to exclude impurities. That holds
true not only of sodium carbonate, but nearly everything. SO

it appeared that not only could you make an improvement as

i

f

far as cost was concerned; but when you caused this crystalliz

oy
=

tion to take place, you would be eliminating most of the impurity
in the mother liquor obtained from that crystallization. Then
the problem was to take the dekahydrate so obtained and convert
it into soda ash having the desired chemical and physical
characteristics. So all of these things which 1 have mentioned
were investigated, you might say, on a beaker sceale in the
laboratory with encouraging results.

Q. All right. What weas your next step?

A. As I have stated before, we had observed dekahydrate
forming out in the lake. As a matter of fact, when we dug
these prospecting wells, we discovered in places very large
dekahydrate», 2054 existing in the salt body thet had 42%%?
crystallized through the salt body. The next step then waé. :

to build a small test plant.
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0. When was that commenced?

A. I think it was commenced in the feall of 1934; becausc at
Christmas time, during quite a cold spell we had there, we
punmped quite a good deal of brine into wooden tanks that we

had in this test plant, and allowed it to cool there to make

dekahvdrate crystals in considerable quantities. 1 mean
o 1

hundreds of pounds of it. And we took this dekahydrate crystal,

and we had made certain apparatus for processing it over int0/€§};
=
soda ash; and we tried it out on &,scale there, and all of whicn
continued to look encouraging.
Q. How long did you operate your test plant?
A, Well, I don't remember. Off and on we did work there.

Maybe for a period of two or three or four months, or so. And
then later we went in tliere, and one of the pieces of machinery
which we built was such that we could build a unit of commer-
cial size to try it out; and we made demonstrations ol
sort from time to time; and it actually stayed there for a
couple of years before it was finally torn down to make way for
a new plant.

Well, this demonstretion plent then went from, say, the

Ny

fall of '34 to the fall of '36 before you actually started the
construction of the commercial plant?

A. No, I didn't say that.,

Q. You said approximately two years?

A, I say it stood there around that time. =4as I stated

before, the results obtained there were still encouraging; so it
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was determined to try that out on a still larger scale ;
had an old plant standing there. It wasn't, anyway,
with the old soda ash plant; but it did have some equipment
8 One of the things it had in it was a rotary drier and a
couple of steam boilers, and a pretty good sized building.
first step necessary in the process was to find sone pfactica

means of taking this solid dekaliydrate and heating it up to

WL zﬁ 7 . .
point where it would melt in its waters'Serystslst and TLAT AP

and we
connected

in

e

required heating -~ it required a supply of heat. So we car=

ried on some experiments in this rotary drier that existed in

this plant, the old plant; {he building-ofe—~precefOr LIv, SNt

Dk ‘ Sldas
equipping the 1nte'°1ovA”L rangene nts swehwes To" _rland_'_lngﬁ--; =
E&\ the meantime we -- as I told you before, we had previous&?vm

guite a tonnage of crystal dekahydrate in what we called vat /%5

No. 12 west of the plant; so using some of that, we carried on

;.J
ct
B
LJ
0
o)
0]
153
w

experiments on that phase of the process of melting
hydrate in a rotary furnace.
%, That was located in the old plant you referred to?

es. ind we installed other equipment in that plant,

<

A,
including a precipitator for precipitating a monohydrate and
a centrifugal for separating the crystals.

When you say'separate the crystals," you mean from

e

both -- A The monohydrates. At this point, the
process developed in two ways: One possible way of operatin

wes to take this melted dekahydrate solution at a temperature

of around 80 or 90 degrees and to add sodium chloride in the

g
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proper piece of equipment called the precipitator, wnlcCl caus

the precipitation of sodium monohydrate. Instead of Laving
0

ten waters of gives#rs, it only has one water of

thereby eliminating nine waters <ﬁ§2ﬁ£ggggzﬁucmd getting mono- -
hydrate in definite erystel form. Then, with this monohydrate
obtained -- separated from its mother liquor, was centrifuged
and put through a rotary celciner at relatively low temperature
to drive off this one water of crystals.

. What happened to the mother liquor?

A. The mother liquor in that case was thrown back in the

" 4. Now, you got it down to one water driven off. Now,

what is -- A, VWhen you drive off that one water
crystals in the calcining, you have soda ash.

Q.  Is that in the: light or dense Torm?

A.~Thet is in the dense form. That 1s another aivantage,
QifEcouTSEs

G. You did not make any light ash under the new process,
then? A. No, not what would be generally known as
light ash.

Q. Now, you said that was the second thing that happened.

4, I said that was one alternative, Now, the other alternd
tive of converting this melted dekahydrate into monohydrate is
to cause the evaporation of a certain portion of the water to
take place; and that can be done in this so-called rotary brine

heater by simply slowing up the flow and applying more heat, o

?&/‘T

L -
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which comgs e tihe salt-as—Iicuid: 42%2%( //(ﬁb
o g N ; [
0. NaCl that you referred to? antaes, hecaly

the discharge coming from the rotary is the mother liguor cOI-~
taining monohydrate crystals, which can then be separated and
calcined the same as the previous mono crystels, and a

soda ash -of the dense variety produced.

0. You used the word centrifuged in the separation of ©The
crystals from the mother liquor.

A. Yes., lfow, in case you are operating this second method
then the mother liquor is turned basck. Instead of being thrown
away, is turned back to the brine heater; and if we have a goodg
grade of dekahydrate to begin with, the only mother liguor
that is lost is that portion which is discharged from the
centrifugal, and which is relatively a small part; and that is
sufficient to carry away any impurities occurring in the deka-
hydrate. On the other hand, if the dekahydrate happens tTo

be too high in sulphates, then 1t is necessary to discar

Qs

a

)

ine

F

part of this mother liguor without returning it to The b1
heaters; and which means, of course, that you would use more
tons of deka to produce one ton of ash than you would if this
sulphate content is at a desirable point.

&+ How long did you use this old plant in this manner?

A, Well, as a matter of faect, I say we stafted out here as
I described it to you; and then we decided that we would try
it out on a continuous 50 ton a day scale,

Q. The same old plant?

Ll

W
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4. Well, with certain additions.
Q. Now, when were those additions started?

A. Well, I will have to check up on that. What we decided
to do was -- in the first place, to shut down the old carbonat-
ing plent as a means of demonstrating this new process to the
satisfaction of everybody, and that we would put in this new
plant what machinery was necessary at that point; and then we
would utilize in the shut-dovm old plant what machinery was
available over there that could be used in this 50 ton demon-
stration, which machinery was the light ash furnace, which could
be used as a calciner and the screen that was installed there
for screening the ash after it had been produced, and the
bageging equipment and shipping equipment, and so forth, which

weas there; the plan being to produce the crystels in this new

M
(4]
i
)
(9]

plant up to the point where they were in the form of monohydrat

'_Ic

%+ Now, again I ask you whether in this 50 ton plant that
you are talking about now you used the first or second process?
The first one you had --

A Well  we used ==

e With the addition of the cld --

i, We used the first process, but we still carried the

other -- we carried on the other second procedure to demon-/ﬁéQ9§
strate its feasibility on a big scale as well =< e~ most of£%%?<
production, however, was made with the use of salt. Now, I

sterted to tell you -- I went to get this clear before you ask

me a question: We carried on this new operation in this new
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plent up to the point where it was monohydrate crystals.
we put the monohydrate crystals in tram cars and trammed then
over to the old plant, where we calcined them and shipped the
materiel frowm there.

N. You have used the words "old plant," I think, in Two
different connections.

oo VASYED

MR, MOORE; Let us take this off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

IMR. 1IOORE: Let the record show that in red pencil the
witness has indicated to the north of the old process plant
marked with the letter "P", enother old building, which he has
referred to also as an old plant, and which he will mark --

A, And that is part of the new plant now.

%. Which you have marked -- will you mark it with an
"N.. P.,". the: new-splant?

(Witness does as requested.)

Q. Will you check your records and see how long you
operated on this 50 tons a day?

A. I don't know as I have got it marked here as to how lon
we operated that.

(Unreported discussion.)

. What is the temperature of the salt precipitator?

A, Between 80 and 90 degrees centigreade.

Do you have a record somewhere as to the length of time?

A, T don't think I have,
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@ . Of the 50 ton operatioen?

- Q T 1 . o i - AnmntT
A, I will see what I have got with me down there. I aoOonl'v
remember of that. If you gave me a list of all these questlons

that you wanted a week or two ago, then I could have dug all
these answers up for you; but to expect me to have then right
at my fingertips, all the answers, it is impossible. I haven't
got it.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORL: Q. Please give the date of the commencement

o

of the work of installing the monohydrate pilot plant?

A, Starting fﬁézzﬁai changes in the old carbonating vlant/dfﬁvg

and utilizing the old light ash burners
the " 0ld screen plant located in the old carbonating plant --

Q. That was done in February; of 1937°%

A. No, wait a minute. JAnd the loading bin and minor equip-
ment located in the mono-pilot plent. Work on this construc-
tion was started February 28th, 1936; and was ready for opera-
tion in June, 1936. Does that make it clear?

Q. I think that gives it a "little bit better. There was
some work on the mono-pilot plant prior to February, 19356¢%

A. Yes, I have described all that to you already. NG S S
awful.ly hard for you to follow this.

Q. Naturally, it would be, because I am not familiar with
the plants.

A. Take this off the record.

(Unreported discussion. Record read by reporter.)

P
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IfR. LMOORE: Q. What work was done with respect to the new
process starting in June, 19369

#. Well, we operated about three months - part of June,

July, august and part of September, at the rate of approximetely

50 tons per day, using i&et concentrated brine as a feed to 567
the brine heater in the mono test plant, or pilot plant -- mOROA
pilot plant, This brine heater, however, that has just been
mentioned is not the same rotary drier previously mentioned;
but is a new rotary brine heater installed just outside of the
pilot plant building.

0. And when was that installed?

A. And the purpose --

Q. Pardon me? A, Hor the purpose of heatin
Q. Wnen was that installed? @, Well, T believe it was in-
stalled as a part of that Februery 28th program, when we were
fixing this whole thing up. That is my recollection.

MR, MOORE: Shall we leave off at this time, and come back
abhasel clock?

MR, FERGUSON: All right.

(Thereupon an adjournment was taken until 2 o'clock P, M.,
Tuesday, October 3rd, 1939, and by consent of counsel to be

resumed at the same place.)

N

R Ny
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Room 514 Financial Center Building, San Francisco, calif.,
Tuesdays October Std:, 193958 200N GE N,
(Pursuant to the foregoing ad journment, depositions in the
cbove-entitled cause were resumed, there being the same appear-
snces as heretofore indicated.)

G. A, KEEP,

recalled, having been previously sworn, testified as follows:
5 l. o 5

EXAMINATION BY MR. MOORE (Resumed)

MR, MOCRIE: ¢, Ir. Keep, when did you start the production
of soda ash under the new process on the 100 tons a day basis?
MR, FERGUSON: Well, I think --

A. The new mono plant designed for production of 100 tons a
day was started about the middle of January, 1938. That is,
the wheels were first turned over in it.

MR. MOORE: Q. So that except for such interruptions as
might take place because of flooding or anything of that sort,
you ran your 50 ton plant up until January, of 19387

A, We ran it at times.

Q. That is what I said: Subject to interruptions --

A. Not all the time.

0. (Continuing) -- for various causes? . Yesi,

Upon what do you base your estimate of the capacity of
the plant - or perhaps I had better say: On what facts do you

base your statement that it has a 100 tons per day capacity?
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A. Well, in the 50 ton plant we had set up commercial appard-
tus for each step in the process, and had determined the
capacity of such ecquipment. For instance, if we take the
brine heaters, we had operated with one sixz foot brine heater,
end we knew that we were able to put through a certain tonnage.

As a matter of fact, when we designed the 100 ton plent, I was

asked to provide sufficient brine heater capacity forzgéH%%

S5y,

Tty

-

tons capacity, which was the basis for the dasign»<é&J2

of that part of the plant. So we installed two new brine | s
heeters; the hesters neing o six foofi hesfer in diameters—and é&f

<we were nine feet in diameter. Uhen we operated the new mono
plant using dekahydrate crystals to feed it, we only operated
two of these three brine heaters; the origindl six Toot
diameter one, and one nine foot diameter; and under those condi-
fions, we put through and produced 75 tons a day of ash without
using the additional nine foot one. It was not desirable Tor
us to start that one up. As a matter of fact, I was only
asked to produce 50 tons a day; but we wanted to find out what
the plant was capable of; and on that basis, why, it appeared
that we had sample capacity there for 125 tons a day. We put
in an additional centrifugal, knowing from previous experience
what the capacity of the first one was. We could put through
100 tons a day on those two without any difficulty. I think
we could have averaged better than 100 tons a day.

0. Do I understand that you are referring to a process

whereby you added the sodium chloride?
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ie No, mno, we did not use sodium chloride.

0. On the 100 ton basis?

£#. Ye are using, you might say, the evaporative process
where we use no sodium chloride.

9. Since January of 1938, that was true - that you used
no sodium chloride? A, No, we didn't. The brine

heating capacity of that other process would be very much

higher than 125 tons a day;yg?Xkadecided to operate on tﬂfﬁiﬁhﬁ

evaporative type rather than the salt type that I described
this morning to you.

@ . These brine heaters were at the wells themselves?

» A. Oh, no, they are right in the plant.

Q. Right in the plant. But you do have heaters also in
connection with the wells?

A, Well, that is a different sort of a thing.

Q. That is a different thing?

s, That 1s not in connection with the process at all.
The brine heaters that I described at the wells is simply in
the cold weather to raise the temperature a couple of degrees
so that crystallization does not teke place in the pipe line.
It does not have anything to do with the operation of the Plant

Q. Do you know how much tonnage you produced during this
time that you operated the plant on the so-called 50 ton basis?

A. No, I don't know.

MR, FIERGUSON: Would lMr. kckland have those figures?

L. Yes, he should have the production. Ve would not nave it

SN
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I can just give you a rough guess at it; but he would have bl
figures, because he would know them. I can't remember that.
MR, LIOORE: Q. That same thing would be true with respect
to the number of tons capacity under your 100 tons a day --—
o oeeYie s
(Continuing) -- capacity since January, of 19387
A, Yes.
Q. Has the plaintiff at any time during the period subse-
quent to January, 1938, operated at the full capacity of the
plant? A, You mean up to 100 tons?

Q. Yes. A. No. The maximum production was two brine
heaters, 75 tons. You must remember that the reason we did
not try to put the plant up to 100 tons capacity was that the
previous fall you had flooded the lake and stopped our produc-
tion of dekanydrate so there wes no object in us pushing the
plant up to 100 tons a day, other than to just demonstrate
that the plant could make 100 tons a day; and some of our
executives were present, and asked that we push it up to 75
just to feel sure that we had the capacity there. some other
influences in regard to that might have come into it, because

(4

they were furnishing customers here -- had been furnishing 'J%ZQ
customers with ash which had been #zsduced; and all the arrange-
ments had been made with regard to furnishing customers; so
we had one brine heater there that was fully installed and

ready to operate that we never turned over at all,

MR. GOODCELL: Will you read that last answer, lMr. Reporter

XK

)
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(Answer read by reporter.)

THE WITNES! In other words, before we started the 100
ton plant, we knew that we only had enough dekahydrete to
operate the plant, we will say, for approximately three months
at about 50 tons a day.

MR. MOORE: Q. There was a flooding of the properties of
the plaintiff corporation in February, 1937, wes there not?

A, Yes; and there had been previous floodings, too.

Q. Well, I will get to those in a few minutes; but with
respect to the flooding in February, of 1937, will you state
generally what the effect of that flooding was with respect to
the operations of the plaintiff?

A. The Owens River was diverted onto the lake around about
February 4th, 1937, and continued to flow onto the lake in a
large volume until about the middle of IMarch, The river was
again diverted onto the lake about April 1l4th, 1987; end con-
tinued to flow until about the middle of lMay. Also Cotton-
wood Creek was diverted into the lake in the early spring, and
continued to flow into the lake in a large volume until about
June lst, 1937. This brought the water up on the surface of
the lake,

MR, GOODCELL: Pardon me.

(Private discussion between lir. Goodcell and Mr. lioore,)

THE WITNESS: (Continuing) -- to a level that had not
heretofore been reached, or one that we had never contemplated

would be reached.,
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MR. MOORE: Q. Do you know as of June lst, 1937, what thet
level was? Do your records show?

A. I haven't any particular --. We never did have a
level -- a record referring to the bench marks there.

. Can you approximate the rise in feet?

A. I can tell you that it was around our wells ealong
the pipe line to about a depth of three feet.

~. Which wells do you refer to, with reference to the map?

A, I mean these wells out here. (Witness indicating on
map. ) Somewhere around two and a half to three feet. These

wells were all surrounded.

QB0 O v ana-se A. Yes; and the pipe line was
broken.,

Q. Which portion of the pipe line? AT T Al
describe it to you in a minute. The pipe line was broken, and

considerable portions of it were Iloated away out of position.

&. Is that the portion adjacent to well 17?

A. Yes, this vortion in here (indicating on Appendix "A"),
There was two lengths, as I remember it, of 2400 feet each
that were floated away off of position here. £11 of the line
was -- all the way out to the pumps was undermined; and, of
course, the insulation that covered that was ruined. ile have
a roadway extending out here, which was washed away:; aund all
the road in between the pumps was washed out; and a number of
the power line poles were damaged.

Wow, the roadway that you refer to wes around the wells

e
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leseain sOpd andy B2 4. Yes; and there is a COIl—
necting road to all of those wells; and there is & road that
runs out this way, and connects in the line that was notb flooded
and then we have a road that oémes around that way.

. You have indicated this road by going in a southeasterly
direction from about well 27

B, Yes,

Q. Out to the corner of Section 37 A, Yes.
0. Southeast corner of Section 3; and then it swings around,
so to speak, around the edge of the lake?

A. Up to this point.

. Up to the point you have marked "P.L.", approximately®

“

hen follows this¥line up. = I

ct
b

A, Well, this way here; and
will draw that on there, if you want.

e dbal ) SealiEdehin - A. This is only approximate,
you understand.

Q. Yes, surely. £, This road comes out here,
and goes out here to the booster pump.

Q. The booster pump on the position marked No. 8%

A. Yes,

MR. MOORE: HHe 1s writing in pencil the words "booster
pump. A, Now, I am just drawing this roughly to give
you an idea. It might be on another section.

W Bureliy. A, Of course, we have a map where it is
located more accurately than that; but that is very close.

snd then the road runs out here, and out here, and out here (wit-
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ness indicating).

.. To the various wells¥ L. To all the various wells,
yes.

3. Now, the power lines that you refer to started at what
point? A. They --. e have a transformer station

located here; centered there.

Q. Between wells 2 and 5% A Right at'well Nod 8; right
close to well No. 2; right in the center. The power line
Tfollowed the pipe line in here.

On into the plant along the pipe line?

A. Yes, and to the transformer station at the plant.

%+ In that connection, you refer to blocking and bents, in
the second amended complaint. What were they used for?

4. What is that?

®&. The blocking and bents? A. Well, at this time there
were no bénts under the pipe line. The pipe line had been
supported off the surface of the lake at a height of about 18
inches on blocks.

Q. Wooden blocks? A, Wooden blocks. We  will
say 12 by 12, and supported at an interval of , we will say,
every 15 or 20 feet. Of course, they were all washed away
and the pipe line dropped down, so that you had & condition
there of the lake level covering all of this equipnent. And
as soon as we could, we undertcok -- in Tact, it was tle latter

part of June we started to re-cover this pipe line and get it

back into position so that it could be in a position to pump tha
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coming Season. and actually when we started here, the water
was south of the old pipe line, and we had to cut this pipe

into sections; and in some ceses we laid it on sort of a large
raft and towed it back into position; and the lake in the meail 1
time was evaporating, and later we had to roll it back. Then
we had to dig out this part of the linr which had been covered

more or less in the salts :4@«~*a—~‘ 1&fﬁg@@t§m; thea W?E{Zi&

precipitated by the evaporation in the concentreted brine.

We then decided in this reconstruction to place this pipe line
at a height where it would never be damaged again, even if the
wegter would come up that high again, because we did
it would happen again. S0 we put the pipe line up four feet
above the surface of the leke, and supported it on bents at
say every 15 or 20 feet, - I don't know the exact distance -
the bottom of those bents were a foot under the surface of tihe
salt; and it became necessary, of course, to lift this pipe
line up -- I mean with a nuuber of chain blocks, and place-it
on top of these bents; and, of course, to weld it all together
again. Then efter that was done, it had to be re-insulated.
This time we insulated it with glass wool, and covered it with
light sheet iron.

Q. When you state you raised it four feet above the surface
of the lake, you mean the‘crystal body ?

A, Yes, I mean the surface of the salt.

€. The crystalline cake? L., Yes. Of course, when we

started here, this was all wet; and it was all covered around

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAS O118

AN



K’ N

10
11
12
13
14
.15
18
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

129

our wells; and it was along about August 5th before it got
evaporated down to our wells here.

L. When it is stated in the second amended complaint that
you did not get access to a portion of your plant, you are
referring to the plant out in the lake as distinguished from
your plant along the shore?

A, I am not familiar with that, so I don't know.

MR, ERGUSON: I will so stipulate, if you want that.

MR, MOORI: All right.

Q. During this period up until August 5th, were you con-
tinuing your manufacture of the soda ash from any supply of
dekahydrate which you might alreedy have from a previous period?

A. No, we hed discontinued the old plant, as 1 remember,
in April - April 18th, 1936; and it has never operated again.

% . But my understanding is that you were operating on a
50 ton basis in your new plant?

Ao Yes,

. Did you operate it during that period?

-A- . T..Je ll )

i

can't remember Jjust what date that was in
operation. You mean in 1937%

Q. 1937, yes. 4, I might have something
here in regerd to it. Yes, we were operating in tihe early
months of 1937, and produced quite a tonnage. I haven't those
dates; but I think Charlie could give them to you if you want
the dates. Neither have I the tonnage.

2. The main thing is -- A. But we were operating then
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with the salt -- using the salt as a means of precipitating the
mono crystals.

G+ When you say the salt, you mean dekahydrate?

A, No, I mean sodium chloride. Silaye nishshoreian it =
I don't sce any tonnage here. I have the note here that the
operations were continued in the early months of 1937 using
the dekahydrate in the new vats which had been constructed.

3. Then you have a record of when you started in 1937 to
pump dekahydrates or pump brine for the production of dekahydragect

A e O B

QrRENiesh e Yess
4. Can you state when that was? A, I would say
that we started these -- or one or two of these pumps along -

about the 1lst of august.

Q. Indicating on the map 1 to 5°? A, Yes:Yand

i‘r

we pumped into same vats here and carried on some experiments ;@
evaporating the brine there by a_goeer evaporation, thus bring-

ing the alkalinity to a nigher point. Then in the

}_l

[O)

ct

ci

)

H
P

part of September, 1937, we started to take some of thagqo;ine/d

and pumped 1t ,ﬂé the dekahydrate vats: sz,

mm e did that se—thet—tToy—weTe TUNTHTE—tho—esperinent—tiene
because that brine was a much higher alkalinity than was the

brinefggy%he lake ; and then it was along about the 4th or 5th
offggggg%g% - and I could probably look that up definitely -

but that is spproximately it, the 4th or 5th, or along there -

that may have been the 2nd or 3rd - we started to pump brine
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direct from the lake here, operating all five wells; and that
was used for the manufacture of dekahydrate, using sprays in
these vats; the sprays that we had recently put in, because
we sow that we were not going to have brine from these lake
wells of normal alkalinity as we had years before.

<. Did you make tests that showed that?

A, Oh, yes, we made plenty of them.

L. You are now using the evaporation process?

A. Yes, The brine from these wells was about 11.9
alkalinity when we started to pump into the vats, whereas it
should have been in the neighborhood of 13-1/2 to 14 had the
leke not been flooded.

3. You had been obtaining 13-1/2 to 14 brines prior to this
flooding of 19377 e Yes,

§. And you are now using the evaporaetion process as dis-
tinguished from that salt process?

A. In the spring of 1938, when we started to use the
dekahydrate produced in the fall of 1937, we used the evaporatiy
method.

Q. Now, does the record that you have show when you were
flooded again, .if at all?

Mg dTal RIS

Q. after you started your operations in October?

A. I can remember without looking up the record. It was

approximately December 1l2th to 1l4th that the Owens River was

turned into the lake.

(4]
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§. VWhat was the effect of that flooding on your plant end
properties?

IR, FPERGUSON: Ob jection on the ground it is not an issSue
in this case,

IR. LIOORL; Well, may I ask if you will stipulate that
the items of damage contained in paragraph IX with respect ©O

ng and

.

pipe lines, roadways, power lines, insulation, block
bents was due entirely to the February flood - February through

April?

=

MR, FERGUSON : Yes, dus to the water on the lake Fron
the February to April flood, which, I understand, remained
until September; thet is correct.

MR. MOORE: You will stipulate that that was --

B

MR. FERGUSON: Yes, the first flooding, which started

»
¥

December of 1937, is not an issue in this case; and is the
sub ject matter, as you know, of another suit on file.

MR, T/OORE: Well, theat is fine.

IR, FERGUSON: Yes.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORI; &e. Will you please state, lir. Keep, the
reasons why it was more costly to produce the dekahydrate with
the lake in the flooded condition?

A. Well, it is not only more costly, but it wasn't possible
to get at a normal production because bf the low alkelinity
of the brine,

Was the dekahydrate that was produced of that alkelinity
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inferior to that vwhich you previously had produced?
A, Yes, snd there was another thing that came in thate
i;rhad more sulphates.
v. Do you have any figures to show the difference in the
nag0 content; or is your purity of dekahydrate based on that?

A, I have some figures here that show -- well, they don't
show just exactly what you ask for here.

MR, FERGUSON: @e Mr. Keep, the question was this: You
sald the dekehydrate produced from the diluted brine was notb
as good as the dekahydrate produced from the undiluted brine,
because it had, among other things, a greater sodium sulphate
content? Haee YO 5

4. Now, his question is: Have you any figures showing the
respective degrees of soda ash - the quality of soda ash
produced from the two different types of brine?

MR, LOORE: The first question was to the deka itself,
and then --

IR, FERGUSON: He said the deka wasn't the same. Now, you
are saying the soda ash produced - or is it the deka?

MR, MOORE: As to the deka I am first asking.

A. 4s a matter of fact, the deka actually produced was, as
I stated before, higher in sulphate, owing to the fact that the
brine -- that the starting brine was of low alkalinity; and we
forced it down to a quite low alkaelinity by cooling as we could
without getting too great a percentage of sulphate in the deka.

By thet I mean we cooled it very often down %o seven degrees,
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whereas it would have been wise with such a low alkalinity

probably to not have gone below 8-1/2 alkalinitz@xaﬂﬁ the

. : AL oA g
mother llquog«dlscardqutue deka crystalsg se—b the dek
produced and put through the plant -- well, there mignt have

been sone of the best of it as low as 1-1/2, and perhaps a
little lower than that; but the average of it was 2-1/2 up o
5; and sometimes & much higher per cent in sulphates. ~S a
matter of fact, there is 12,000 tons of it that we never used
eibredl . It is still there in some of the vats, because the
sulphate content was so high it was not a practical thing to
use it in such a condition as that.

Q. In terms of naBO, how was 1t reduced from the normal
dekahydrate produced with fhe high alkalinity brines?

A, Well, the sulphate isn't crystallized out with the deka

u
'_I
et
=}
O
(et

gquantity; we will say temperatures of & to 9 degrees.
are operating with a brine - normal brine for the month of
October and there is a 13-1/2 alkalinity that is coming in, and
we were cooling that brine down to 10 alkalinity, I would
expect the dekahydrate to contain in the neighborhood of one

to one and three-tenths per cent,

3. Sulphate? A. Sulphate. Now, if we took
that down to 8,'it might go up to one and a nalf, Now, if we
start a brine that has got a 11 alkalinity,- and start to take
it down smaller, then you are going to have a higher sulphate

content than if you had started with the 13 and took it down

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUFERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., EAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAs 0118




14

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

25

26

no further.

we. Can you express it in the reverse, though? You have
expressed it in terms of increase of sulphate content. can
you express it in terms of degrees in nay0?

A. I do not believe I see what you are getting at.
0. Well, perhaps I don't know what units you use in deter-
mining its velue for the production of soda ash, 4s I under-
stood, in the sodium carbonate, you determined its alkalinity
in terms of na,O.

A. The alkalinity of the dekahydrate?

Q- Yes, A, That we determine the same way.

Q. Now, then, when you say you have reduced it from 14 or
13-1/2 to 11.3, that is expressing it in na;0?

A. Yes. .4And then when we pumped in a certain tonnage of
brine with an alkalinity -- a given alkalinity, we cool that
and obtain the mother liquor discard with the lower alkalinity;
eand then it is possible to tell you how much dekahydrate was
taken out of that tonnage of brine by reducing it by 2 per cent
alkalinity or 3 per cent alkalinity or 4 per cent alkalinity
or 1 per cent alkalinity. The amount recovered is almost in
proportion to the amount that you take out, as you would
anticipate; although it isn't quite, but it is almost; so that
if you cut the alkalinity of the brine from, we will sgy, 13-1/2
to 14 down to only 11.3 right off the bat before we ever pump
anything, then we would have removed our chances oI recovering

a big part of the tonnage that we ought to get, because then we
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only have an opportunity to obtain dekahydrate from 11 down to
whatever point we are able to cool that; and, as I have already
pointed out, there is very good chance that dekanydrate soO
obtained will contain more sulphate as well.

. Now, when you used your process to reduce that to the
monohydrate, how does that affect the type of product of mono-
hydrate you gets:

A, Well, it would throw --. We have a control of that
situation in the operation of the plant whereby we can discard
that excess sulphate in the form of mother liquor, and keep
it out of the product, and thereby maintaining a good grade of
soda ash as far as the alkalinity is concerned; but when we have
to do that, it means that we have to use more tons of deka per
ton of ash produced than we would from an ash that contained =a
lesser amount of sulphate. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

THE WITNESS: Now, what I was golng to tell you along the
lines that I have just finished, I say that with a dekahydrate

containing 1 per cent sulphate we would expect to use 3.9 tons

of deka to make a ton of ash. If the sulphate content were
1-1/2 per cent sulphate, we would expect to use 4-1/2. it

that sulphate content was 2 per cent sulphate, we would expect
to use 5.2 deka to make a ton of ash. If that sulphate content
were & per cent, we would expect to use 8 tons, which would be

an awful lot; and you get to a point there where it isn'tg

practical to use it.
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Q. 4t any time did the sulphate go higher?

&, Some of it --
2. During that period of October to December, that will be,
in 19379 4. Yes, some of it is higher than that.
I told you, we got 12,000 tons; and during a large part of the
run, we had to discard mother liquor in order to try to keep
the grade of the product up; end that, naturally, runs up the
tonnage required -~ the tonnage of deka required to meke ash.
0. In other words, under normal conditions, you can use the
mother liquor to precipitate the deka?
A. The normal operation is to return the mother ligquor from
the ecalsiwelr to the brine heaters in closedcircuit. fﬁggf/

~

‘rom the salt proecess, in that you

=

Q. Which was diverted

¥

lost the mother licuor?
A. We turned all that away, yes. Now, if your sulphate

gets too high, you see, then you have to discard that portion

|

with this other liquor that you otherwise would not turn away in
order to keep the sulphate from building up in the liguor to
the point where it would be precipitated out along with your
mono crystals. That is the operating control thet I spoke of.
&. Now, then, your increased cost of operation were of two
types: You had to pwap more brine in order to get a given
quantity of deka; and then because tune deka was high in sulphate|
you had to process more of 1t in order to get a given Quentity
of soda ash, is that right?

A. That is true; but the worst hurt was that you couldnt't
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possibly produce sufficient deka from such low-grade brine as

to make & tonnage to keep the plant in the operation. You had
that to face; snd I have estimated that the loss of deka from
that source elone is about 105,000 tons.

G. During that period?

A Last fall.
QeaiThes falyl foft 19687% A, Yes.

%+ Of course, I was referring to the two types of increase
in operating cost as distinguished from the loss of plant
capacity. i e actually produced tnat fall 40,000
tons from the low alkalinity brine.

Q. Soda ash? A. 40,000 tons of deka.

&. and do your records show how much soda ash you produced
from that? AL.oYes,

Q. Mr. Eckland has that? M Yes. Of course, of that
40,000 tons, there is some 12,000 tons we did not try to put
through at all, because the sulphate was too high.

&+ You mentioned in describing the injuries resulting from
the February to April flooding, of 1937, that there had been
a previous flooding which affected your pipe lines and roads.
hen did those floodings occur? A  Well, the first flooding
occurred along about April 5th, in 1935.

2. And how long did that flooding continue?

A. Vhy, a short time. I would say --. I mean, the flow

Fal

of the river onto the lake continued a short time. Lbout --

I would say ten days. You heve a record of that; and I don't

Ve

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPURIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BILDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuUGLAS 0118




®» =N o

10
11
12
13
14
15
1le
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

I only have to go by what I see from the river; and I don't
know when they turnedit in or when they shut it off.

&. What portion, if any, of your pipe lines and wells
did that affect?

A. Uell, at that time, as I explained this morning, we had
two wells here --

3. No, 1 end No., 2% 4 Yes; and we had just gob
them completed; and we had been depending -- we were operating
the old plant at that time, and depending upon these wells.

We had strong winds here which blew this surface brine coming
in at that time up around these wells 16 and 17, and flooded

those; 'but did not affect the operation of the old plant, be-

cause we had just started these two wells awaey out here, ané/ﬁa@ﬁ?

. : e A g 2 i
wihich were not flooded; mse we &=% just draobided opersting these

&

AL
wells, and started the old plent “Kac esed

:

I explained this this moraning.
. I was going into this question --
A. And so that we didn't suffer any particular damage as

far as operations of the plant were concerned from that. It

did, however --. We had started a road out here, which had been
made by simply taking the shovel, power shovel, and piling up

the salt on the surface of the lake; and we made a road by
piling it up out there; and we saw the results of this more

or less fresh water hitting that seme road; it just went through
there as if it wasn't there; it just dissolved it right out,

and we just dropped that idea entirely; and so that was the
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effect of that particular flooding, was to dissolve out this
road that we had started, and for the time being flooding
these wells; but there was no effect upon the operation,
because we simply replaced it with the two new wells which
had just been completed.

. It wasn't until summer that you had built the road
which you have marked in pencil®?

A, No. It was very evident+ that we were foolish to try to
keep a road up here, because it wes so easily dissolved out;

So we never again attempted to build a road of that nature.

n

.« Did you take any steps at that time to put in protection
around welis 16 snd 17 against wind and wave action or flocding9
M. FLERGUSON: Just & minute. What is the purpose of all
this questioning? This -is two years before the time --
MR. IMOORE: Yeshu -~ 0ff thelsnecords,
(Unreported discussion.)
MR, FERGUSOL; I am going

to object on the ground it has

clk:
i

=t

1 o}

nothing to do with the issues in the action. If you wa
ask if any precautions were tdken belieretthe Mt s6Mor LS tilleond=
ing I won't object -- I mean Jjust before the 1937 flooding.
If you want to ask gbout before the 1937 flooding, I won't
object; but I em going to object to enything not having anything
to do with the issues in the case.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE: ey we make an offer of proof by this witness

to show what acts, if any, taken by the plaintiff corporation
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to protect the pipe line, wells, and other portions of the
plant from future flooding; the purpose of it being to show
no reliance upon a continuation of the dry condition cof the
lake at the time that the 1936-1937 betterments and additions
to plant were made?

MR. FERGUSON : Well, now, just & minute. That is not my
objection at all. I object to your inquiring into the 1935
flooding anda the 1936 flooding as having notihing to do with
the case; and I distinctly stated that if you want to incuire
into what precautions had been taken prior to the 1937 flooding,

I had no objection.

MR. IOQCRE: Isn't this prior to the 1937 flooding?
MR. FERGUSON: You are talking about 1935, and the 1935
flooding?

MR. LIOORE: Yes, but they arerell. steps: The 1935 and

19%6 floods.

IR. FERGUSCON: I am going to object to the 1935 and 1936
flooding.,
IR, LIOORH: I am just stating for the record --

MR. FERGUSON: I know, but you stated your offer, and you
tied it in with 1937. I am making no objection to your in-
quiring what precautions we took prior to the 1957 flood.

MR, LIOORE: The only thing about 1937 is that in 1936 and
19387 you made certain distinct improvements in your plant.
This is off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)
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MR. MOORE: Q. Well, lir, Keep what precautions were taken
prior to February, 1937, to protect the pipe line, wells, brineé
heaters and other equipment of the plaintiff corporation from
flooding and/or wind and wave action?

A, That pertains to all the lake wells?

Q. Yes. A, Well, after the new wells were pubt in
condition, our dependence for brine was almost immediately on
them (witness indicating).

Q. Referring to 'wells i1 to 5%

A, 1 to 5, yes. We from the very first surrounded 1 and 2
wells with a circle of sand at a distance of, I would say,
approximately 60 or 70 feet from the well on all sides - of
each well; and that sand. was, oh, several feet wide; the purpose

of that was that in case water came around there, it couldn't

flow directly into the well. flhen we originally put in the
pipe line out to these wells, we set it up on bents -- I don't
mean bents -- blocks. There is a confusion in here between

bents and blocks.

Q. I believe you have explained that.

A, I tried to explain that. We first set it up on blocks
about 18 inches. WWe thought at that time that there would
never be any surfece brine on the lake to -- that would reach
up that high. That was our opinion from previous observations,
and from what the old-timers had noted had been the condition

on the lake for a great many years. Ile knew, however, that in

the spring of the year when the rain came, that there was more
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or less water came in on the surface of the lake here; and
that sometimes the heavy winds would shift it down here; and
it might be here for a day or so, and then go back. Usually
any surface brine laid over on the part of the lake about

opposite the Pacific Alkali's plant; down in thet vicinity

TAT

e knew that such an emount would never do us sny harm, and
would never reach this pipe line; so those were the first pre-
cautions against it. Then we found thet the lake was flooded
to a depth of some two and a half to three feet, floating away
the line, breaking it and destroying the insulation, as was
elready described.

~

Q. BasiisEwasEnniorsih oRRehriany: S8 9572

AncYes, Then, as already described, when we replaced that,
we took further precaution in -- this time in placing the pipe

1ine at a height of four feet above the surface of The ldake,
supported on bents, also as previously described. We had to
reconstruct a road from -- through Section 3 out south to the
wells again, and rebuild the road between the wells; and this
time we surrounded the wells again with sand, filling 1t some-
what higher to make &ll the roads somewhat higher than we did

the first time; and made the width of the sand wider so that

you could drive a truck right around it. That is the way we
did. We put the sand in there, in fact; again thinking that
i ) ) S

we would never see the brine level come anywhere near that.
We thought that would be safe enough, even if we had a flooding

equivalent to the one we had just before we mede this last re-
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insulation of the pipe line; but we did heave another flood,
end which brought the level of the lake much higher then it had
ever been before, so it reached a depth of nearly eight feetb
at our wells; so that the precautions that we did take -- we
took some further precautions at the last flooding at the time
of ~-- around December -- the latter part of December, 1937,
when --

MR, FERGUSON: Well, that is not involved in this case,
Mr. Keep.

MR, ILIOORLE: No, that is not involved in the guestion.

RGUSON ¢ Hetlasked: prioricos 19578

-

MR, F

&

MR, 1IOORE: §. Prior to 1937,

A~ Prior to February, 1937%

Q. Yes, A. Well, that was December, 1937.
Q. Yes. That wouldn't be in that question.

e n - ALTE R e d oY S

(Unreported discussion.)

IR, MOORE: . Were there any further floodings in 1935%

o e

R, FERGUSON: Object on the ground that it is irrelevantg

and immaterial; and instruct the witness not to answer.

MR. MOORH: Would you maeke the same ruling as to 1936°
MR, FERGUSON: Yes, I think, as a matter of fact, that

it has already been testified to in some detail. It is a matten
of procedure within your own knowledge. Off the record.,
(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE: Q. Mr, Keep, it is alleged in the second amend-

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUFERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., EAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAsS 0118



145

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

ed complaint that the flooding in 1937 interfered with the
usual and normal cyclic changes which ennually occur in the
composition of the subsurface brine of the lake; and that the

(¢}

|=.

solar heat was a material factor in such a normal and cycl
change. Will you explain that in connection with your opera-
tions, in this new process?

A. Yes, Owens Lake, when it has a dry surface, consists
of .solid salt in crystalline form of one sort or another; and
the resulting mother liguor which occurs in between the crystals
of salt mentioned above; so what you have there is certeain
solid salts, of which the most ilmportant was sodium chloride,
sodium sulphate end sodium carbonate, lying in contect with
their mother liquor. The composition of mother liquor of this
description in contact with its own salts will depend upon the
temperature of the mother liquor; and if the temperature of the
mother liguor varies, then so will the composition of the
mother liquor brine vary. You have all the conditions here
necessary to create what is knovn as equilibrium solution in/zggmg
chemistry except agitationie-

g Sdl s
iV o el

S

is' not there!, as you can see. Generally speaking, there is

no way in chemicel theory to tell what an equilibrium solution -
this particular one, or any other one - is going to be, except
by actual demonstration. It happens in Owens Lake, which is

a shallow deposit of salt and mother liguor, with a probable

maximum depth of about seven feet, with our wells only going
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down to six feet., @& that there is a change in the temperature
of this salt body between summer snd winter; and hence there
is a corresponding chnange in the composition of the brine.

The above providing that the surface of the lake is 4Ty ﬁﬁﬁ'?ifiB
as to allow the sun's heet to be absorbed and conducted down
toward the bottom of the lake. The point of highest alkalinity
occurs about the end of september and the first of Cectober

to the subsurface brines

1_!:

under these conditions, referring
which we endeavored to nump.

,., and that change --

A, This is not, however, the hottest time of the year.
There seems to be a lag, you see, in the mother liguor brine
reaching an equilibrium, probably due to the fact that there
isn't aegitation there, you see. It gets up to a temperature,
but it - does not reach the point of highest alkalinity, because
there isn't any agitation present. If you had it in a beaker
or a tank and were agitating it with that temperature, it would
get to the eguilibrium point soon - relatively soon; but dovm
in the body located where the brine don't move around iuch,
there is a lag; so, as stated above, the brine reaches its
highest alkalinity around the end of September and during
October, - the month of October, at which time it frequently
gets up to 14 alkalinity.

Q. I think that gives us an idea of what tekes place.

A, Now, the rise -—-

MR. FERGUSON;: Your gquestion was what effect a body of wate

Lip§
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has on top of the Iake? Was that your gquestion?
WR. MOORE: Yes .

MR. FERGUSON: Suppose you put a body of water on top O

the leke, - on top of the crystelline cake, what is the effect
of that?
MR, MOORE: I was going to say that gives me the idea of

)
H
=
D
Q
(v

the effect of solar heat and cyclic changes. Now, the
of water, a body of water, on top of your crystalline cake,

would be wheat?

MR. FERGUSON: This is off the record.

(Unrevorted discussion.)

THE WITNESS: Well, having reached this maximum alkelinity
in the latter part of September and October, the alkelinity

starts to slowly decrease again, due to the cold weather--
atmospheric conditions. The effeeit of this colld weather i's
guickly noted at the surface of the lake; end dekahydrete
soda is precipitated out at the surfece as soon as the Tirst
cold night comes; but it takes considerable cold weather to
have this effect down at the subsurface brine; so that the
alkalinity may be 14 during Cctober; and maybe we will say
11-1/2 or 12 during November; and by the end of December, it
might drop down to 10-1/2. It might be higher than that some
years; but not a -- as a rule, it drops down to around 10 or
10-1/2 end stays there until along about larch or April; and

it then again starts to warm up; and it slowly picks up each

month in alkalinity, until the cycle is again completed in the
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next fall, when you have a subsurface brine of high alkalinity
existing again. Now, of course, wihat we endeavor to do is L
Yo

to pumpafrom the subsurface of high elkelinity during the coldé%
weathe%%%g?g%éggnt crystallizationfﬁg&the pipe line, and put it
into vats, and vhere it is cooled one night or two nights,
whatever is necessary to cause the proper dekahydrate to Dbe
crystallized out et a point where we can separate it and obtain
G

MR. MOORE: W . Now, does that --

hat is the cyclic change.

-3

“k e -

Q. That is the ce¢yclic change. Will you explain the effect

of a body of water on the crystalline cake?

AL The effieet of a body of water on the surfidce is, of

course, first to dissolve certain salts off the surface; and ib

no longer stays as a fresh water, but immediately becomes a brine

o

of some sort or description, with a certain asmount of sodium
carbonate and salt and so forth in it, so it is really a weak
surface brine right away. That covers all the area around the
vieinity of our wells, or over the lake,andtheheat from the sun
is absorbed in the evaporation of that water instead of being
converted and carried down into the subsurface brine. of
course, as you know, evaporation is really a cooling procesg//tﬁﬁ
RIS GIS SRS The =+=try of evaporation on the surface of é%Zf
the brine is to cool the brine, only the brine gets very warm
when the sun is éhining on it, but nevertheless, for every ton

of weter evaporated, you do cut the temperature down by so much
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within the surface brine; and, of course, the brine that 1s
down at the subsurface isn't affected at all. It Jjust stays

at the temperature under those conditions I have told you.

There is no change. You can go out there then, and there is
very little change. For instance, I can show you data here

concerning what it was in the brine in 1935 and 1936; and in
the year under discussion, where the brine was only 1l1.3 in

October and November, the lake had been flooded all around our

wells, and right up to the wells themselves until sometime cbout

the first part of August; and the lake never did get up to

its normal alkelinity. I couldn't say -~

MR. FERGUSON: That 1is, the mother liguor brine never 4id?

A. Yes, the subsurface brines never got anywhere near the
elkalinity i1t had always been.

MR, MOORE: Q. Did you take the temperature during the
fall period you mentioned? You said you tested the alkalinity
in 1935 and in 1936, and then again in 1937, finding that it
had dropped. Did you take temperatures of the subsurface or
mother liquor brine during those same periods?

A, Well, we may have. I don't know. I could tell you,
though, that the subsurface brines in a normal year Someiises

2(p
g0 up to,ﬁﬂrto.jﬁfﬁegrees cerigrade, which is i%:%?4;u To your

hand ; mﬂ’t}x@ =2 U.U:..) v fuCA

5 [Zrcae W@Mzﬁ%z&"m‘)&, aliot LTinne
Q. In 196'7?. MW}?37 A, FET,

MR, MOORE: Can we have a recess for a few minutes?

~I‘[E EI tIaLkU o
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IR, I'ERGUSON: Yesi.

(Recess. Deposition reconvenes.)

MR. LOORL: &. Mr. Keep, Mr., Pedder testified, as 1 under-
stood it, to the existence of an engineer's report prepared
sometime in or before the year 1932 with relation to the condi-
tion of the lake and the chemistry of the lake around the
Waturel Soda Products Company's plant; and as I understood it,
he thought that you had a copy of such report.

MR. FERGUSON: I don't know of any such testimony, counsel.

MR, MOORE: Yes.,

tified he knew of no report

1

MR, FERGUSON: I thought he te

10}

MR, MOOKRHE: If yourwill iealls NMpstReddern iniiSsfNhne 1S
here --
MR. FERGUSCN Maybe I am wrong. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

—

MR. MOORE: I will ask the question direct:

Q. Heve you seen a report prepared on the condition and
chemistry of Owens Lake in and about the Natural Soda Products
Compeny land?

MR. FERGUSON: In about 19327

MR. MOORLI: Q. In about 1932.

L. iddressed to the Natural Soda Products Company --

MR, FPERGUSON: No, Mr. Keep, the question is --

4. I have seen a report that was made to kitchum Tully by
some engineer or firm of engineers, I have seen such a report.

MR. MOCRE: Q. Do you have in your possession a copy of
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such report? A. I neant to say when I first ceme there.
Vnether it is there or not I don't know. It may or meay not b€

Q. It wouldn't be in your files or in the files of the
company? A, I told you I looked through a lot of
old stuff, and I saw that report; and, as I remember, it was
made to Liitchum Tully. I don't know that it covers everything
that you mention, but it covers the trona that was supposed to
be there, and something about the plent, and something or
enother. I don't remember what was in it, to tell you the
truth s but I did see the reports.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORI: Will you let the record show that counsel and
the witness have agreed to produce the report if they still
have it.

¥R, FERGUSON Without any stipulation

3 1, ;ofs conrse, as' to

its legal effect, or that it is binding on us; beceause it was
obviously not rendered to us.
MR, MOORE: Yes, that is trus.

(‘\

S

Mr. Keep, in your investigation of the records of the
pleintiff corporation after you came there in Jenuary, of 1934,
did® you see any other reports with respect to the lake or --
A, No, that 1s the only report of that nature that I ever
saw; eand I have already told you that there was a lot of old
superintendent's reports there that I did not read. I looked
at a few of them; and they were not of interest to me; and they

were not worth while looking over, I have never seen any other
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reports other than this one; and I don't remember who wrote

MR, MOORE: I think, for the purpose of the record, the
witness had better draw in end mark the road, the one which
went around the edge of the lake to the group of wells marked
1l to 5, near point marked "P.L." in blue pencil on the map.

(Witness does as requested. )

. There is one question which I may have covered thoroughly
but it does not appear so to me, and that is this: In the
vats which are west of the new plant, those are the sources
for your storage of the brine from which you precipitated the
dekahydrate, is that right?

s INes e sdr rthat dsnts -righty The vats in vwhich we crystal
lized dekahydrate are located directly north of the office and
slightly northeest of the new plant. Give me a colored penciil,
if you want to locate it.

Q. All right. A. At the point marked -- that is the line
that goes down there.

Q. Mark it with ‘a blue pencil, And will you please spell
out the word "Vats" on that, please.

(Witness does as requested. )

THE WITNESS: ine vats.

MR, MOORE: All right. Thank you.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. LICORE: Subject to the agreement we made before that

after the accounting feature, if we would like to recall Iir,
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Keep for a few questions further, we might do so, that is all

that we have from him at this time.

Gilfich.

=

(Tnerepgon an ad journment was taken until 10 otfcloeck . I,
Wednesday, October 4th, 1939, and by consent of counsel to be
resumed at the same place.)
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Room 514 Financial Center Building, San Francisco, (&
Jednesday, October 4th, 1939, 10:00 », I,
(Pursuant to the foregoing ad journment, depositions in the
sbove-entitled cause were resumed, there being the same appear-
ences as heretofore indicated.,)

CHARTLES BECEKLAND,

\

caelled as a witness under Section 2055 of the Code of Civil

Procedure of the State of California, being first duly sworn Dby

nothing but the truth, testified as follows:

LIXAMINATION BY I'R. IMOCRE

MOORI: & . At the present time you are assoclated with

MR.

the Naturel Soda Products Company, a Delaware corporation?

ARERYISSH
0., What is your present position? A, Treasurer,
). ATe you also secretary? A. Yes.

2. How long have you aeld the position of secretary &and
treasurer of the company? A, About 1936.

0. Prior to that time, were you associated with the company
in any way? A, Noo.

G. lWhat time in 1936 did you become associated?

A. I believe it was in August.

Will you staete in a general way your duties with respect

to the books of the corporation, if any duties?
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4. The full control under my charge of the general records
of the corporation.

0. And all entries in the accounts and the hendling of the
accounts are under your supervision and control?

Aniiies
& . Thet has been true since August 1st, 19367

A, That is right.

Q. Will you state generally what your experience with
respect to accounting has been? 4. Well, I have been doing
accounting work since '23. it that time I was an accountant
for gravel and general merchandise, sand7chemioals, construc—ﬁ?f
tion.

3. #nd that included cost accounting? A0, Syess

Q. During the period that you have been treasurer and
secretary of the Natural Soda Products Company, you also have
done some work for other corporations, have you not?

A. That 'is right.

2. Will you steate in general way what books of account the
Natural Soda Products Company has had since 19367

A. Ceneral ledger, supported by cost ledger covering the 75{

Coata o (LA S
products and priees; subsidiary ledgers; accounts payable andégg
receivable; and original books of entry; property ledger.

e
™

. The original books of entry would be such as cash books?
A, Cash books.
. Purcheases? A, Runcheases.

0, Sales? A, sales.
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0. In general, what types of supporting data or memoranda
do you have for these various books of account?
A, The wvoeuchers:: checks; plant Teports.
Q. Are those engineering reports or what?
A. No, they eare accounting reports.
Are they based upon information furnished to you by Ir.
Keep or -- A. No, they are based upon the plant records
such as the payroll and warehouse distribution.
L. Are there any other supporting documents?

AR b eghyour pardon?

=

Q. any other supporting documents such as contracts, bills

of lading, or anything of that kind?

AL Wellisve s All sales records and purchase orders which

are used normally at the plant.
). And what type of records of sales do you haves

s (i

A, Well, that would be the original sales register.

2. The plant report, does that reveal the goods in process
at-all times? A, From them the goods in proeess are
developed. They form the basis of the accounts. The payroll

distribution and the warehouse distribution figures are thie basi
of those accounts.

©. included in the warehouse distribution would there be
both the dekahydrate which you might have at any given time andg
also monohydrate and soda ash?

4. No, that is developed by plant reports of inventory.

. I believe it has been previously testified to that the

V7]
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company from time to time since it sterted this new process

1936 had certain contracts for sods ash and other productsS.
ATe those kept by youf? : o S
., Here under your direction and controlf?

Yes',. kept here.

0. All of these books and supporting memoranda and contracty

‘g o

T3 -}

are they kept in the office here in the Financial Center Bui boi=

ing? A Yes:

|4
(D

7. The plant reports, those are kept at Keeler, are ©
A. Yes, the plant reports, of course, are the basis fror
which I work; and they must tie in to the general books.

%

2. Do you keevp copies in this office of the plant records?

A. No, not of the plant records. That would be such
things as individual time cards and individual charges from the
warehouse., That is space consuming, and would not be kept here
ferred to

,. Then the matter contained in those are trans
accounting records at the plantc?

A. No, they are transferred -- made into reports, which are
sent hexre.

Q. iseen Who makes those reports?

AS RhewchifeflcliericRdowitche Re s
o,. Have all sales of products since you have been with the
company been upon contract?

A A llargetpant ofd it

i, And others are made how? A, By normal contact sales,

Just orders that are procured by salesmen?

et
Lo
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A, By the salesmen.
Q. The sales agency? A. The sales department.
.+ And you have no system of bids in disposing of your

products, do you, in the sense that you have a given quantity
of product, and get the highest price from it?

A, No, not in that sense. I think the other way.  We do
bid occasionally on certain types of business.
@ Tof brocureritrorTyourselves's

v

A. To procure it for ourselves; but never --.

»-

Was that done with reference to soda ash which you

acquired and attempted to fill your orders with in 19387
As Onblds?

Qanres. A, No, on agreements, I would say, with our

competitors.
. Mr. Ecklend, do you have a separate sales department;

e

one that makes a separate report from the plant report?

A. Oh, no; not in the sense of a report that would be guid-

ing from an accounting standpoint.

“. That is what I mean. A. Because our aCCUaJurnc tjﬁ:
Sl &z
records are based directly upon each 1nd1v1dual—me%ar%§gﬁu}

The sales reports are so based.

3. Do you divide your profit, or rather your operating
costs and other costs up into groups, like administrative costs
and fixed charges and operating costs?

A, Let us put it this way: Broadly speaking, your expeunses

ere divided finally to book cost of goods sold, sales expense

H

?.

HART & HART
OFFICIAL SUPERIOR COURT SHORTHAND REPORTERS
CHANCERY BLDG., SAN FRANCISCO
DOuGLAs O118



(o2} ($)] Y D

o 3

10
11
12
13
14
15
18
L7
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26

end administretive expense.

. Those three? A. Those are the main ONES.

%. and your cost of goods sold cover every item that goes
into the product available for sale?

A. aAbsolutely.

‘. administrative expenses would cover the general office
expense, salary, and matters of that sort; and your sales
expense covers what? 4. Sales expenses cover the
seles department; two men who are on sales, and their expenses.
@. Since you have been with the company, have you prepared
from time to time belance sheets and profit and loss statements?

A, .I have,

Q. And are the audits of the books made by you or under
your control? Have they been made?

A0 Bothy That 1s, by myself; and they have been checked
afterwards by a certified public accountant.

Q. Have you made more than one type of audit? I under-
cstand that there is more than one type, and using it for various
properties, &nd determining certain conditions of the company,
or to supply to the stockholders?

A, Well, my type is only one; and that is & full audit;

full and complete.

Q. No partial audlts? #. No, I go into every phase
ST, In fact, I handle a great deal of the actual work
myself .

. Are balance sheets and profit and loss statements avail-
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able for the years 1936, '37 and '38°%

A, Yes.

. How often do you have those made up?

A. Once a month.

R, MOORE: QR ithe *recoxrds

(Unreported discussion.)

MR. MOORE: I night ask you the general question: If you
have reserves in your accounts for depreciation and matters of
that sort?

A. Yes, as approved by the Internsl Revenue Department and
the certified public accounteant.

w. Do you use all of the reserves, or do you yourself choose
those which would be sdaptable to your particular operations?

A. That is a question that would take an awfully long time top

+

answer., I would have to go into a lot of detail on thatb.
Q. Such reserves as you have considered a part of the

operating costs, you have included in the study that you have

made % A, All except the reserve on inactive
property; property which smounts to about something less than

Gen per cent, "I believe.
3. Do you have any item similar to a reserve for contingen-
cies? He NO.
Q. In connection with the claim which was filed with the
City of Los Angeles &and the Department of Water and Power rela-
tive to the alleged damages in 1937 on Owens Lake, to the

properties of the plaintiff corporation, did you make some
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studies of the operating costs and questions of profit and 1o0sSS,
and matters of that type?
Al did.

=
€5 .

=

3. (Continuing) -- in meking that claim? A,

3. Subsequent to the date of the filing of the claim, which
was sometime in December of 1937, did you meke additional
studies that gave actuel rather than estimated operating figures
and studies of profit and loss?

MR, PEDDER: Mlay I interrupt?®

(Unreported discussion.)

(Record read by reporter.)

A, Well, that can be answered in the affd rmative.

MR. MOORL: o« And this last study was in addition to a
preliminary study made before the filing of the claim?

A, No, the preliminary estimate, I should call it, rather
than a study.
Q. Preliminary estimate? Aae s
I direct your attention to the item of physical property
damage occasioned by the spring flooding of 1937: You have your
figures there with respect to it?

A. I have a copy of the claim.

0, Will you teke the item of (2,0354.89, representing appar-
ently destruction of several miles of roadway, and state how you
arrived at that figure? A. The repeirs to the lake

road necessitated by the washout actually cost (&,652.23., Thig

is arrived at by teking the actual labor, truck expense, shovel
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expense, month by

schedule, which I

month, and adding

have here for the

them together; and this

purpose of convenience,

1 have numbered these items 1 to 8; and I call that item No. 1.
%. The labor on this item was supplied by employees of the
plaintiff corporation? A. That is right.

Q. And were the materials used acquired elsewhere, or were
they avallable on the properties of the plaintiff company?

A. No, there seems to be very little -- no material in
Merely lebor, truck expense and shovel expense.

3. and the full item of

costs of labor -- A e S
&. {Continuing) -- and material. Did

you take enything
t

else into consideration in the way of the former condi

the roads in arriving at this question of loss? Did you teke
a given road -- might it not have been in a state of dis-

repair? 4. No, because we had been

using it right along up to the time of the flooding.
. And you had maintained it*
A, And 1t is always maintained.
. Do you have eny figures as to the number
were repaired? A, No, I do mnot.
<+ Do your records show as Tto the materials, and what type
of materials so used?
There was no material used in that.

A

In other words, not

chargeaeble material, anyway. The shovels merely dug it out

of the hills, and put it on the trucks, and trucked it from ther
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end it was the labor and truck expense and so forth.

Then your laborers packed the road. Did you use any

e

sort of roller, or anything of the sort? £, IO
MR. PEDDER: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

ik, IIOORE : Q. Take the item which you probably have
numbered 2. B e st

Q. Which are the power lines maintained by the pleintiff
corporation: Will you state how you arrived at the figure of
$R205.49 set forth in that claim?

4. Due to a minor correction of an insurance - compensation
insurance correction, the correct figure is $235.09.

¢« ald that represents what?

A. Well, all of it except {1.65 represents the labor,

compensation insurance and Social Security tax. When I seay
Ilegbor," T mean the laber cost. Thet is, labor, compensation
insurance and Social Security tax,.

Q. No materials? B ek

J» Then with respect to item No. 3 of pipe line, has the
figure of {6,725.69 been changed?

A s 6, 729069 sveist Thdt has Dbeen corrected to . $6,721.14.
Whet does that figure represent?

A. Labor, truck charges, materials and supplies.

4. In the materials and supplies, do you have any breakdown
on that as to what they were? A NG, LFadosneh i EEEh:nic

ctharges from the

they were what we termed warenouse charges -
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warehouse., Everything --

.. what supporting data -- A, LZverything purchasedﬂput

into the warehouse, taken out on warehouse requisitions; end
the thing that we have here to check that is the inventory at

the beginning, plus the purchases, less our requisitions, and

the inventory that was sent up at the end of the month.
. Would your warehouse requisitions show what portion was

actual pipe, and what portion was the insulation?

PERGUSON There is a separate item for insulation.

WITNESS : Thiss s st citlstren airsh

MR, MOORE: Ch, yes.

FERGUSON : It is for the pipe limne.

IIOORE : Repairs and replacements?

WITNESS : No, Jjust repairs. Thi s particalar itemton

¥6,725,.69 1s just straight repairs.

IR, MOORE;: W. With respect to item lo. 4, which is the

insulation of the pipe line, has the figure of 12,688.68 been

modified? In that particular instance, the --

Lke

that item 4 and 5 -- 5 is in the amount of 333,30 - has been

consolidated; and the actual loss has been $25,563.53.

L. And you have a breakdown of that as various

items

of the insulation and the blocking and bents?

A, Yes., I have that as the cost less -- that is, theat

result is errived at by cost less depreciation,

Je I also refer to the fact, and I believe it has been

testified to, that when new insulation was put on, it consisteqd
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of some sort of an insulating material, plus corrugated iron
covering.

MR, FERGUSON: Sheeti iron, T believe.

MR, MOORE: BaeebEiron:

(,. Do you have any breakdown to show the separate cost of
those two items? A, No. What this is based
upon is the insulation that was lost; actuelly lost.

). Were there any repairs in this also? £, NO.

MR. MOORE: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

620

MR, MOORE: Q. Do the figures that you have with you show

the period of time for which depreciation was taken in deter-
mining the loss of the old iansulation? A, No. That
is easily determined from the property ledger.
;. The item of 330,30, I believe yvou stated wes included
in the {25,000.007% AL Phalt isari ehtls
L. 4And was depreciation taken on those items also?

A. Yes, it was.

0. 4And this additional eamount over and above the original
figure of $12,688.68 is determined upon the ‘seme insulation

that was taken into consideration originally?

By YEE

J. Your property ledger would show if any of the items that

you have testified to were repaired or replaced prior to '37%
A. The property ledger would show the date that it was

actually put in -- actually purchased and put into operation.
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It wouldn't show any repairs, no. That is an expense item.

Q. VWould any repairs that were made be taken into considera-
tion in determining your depreciation?

4. What repairs are you speaking of ?

Q. Any that may have teken place prior to 19379

A. No. Repairs are not a capitel: item; therefore, they do
not enter into depreciation.

Q. With respect to what you probably have as item jlo. 6,
of $18,250.00, which in the second amended complaint is stated

to be increase over normal - the normal cost of pumping brine

and precipitating dekahydrate for sodium carbonate in the cold
27

n
3

4
o 0"”‘”754,, e th s A LR
fall and winter months of 1937: Have you eheswgew that 1tenlﬁ<f%-
v

in your computations?
A. Yes, under the heading of "increased cost of pumping

dekahydrate due to brine dilution;" and we have an increased

cost of ©15,116.36.

L+ For what period of time did you cover in making these
computations? 4. The pumping of what we call the '37 Crop.|
, . = Jhe g 70,
%. Do you have the actusl dates which you took into con- p A\
sideration®? 4. No, that would be -- the zrefit account
would show that, I believe it was around august into January.
@, fugust of 19372 . sugust, 'S7, to January of

'38; because there was a preparatory season in there when things
are being prepared for pumping.
Q. In arriving at tais figure that you have just mentioned,

v

you took all of the period in which any pumping of dekahydrate

O
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was done at that particular season?

-

A. all cost pertaeining to pumping for that season, yeS.

.. WJill you state how you arrived at your figures of

$15,116.36, which, I understand, represents an increased COSUT:

e

A. Right. The actual cost of producing was ;30,634.08,

o

from which we produced only 74,965 tons of dekahydrate.

. In connection with that, for accounting purposes, did

rou take into consideration the quality amd purity of the deka-
hydrete? s, From an accounting standpoint, we are

only interested in the actual results cbtained.

=

@

actually obtained under a c condition, and th

@
H
i
jus
I_l
=
(Y]}
}Jl
<4
@
B

Hh

actual amount of money. Then the cost per ton of that should

’—J

q . . a

have been, basing it upon the normal alkalinity, twenty cents

and seven mills,
QNI L Ts R A Dodblan
Q. Dollars? 4. Therefore --
3. You did say twenty cents and seven mills?
pa e St $e207. It is the same thing, yes. low --

Q. Thet would be - pardon me - the normal unit cost of
producing 74,965 tons? . No, that would be the

normal cost of producing it had the alkalinity been normel.

S e RIS ol == A, Because alkalinity --
LR, FERGUSON : Yes, but his question is: Is that normal

alkalinity for the same tonnage?

A. No, the tonnage would then be 147,930.

. n terms off money’t ~+. Of dekahydrete. Dekahydral
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R, FERGUSON: In other words, I teke it, Mr. Moore is
interested in knowing if the normal would be on the whole cToOD
of normal alkalinity. Is that right?

A, That, is right.

‘MR, LOORE: Q. May I ask this question: Did you take the
figure of 147,930 tons, which you would have produced at normal

alkalinity, and divide it into that figure, $30,634.087%

(@]
I N

A, That is righth
Qs And errived ‘at the figure at $1207%

A. Yes. Therefore, the 74,965 tons should have cost at

.
ed

$.207 per ton, $15,517.7Y6; the difference being the increa

)
0

cost of producing the 74,965 tons.
3. Does that give a difference of 36 cents theref

A $3501 654,08, less $15,51 7. 76, ‘'should give audiffcrence of

$15,116.36, unless --

¥ @. There is ‘a slight error in computation there, d.believe.
Ui Ol YR Pardoin me. Change that figure to 32.

¢ . So that the figure would read 15,116,327
A, That is right.

5. How did you get your figure of
4. The actual pumping for the season.

&. Do you have eny breakdown on that?

AV Wies cuin aty Hliedge .

0. Can you state generally what items would go into your

pumping costs? A, Lebor, fuel, power, depreciation, over-

head, taxes, insurance, amortization of leases, land costs,
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supplies. I think that is all.

% . Does the overhead you refer to cover simply the plant®
overhead, or is it a general overhead?

A, A plant overheead.

§. In arriving at your estimate at normal alkalinity of
the number of tons you could have produced, you are assuming &

given quantity of brine, are you not?

REYe 5,
L. Do you have the figures showing what the quantity of
brine wes? A, I was under the impression lMr. Keep had

MR. FERGUSON: OfT the: record.
(Unreported discussion.)
MR. MOORE: Q. With respect to item No. 7 of $54,750.00,

have you changed that item? A. The increeased cost of

producing merchandise at 50 per cent capacity would be

.+ Do I understand that that is a figure connected with the
reduction of dekahydrate to soda ash?

4, Dverything depends upon that, the dekahydrete crop.

Q. But I mean this figure, $59,993.87, tekes in no part of
the item of {30,634,08% Let me put it this way: For what

period does this 59,993.87 cover?

A, The year 1938.
§. From January lst to December 31st? &, Right,

. But it does not include any cost of pumping, does it?
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#. Well, all costs contain that, yes.

IMR. MOORE: Not for the record.

(Unreported discussion.)
MR, MOCRE: Let me ask my question again:

0. Does the sum of 459,993.87 represent the cost of taking
dekahydrate produced in btihe cold fall and winter months of 1937
and carrying it through to the final product of soda ash?

Y eISIS
e Then it would not include any pumping ccsts, would it;
let us put it this way: You tell us what costs are included
that itemn,

IR, PHDDER; May I say something off the record?
(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE': Q. Well, then,. the guestion is¢ Would you
state the items of account which are contained

A, It covers the . Q. B. plant cost, plus
overhead unabsorbed, to obtain the total cost of dekahydrate

of various products, finished products, produced from a crop --

a 50 per cent crop of dekahydrate to start with; from which we

develop, not from that, but from any schedule which is developed)|,

the cost per ton of the same products had a full dekahydrate
crop been laid down.
Q. Now, you say you have two schedules on those two things?
A, Well, there are a series of schedules -ef tying in Ffrom &/

the final schedule. Now, then, the tons produced from the

50 per cent production are extended at the full production costs
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which, of course, would not have been the cost had we had &
full crop from which to obtain the cost, as it should have beell;
and the deduction and the difference between those two is the
gross cost of producing merchandise at 50 per cent capacity.

In other words, whet I developed is what would it have cost Uus
at 100 per cent; what would it cost at 50 per cent productive
capacity -- not at productive capacity, because we did not get
that full crop; but a 50 per cent crop; and then teke in the
difference; and that, of course, would be the increased cost.

2

Q. Didn't you have actual figures?
A. These are all based upon actual figures; estimates made
from actual rfigures.
§. As I understand, you produced 74,965 tons of dekahydrate?
A. That would be on 50 per cent -- the estimated 50 per cent
dekahydrate crop.
A, There again we get to that point again. Qff the record.
(Unreported discussion.,)
MR. MOORE; Q. Did you arrive at a unit cost per ton of

processing the 74,965 tons to a final product?

'A. I did not errive at a unit price, no. I arrived at a
total cost,

€. And that total cost was what?

A, $246,606,03.

Q. Are those based on actual costs which you did have?

A. That is right. A1l of the figures are Eased on actual

~J

3. And is that the actual production or estimated productionf
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Q. On book entries? A, Right.

m

Q. Did you arrive at a total cost figure of reducing your

147,930 tons? B S diiad s
. And what was that? pse $O47,389.00.

Q. And what did you use to get that figure of {347,389.007

A. Noy you have to go back into a lot of detail there.
That is.about the only way that you can get at that figure,
would be through lr. Bailey, I believe.

.. Can you state generally what you did?

#. I developed the costs from studies in both instances,
basing them upon the ectual production in '38, and using com-
parable figures.

4. Having arrived at a cost of producing the 147,930 tons
and the actual costs from your books of the 74,965 tons, what
were the steps that you took from that point to arrive at your
increased operating cost?

4L, llerely taking the 50 per cent production content, since
various products are made out of it, and extending it at the
full production cost, would give you what that particular
tonnage should have cost us.

. If I understand you correctly, you divided $347,389.00
by 147,930 tons, and got a unit, is that right?

4. No, no, that is not possible, because of the varying cost
throughout each particular unit process or processes.

. By what figure did you multiply your 74,965 to actually
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find out what it shiould have cost you?

A. Thet again breaks down into unit costs into various
units, in order to gelt the conrecticosits applicabiles
. May I see the sheet for a moment, please?

A S rel e Probably --

(

Q. Referring to your schedule here, I notice in your Iirst

column and in the first group of items under "Cost of Produc-

tion based upon 50 per cent dekahydrate crop of 74,965 tons,"
k k J k 3

there are several items like soda ash-bulk, soda ash-burlap

bags, soda ash-paper bags, bicarbonate of soda and concentrates

Are these actual figures of tons produced from the dekahydrate
A, as Tar as the soda ash is concerned, it is what would
have been' produced Fromethe™ 50 per Cent: crop. As far as

bicarbonate of soda and concentrates, the actua

|_.
=
[ S

£
@
0}
L]

MR. MOORE: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion,)

MR. MOORE: . You speak'eof your" B 20, B, iplamtucests in
connection with your cost of production based upon a 50 per
cent dekehydrate crop. State generally what the nature of
the studies were that you made in arriving at the figure of
w106 ,444 .87 for soda ash bulk?

A, Cost studies from the dekahydrate inventory down to the
shipping expense; taking it step by step through the process.

Q. Where did you get the figures that you used in meking
those studies? A, rom the actual production costs of

138,

[E]
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4. wWould that same answer hold as to the soda ash burlap
bags? A. It would hold as to all of them, yes.

<. A moment ago you spoke of bicarbonate of soda’ and con-
centrates as being actual, and the soda ash as bein

«a. 48 to tonnage. If you will look there, you will seé
that the bicarbonate and concentrates changed very 1little; but
that is due to the flexibility of the fixed charges or
tons.

.« 90 as to all five items set forth there, including soda
ash and paper bags and bicarbonate of soda, and concentrates,
these are all studies based upon 1938 production costs?

A. Right.

.. «nd do you have schedules in your possession that show
how you arrived at those? A, T have.

MR, MOORE: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, MOORE: & . You have another column under this cost of
production based upon 50 per cent dekahydrate crop entitled
T"Royaelties." How were they arrived at?

A, By computing the actual amount of royalty which would
have accrued on that amount of tonnage, and we would become
liable for hed we shipped that amount of tonnage.

Q. That was based on what?
A. On our lease with the State,

2. In connection with your lease with the State, I believe

that you divided your reports into two tonnages: Cne, bicar-
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bonate of soda, and the other, other minerals, I believe you
gall=it . =i s thats correet:?

A. That 1s right,

,. 30 that in your report of actual royalties paid, you

]

would include under other minerals, soda ash bulk, soda ash

- -
—

g f £l
burlap bags, soda ash paper\bﬁxgg and concentrates? Sl (P

A. That is right. wand bicarbonate would be the sodium
bicarbonate.

Q. Would be a separate item? A, Right.

Q. With respect to overhead unabsorbed: What do those
figures represent? A. They represent the difference between
the actual overhead and the overheard absorbed into the manu-
facturing statement which was necessitated by inactive equip-
ment, and things of that type.

)., And from what source were the figures obtained for those

"J

¢

computations? A, Well, that is all through schedule
studies.
Q. But based upon figures that you had from the 1938 books?

A. 1938 book figures.
0. With respect to the cost of production based upon full
dekahydrate crop of 145,930 tons, which you have modified to
147,930 tons? £. Yes, that 1is correct,

. (Continuing) -- would your answers be the same as to the
F. O. B. plant costs, that you used the same studies and
derived the materiel from the s&me sources?

A. Exactly. The enswer is exactly the same.
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Q. Might I ask you this: Apparently if you divide the
F. U, B. plant cost of sode ash bulk under a 50 per cent deka-

-

hydrate crop - that is, the item of (106,444.87 by 9,377, you
would be able to get a unit cost of that particular item,
would you not? A Yeou scoulads

Q. YWould that unit cost be the same in connection with

full production? ite You mean as to dollars and cents?
@. Dollars and cents. AL00h s0oT — OfFecourser RoOb
3+« NO. A, Because --
. In other words, just as a matter of mathematics, if you

divide in the cese‘of full production the '$129,%25.98 by the

15,922 tons, you get a different figure from the one under the

[

20 per cent production? ARs burely Sgveosh
Y. Is 1t possible for you te explain without reference to

your schedule of studies as to what different application you
made of your actual book entries?

A0 In general, yes. Theimain result comestfinrem* the fact
that your fixed charges are always the same as to dollars and
cents; and there is a certain increase of efficiency with full
operation as against 50 per cent operation. That constitutes
thendiafference .

.+ But if you had not operated in 1938 with a full crop,

how is that you have figures that will enable you to determine

what your efficiency would have been for the full crop?

A. That is a matter of taking the actual figures, an -Spw‘
aes ‘
projecting them 4w a natter of judgment from known -- you hdve
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g certain known condition, and you have a certain assumed COIl—
dition.

Q. In making your assumption - in projecting the figures,
the actueal figures of 1938, to an estimate in the eventuality
of having full production, do you use any figures or experiences
prior to 1938% A. No, beceuse that was the first year
in which there was 50 per cent operation; and any cost figures
prior to that time would not be available.

). Then to ask 1t directly: You did not take into con-
sideration in any of the statements, figures, experiences and
accounting entries prior to the year 19287

A. No.

<. #nd with respect to the item of royalties and overhead
unabsorbed in connection with the full production, you made
your projections and assumptions in a similar manner?

A, In arsimilar ‘manner.

entries in

a
m
Q
Q
o
Iz
=
=
=

Q. But based upon actual costs an
the year 19387 A. That is right.
Then in your third schedule, you apparently have taken

the full production cost which appears in your last column under

a

"Full production cost,”" and have divided into that your --

A, fultdiplied.

L. (Continuing) -- tonnage. A. lMultiplied by the tonnage
of the 50 per cent tonnage.

. No. L beg your pardon. What [ mean is thi

10)]
]
I

A, ok, T.see,
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). You have under your second column --

”
e TLeSo

. sy 5 ¢ = b 1 el Sl
2. In yvour third schedule aniitem 8U577 o8 in Nconnecibil QW

scda ash bulk. AEYES,

Q. Now, bhabt: ig arrived at, is it not, by dividing
$136,567.24 by 15,9227 A Thab isisrdic by

§. and that same thing is true in connection with soda ash

urlap bags and soda ash paper bags?
RS Thet ds righits
the tonnage

=

5« Then the unit so derived is multiplied b

-
f-\‘

those items at 50 per cent --

due

g, Production. A, “That #s cighb
.. And your estimated cost of producing the tonnage at full
production cost® A, ‘Thet dis right.

0. And the difference between the sum total of those items

R

and the total estimated costs on a 50 per cent basis is your

!

estimated increased operating costst A, That is rigl

Q. Now, I notice that you don't have a unit with respect
to bicarbonate and concentrates. Why is that?

L. Because that -- you can pick them up directly. You
see, the tonnage never changes on them on any of the three
schedules.

There is & slight difference between the 50 per cent

and -- A, Nobt in the tonhage.
Q. And the 100 per cent. Oli, I beg your parden.
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s, It 1s & matter of tonnage. The tonnage don't cheange.
It merely changes a little bit as to the cost; and the cost can
be picked up directly from the statements.

¢, In those cases, the difference in cost is very slight?

A, Yes. You see here, the totel cost is ineluded here;
then you merely pick up the total cost here, for the purpose
of this, see (witness indicating). There is no point of going
through a computation when you can take a straight figure.

8. No, thet is quite: true. | Off the ‘mecords

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, HMOORE: Q. With Tespect ‘to witem,; IsbelievVe SHo 7, -
ORI E It Ng.. 87 S NoR s T'iéskipped. Nesii5a ayiou "See,

because --

Q. That was the $350.007? A, Yes. It was combined.
Q. With respect to this item No., 8, which is the item of
$63,875,00 in your claim, representing a reasonable profit

which plaintiff would have realized in the normsal and ususal
course of plaintiff's business in the sale of soda ash and
kindred merchandise, has that figure been changed?

A. Yes, under the caption of loss of profits on merchandise
not produced, $79,009.34.

. And with respect to that item, the same is true, that
you are basing that starting with the dekahydrate inventory
as you actually obtained it?

A. As far as the cost element 1s concerned, yes.

. Will you state generally the method of arriving at that

~
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figure: of $79,009.34?

A. By teking the loss tonnage

Jo Will vou elucidate that? You mean the difference betwes
74,965 and 147,9307% 4. To, by taking -- in this
particular case, the lost tonnage would only refer to tiae soda
ash tonnage. By taking the full kahydrate crop tonnage of

soda ash, from which we deducted the 50 per cent dekahydrate
crop of soda ash, gives a certain number of lost tons.

w, Do you have the figures of those?

Al Yes, In tonnage, 16,214 tons lost.

Q. Before we go any further, may I look at this just a
moment . sometimes by looking at the figures, I can --.

o NEEIEES

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, IMOORE: €. Referring back to your '‘schedule Noe. 7, you

have set forth certain tonnages of soda ash in three
groups: That is, bulk, burlap bags and paper bags,
would have been produced from the 50 per cent crop of
tons; end then there are some items set forth under e

100 per cent production of certain tonnages for those

o ey -
S\’}'_h.‘cr(;‘nbe

74,965

stimated

same items

and in your schedule No. 8, you have taken the difference betwe

the 100 per cent tonnage and the 350 per cent producti
case of each of the three items mentioned, and added
together to arrive at the figure of 16,214 tons lost,

correct? A. Yes, thet 1is right,

- e

Having gotten the figure of the lost tonnage,

on in the
them

is that

will you

e
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state how you arrived at the loss of profit on that tonnage?

A. By making studies of the sales to be derived from each

H

one of those tonnages.

.+ From each of the lost tonnages?

A, No, from easch possible production tonnage, deducting the
smaller from the greater, which gives you the sales loss.
In dollars and cents? A, In dollars and cents.

A

... Before you go any ft

(=

urther, will you state the basis of

ose studies generally?

ct
P

A. The basis of those studies are based on the 1938 sales.
Q. Actual sales? A, Based upon the actual sales

ves.

e

@+ But in the case of estimeted sales ‘on 50 per cenbt

0]
)

production, you again projected or made certain assumptlions:

A. Very little projection in that case, because we actually
sold more than that.

3. Sold more than the tonnage produced or estimated to be
produced from the 74,965 tons?

A, That is right.

. Is that a carry-over from other years?

A. No, that is to satisfy the reguirements of our trade.
We bought it from our competitors.

Q. All right. &nd in the case of estimated sales through
production, what sort of a study did you make?

A. That study is based also upon 1938 and as against sales -

probable ssles -- let me put it possible -- yes, possible and
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probable sales.,

.. Now, in connection with those possible and probable

seles, what contracts or orders did you teke into considera-
tion? A. Took into effect contracts and their --

and the consuming possibilities of those customers; and took
into consideration business which we probably could have gotten

had we gone after it; because we went after no business in

1938,.and did not get 1it.

w. In assuming that you could have gotten the business,
did you teke into consideration business you had done with
those same organizations in previous yearss

A. To a large extent, yes,

For how many years back did you go? ,m*?<
; = '/ 4 .7" v

A. Well, I started my studies -- I coveregr%y shudiless et @
1936,,1937 and 1938.

. I think there has been testimony to the effect that
after commencing the new process, you ran & pilot plant, and
then ran the plant on a 50 per cent basis; and finally in
January, of 1938, put it on a commercial basis. Was i%

production produced by your pilot plant and your 50 ton plant

as well as other production that you used in making those
studies? "A. No, it was based on the main plant.

Dy

In 1938 -- the only production in 1938 was from the finished

nlant.
Yes; but you said you took into consideration sales to

e

vour customers starting in 1936. Y e S
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Q. I'roin what source did the production come to you?

A, Well, it came from the old process, frem the pilot
plant to a certain extent, and purchasee from our competitors.

(. You made purchases from your competitors even in 1956
and 19377 A. No, in 1937 we did. I believe in 1936.
Yes, some in 1936; we bought ash from the Ilast to meet our

demand.

«. Do you have copies of the contracts available? Are
they in your coffices here®? b S 5
Q. And you took them into consideration? AV es,

. Did you heve any unfilled oxrders durin
took into consideration? A, That was taken into con-
sideration in 1938.

I mean, you did have some? A. Not so much

unfilled orders; but orders turned down by the sales department.

. HJow was that information supplied to yout
A. Given to me,
v. (Continuing) -- that an order had been turned down?
A. Given to me by the sales department.
@% Do. you have any reports in your Tilewin the.form of
letters or something of the sort?
A, In the form of a schedule, yes,
. Well, T mean the supporting data. Did the salesman
meke a report to you -- Ao He didn't —-

n. Well, did he Treport that a company had asked for a

certain amount of soda ash,"and I turned it down because we were
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not able to supply him" -- would he give you a sales memorandui

or letter, or what, to back that up*

Li e _-A..ro .

~ 4

), after you made your study based on your 1938 sales,

o

ha

()

[
)

plus your estimate of sales that you would otherwise nhav

J

el
L

hed you been able to operate on Full production, what steps did

you take to then determine the loss on these lost sales?
L. Determined the sales in each case: deducted the 50 per
cent sales from the 100 per cent, which gave me the total seles
in dollars and cents lost.
. In arriving at the dollar and cents value of these sales,
how did you arrive at the sales price which you took into

consideration? A, Your sales price wasiwery wellstixed «a
6+ Does the market very according to the guality of product

A, Oh, you are getting beyond my information.

0. If I understand you correctly, you made certain sales,
actual sales, during 1938 of the main product.

&, That .is” right.
Q. Now, in getting the particular sales price for it at so
much per ton, that would depend, would it not upon the particu-
lar purity and quality of that product?

A. It would have to meet the satisfaction of the customer.
I can answer it in that way.

Q. Let me put it to you another way, then: It reoussol d

a given quantity of soda ash in bulk -- st VRS
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Q. In 1988, and you received for that a sales price of so
much per ton: Did you use that seame sales price as to the
estimated tonnage you would have sold had your capacity not
been reduced? A. Yes, that and the established price in
1938.

.« Yes, but I mean you assumed the gquality of the product
would be the seme* 4. Well, we had definite
control of that in the operations of the plant, as far as I kKnowv

MR, MOORE: Clitai i aEielclidl

(Unreported discussion.,)

MR, MOORX: In order to be sure that our understanding is
the same as yours on this schedule 8, may I review it very

AL

briefly: You arrived at a figure of tons lost, to-wit,
16,214 tons, as we have already gone over?
Li e YCSI

=

3 .0And then you arrived at a sales price for each of three

case of the full

()

types of soda ash, by multiplying in th

dekahydrate crop the tonnage by the sales price which you

received during 1938, and which you said was pretty well

established? A. Yes. Hach customer was taken separately.
.. Then in connection with the three items of soda ash at

a 50 per cent dekahydrate crop, you multiplied the respective

tonnages by the same sales price per ton for each of those three

items? 4. Hach was based upon a different study,
however., There would be a few cents difference per ton in-
volved.
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$. In other words, would there be a slightly less sales

price per ton for the soda ash produced on t

]

1e 50 per cent

crop? A.. S1lightly less on Ghe Il

£

o

TEer - duf any
memory serves me right.

Q. That would be more logical®? i, Yes, surely]
you would have to go after the larger consuming customers &at
a lower price.

. Then the difference between your sales price of your

)

)
N

three soda ash products at full deka crop and the full sale

a
U

price of your 50 per cent deka crop would represent in dollars
and cents your estimated lost sales in dollars and cenbts?

AiCerrect,

Q. From which I note that you have deducted certain sales
discounts and allowances, Lre those estimated also?

A. Projected from the actusl 1938 figures in proportion.

. When you sey in proportion, you mean that you took the
sales discounts and allowances for a given amount of sales,
and took a percentage, and multiplied that by the estinmated
amount of lost sales? Ly YEEH,

Y. S0 that you noted lost sales of (239,187,037

A, That Heirient,

L. Then to get your cost of your lost sales, you have in
the case of each of the three items of soda ash taken that
unit at full production cost that you set forth in schedule 7
and multiplied it by the tons lost to arrive at the cost of

lost sales? A, Right.
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Q. Which in this instance is totaled {160,177.69%

A Cornechl

¢ And the difference between your ne£ lost sales and your
total cost of lost sales‘ié your: figure in. fess of pProlfits
upon merchandise not produced of 792,009.34. And as in the
ciase Jof “sichedule 7 invirespect Lo schedule 8, you do have
studies upon wnich you based these figures<

L. sbsolutely.

Of
A 51 S N

iR, MOORI: the record.

(Unreported discussion,)

MR, MOORE: Well, now, ‘there, are ‘two duesbions further
that I would like to ask you. I dont't know that.they are based

upon any of these schedules; but I believe you have already
stated that in '36 and '8% and '38 you did acquire & certain

tonnage of products from some of your campetitorst

AL Yes,
&. wWhich you resold? Aq aAnd from the East, yes.
Lo and from the Hast. Do you have figures avallable which

would show the total tonnage so purchased, and the price at

which you purchased it; and then any comparative figu

—

res show-
ing what you resold the same product for:

MR, FERGUSON: I am going ©o object to any testimony in
that regard as not affecting the issues here, save one qQuestion
to demonstrabte sales sbility. Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)

(Record read by reporter. )
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VR, FERGUSON: I am going to object to that guestion,

because I do not think you are entitled to the sales price;
o A 7

)

but you can inquire as to whether that was included in the

g e

stimate.

(4]

(o5
=]
=
o
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O
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G
@
o
o
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e
=
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B, MOORI: QI will ask the auestion this wey, &as .
FTerguson suggests: In arriving at your figures and your cou-

.

putations of loss of profits, did you take into consideration

| 555}
I
m

purchases made from your competitors and from t
where of those products?
A. I took them into consideration as far as the tonnage
Wes concerned. As far as . any profit derived from them, no.
Q. 4nd your records that you have made up would show that
tonnage ? A Thgtiiistrighd. Basically
4. With respect to the actual sales during 1938, do you
have the Tigures available of actual costs per ton ol producing
the products sold end the actual sales
A. Well, I based my figures of eost upon them, yes, I have.
Both of them are - well, part and parcel of the studies.
%,. Would you be able to state with respect to the aetual
seles made and sctuel operating costs during 1938, whether you
mede a profit or a loss?
MR, FERGUSON: No, I object to: that. ' Thab is incompeteut,
irrelevent and immaterial, and outside the issues of the case.
MR, MOORE: Off the record.

(Unreported discussion.)
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with the 74,965 tons of dekahydrate

and winter months of 1937 --

MR, FPERGUSON: Walt a minute. I am going to object TO
that, because we did not produce any 74,000 tons.

MR, PEDDER: Je produced a lesser Tigure than that.

MR, MOORI:: I will rephrese tihe question.

MR, FERGUSCN: I did not want you to go on needlessly here.

MR. NOORE: ). With respect to dekahydrate actually
produced in the cold fall and winter months of 1937 and actually
reduced to soda ash during the year 1938 and actually sold on
the market, did you meke a profit or & loss?

MR, FERGUSCN: Are you divoreing that from any other
element of carrying the overhead charges, or anything else,

or
(Unreported discussion.
A. Well, at the present time, I
MR

+IOCRE Qi

i mef? Noes ok

di o

IR, MOORE: Qff the record.
(Unreported discussion.)

MR, WCORI: It is Tfive minutes
few more questions of ir. Eckland.
over during the noon hour, and tak
not think we will be much longer.
Yes.

MR, FERGUSOL:

You have made no computation along that

question: In connection

produced in the cold fall

are you including those in the gquestion?

don't know.

haven't, no,

to twelve.
I would like to think it
an ad journment now. I do

Shell we adjourn until 22

HART & HART
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(Thereupon an adjournment wes teken until 2:00 P. .,
Wednesday, October 4th, 1939, and by consent of counsel to

resumed et the same place.)

19
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toom 514 Finencial Center Building, San Francisco, Calif.,
Wednesday, October 4th, 1939, 2:00 P, I,

(Pursuant to the foregoing ad journment, depositions in the
gbove-ent itled cause were resumed, there being the same appear-
ances as heretofore indicated.)

(Unreported discussion.)

MR, LOCRE: You might put down for the record, them, it is
tipulated that lir. Pedder will supply the quantity of brine
pumped during the fall and winter months of 1937.

iR, FERGUSCN: With the understanding that we have that
figure, which we ‘believe we have.

MR, IMOORE: Yes; and secondly, I wonder if we might put in

in the form of a stipulation our previous discussion that
Appendix "A"™ ., which is a photostatic copy of the State map of
Owens Lake, to the effect that the original as marked by the
witness G. A. Xeep, might be kept in the possession of the
defendants until the time of the trial, and might be introduced
at that time as part of the deposition as though it had been
included therein¥

MR, FERGUSON: Provided the deposition is admissible, so
stipulated.

MR, MOORE: And in thet connection, werwill have our

engineers draw an exact duplicate as near as possible, and

send it to you for your files.
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MR.

FPERGUSCL That is my understanding

e yese

(Ffurther unreported discussion.)

MR.

that you

IOORE

will

Then the only other stipulation we have is

furnish us with a statement of the products

purcheased during the year 1938 to meet your seles requirements,

the pric

MR

e at wnich it was purchased, and the sale price.

PHRGUSON ; We will give you the total purchase price

and the total sales price, indicating the profit.

MR. MOORI: And the total tonnage.

MR, FERGUSCN: Aand the total tonnage.

MR, MOORE: But you do not care to break it down into the
different products?

LR, FFERGUSON: For the purpose of the schedule, we prefer
not to break it down; but we have no objection to Mr. Bailey
checking our books to ascertain that our schedules are right.
In other words, we also consider the prices at which we pur-

chased and the

trade se

Ii&-{ e

understanding.

cret.

MICORE;

persons from whom we purchased something of a
You understend that.

A11 right. That is satisfactory, with theat

MR, FERGUSON: We will give sufficient information to you

ofi ‘the profits,

VR,

MOCRH ¢

if any, we made from that auxiliary operation.

Off the record.

(Unreported discussion. )

MR. MOORE: That is ull that T have to ash

@M%/// /7-37
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Stanley Pedder:

Page
14
19
L
19

A
48
&9

49
49

49
51
52
52
53

The following corrections were made in the deposition of

Line

3
2
15
16

24
14

2
20

WMo WU

2
25
8 &

15
14

14 &
12
185
26
AL

155

Strike out "of the various forms of sulphate™,

Strike out "or as much as I was concerned."
ATter "the" add "receiver of the!. ?
Strike out "is still -- oh". 244 "was" after "who"
Strike out "yesmh,

Change "deevest" to "deeper™, E
Change "the" to "g!,

Add "on the Pacific Coast!" after "extent. ! %
Add "&" after "Potash",
Strike out "the', '
Change "low" to "lake",

Change "haven't" to '"have".

Change "and I couldn't estimate that® to "but L

couldn't estimate the height',

Change "to acquire' to "acquired".

Change '"precipitated" to "precipitates®. |
|
Change ""would have to pump out a vrecipitate as |
well as a fluid of some other liguid" to "have to
pump in such manner that after precipitation of
the dekahydrate the mother liquor can be removed?i,
Strike out "the temperature of",

Change "dekahydrate free" to "dekahydrate more
freely".

Change "that" to "heat",
Strike out "for instance".
Change "low!" to '"lakef,

Strike out "the!.
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Page

55
57
58
59

Gree it e

Page
63
63
64

64

64
65
65
66
67
67
67
677
68
68
68
68
68

Line
25
IE)

22

The following
Keep:

23
26
19

2.5

e5
12
13
21l
115
15
16
2l

2

Add "no' after "had'!,
Strike out second "tell us".
Strike out "bhutt

Strike out "for a water softener®.

corrections were made in the deposition of

Change "pocket pyrites" to "pacos pyrite".
Change "pocket" to '"pacos".
Strike out "huge".

change "extraction of soda, and
manuf

Change "sodium" to "trisodium",

Change "They" to "Others".
Change . "Dupont" to "Grasselli",

Strike out "these"

Change '"density" to "content".

Change '"cake" to "mud'.

Change "filled" to "drained".

Add "the selt layer" after "through',
Change "foot" to '"thousand feet'.
Change semicolon to period; strike out "andw,
Change "flooded over" to "flowed thru.

Change "got through settling" to "settled".

Strike out ''where it." Change "salt" to "salt
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70-71
70~71

Line

CO\N PO

e
16
25

15
26

15,

13

18
20

23
22

|
! e | O
Change "vats" to "vat"; strike out "they werei
Change "crystalline!" to "crystallization®. g
!
|
|
i

Change "they were" to "it was".
Change"D0s" to "COo".

Change "carbonate" to "bicarbonate',

Add "only washing the cake on the filter'.
Add comment: "Question not clear.®

Change "those" to "wastel.

=

Strilke out™ tereaital

Add "salable" after "particular!.
Change "soda" to "brinel.

! "dry!!Sto "driye ioutl:
Change "into" to "from the"; strike out comma.|
Strike out Mbecause®.

Change "some" to '"the same". Strike out comma.
Add "water" after "any".

Change "were!'" to "was". "Cakes" to "cake!.
Change '"continuous" to "continued®,. i
Strike out "We had not been operating".

Change "convert" to 'convey".

Add "after the carbonating plant was shut down
Change "at the plant" to "on the lake",

Change "available originally!" to "precipitated|
artificially".

Strike "in the"; chenge"originally" to "artifiei
Strike out "now". S N ificially

=

Strike out ",and it".

Add "when" after first "that". Change "through
that" to '"over the surface".
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192-D

17
78
78
78
85

87

89
89
90

90

9.2

98

102
105
106
107
108
108

=
H-
B
@

o~
&
L5

18
22

24
10
L
32

o™

s
e

26

18 & 19
20
25
22
26
19

25

Change "runs" to "remains'",.
Strike out "and to drive it right back.”
Change ''but" to "and".

Add "1937" after "of'"; strike out "it must
have been 1936."

Add "wells" after 'our".
Change "surface" to "top".
Strike out "above" and "why".
Strike out "it".

Witness has put in "Question understood"
16 to 17" instead of "16 to 8¢
Change "don't" to "doubt",

Witness has put in "understood '"carbonate"
instead of "bicarbonate®.

Change "vonert!" to '"convert®.
Strike out ‘"to".

Witness has added "something omitted" after
I imelts

Change "the' to "The"; add "were not destroye
or removed in the dense ash furnaces.!

Strike out "during the'.
Strike out "when you'l,.
Change "16" to "17".
Change "upon" to "from"

Change "1936" to "193%5"

" 1] tn 1

1 1" 1 1

Strike out "8 oxrf.

G
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109
109

114
114
105
116
118

118

1L3LS)
121
121

3822
127
128

130
130
130

=
i
3
@

R

~O

Tl
12

13

3 & 4
26
23
11

12

7
1O8&

22

17
19
20

45

Change "Rudgood™ to "Redwood™.

Change "magnesia, oxide and" to "magnesia
oxlde, "a™,

Change "deposits" to "erystals!.
Add "small" after "“a".

Change "waters' crystals'" to "water of
crystallization",

Strike balance of line after the semicolon.

Add "with suitable" after "interior"; add "s"
to "arrangement'; strike out "such as"; add
"dekahydratel' after "handling'; strike out
et cmand i,

Change "in" to "In"; change "previous" to
"previously made',

Change '"crystals" to "ecrystallization®
Change comma to period.

Strikenall sof fline -1

Change "as well as --" to '"as well.,"
Change "the next change" to "with changes",.

Change "and the heavy calciners" to "as
rotary calciner',

Change "that" to ''vag',.
Change "a 100 ton and 25 ton" to "125 tons",

Add "which'" after "heaters"; strike out bal-
ance of line 10 and "two!" in line 11,

‘Change "day; so we'" to "day. Wel.

Change ‘'“"produced” to "purchased".

Change "that were evaporating"” to "resulting
from evaporation'.

Change ''spray'" to '"solar®
Add "solar evaporated" after "that!.

Change "in" to "into"; period after "vatgt

-—
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10
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12

13

15
18
57
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19
20
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Page Line
130 20
130 21
130 23
130 24
123 24d; 5
134 2
134 5
157 12
139 14
155)) 1)
145 19& 20
146 1.
146 4
148 3
148 4
148 255
149 22
149 23 & 24
149 25

and strike out balance of line 20.

Make it read "We did that', and strike out
balanee of line 21

Change "on" to "from".

Change February" to "October'.

Period«at end«of lines 2 GG nepsy
Change "and" to "when"; strike out comma.
Change "liquor discarded™ to "liquor was
discarded from"; change "so that'" to "of".

Change 'calciner" to "centrifugals"; and
teloasett St lclosed! .

Change ''and we had just dropped" to '"'so w
just stopped".

Change "and operated these wells" to "operat-

ing on these new wells,"
Put period after "agitation'. Strike out
balance of line 19 and 20. Add "Agitation™
at end of line 20.

rikeout i TSttt
Strike out !'and"
Add "brine®" after "pump'.

Change "to" to "heating' ' it"; change "of" to
liin" -

Change "chemistry" to "action'

Change "26 to 28" to "24 to 26"; change "very

hot" to 'quite warm"
Strike out everything after "hand!.

Strike out "Yes™. Add "Brine reached 24°
to 269 only short time in August, 1937."
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192-G

The following corrections were made in the deposition of

Charles
Page
155
155
158
164
166
166
170
175
176
182

BEckland:

Line
T
21

20

2
12
20

Add comma after "sand'.
Change "prices" to "costs".

Change "department"to "shipment™".
Add "is" after "purchased®,
Change "charged™ to 'changed!.
Change "profit" to "processt,
Strike out second "of",

ge '"boxes'"to "bags®,

Change “"din" to Mash.

Add "in" after "eovered"; strike

out

Hinl['
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STATEREOR G}

COUNTY CF IN

INYO )
I,/iZZifZ%iszz; Z:?/(>éf%u% , 2 Notary Public

tne County

.

gualified to administer oaths, do hereb

of Inyo, otate of California, duly commi

the deposition of G. a. KEEP by registered mail

A5 N gs - T 2 e p £ o E i R
Ezdsenliudson, a Notary Public in and for the Cit

San Francisco, State of California, before whom

taken; that

: b s 36
7 Z.—/Qayé‘m @ : , 1939, and tha

tion ‘was submitted to the said witness for resdi

ticulars desired and such corrections bein,

was by him

Ting, and being by him read

A o warsy -9 v Yy 3 3 P e 1o a
thie witness, G, A. KRLEP, gpheared be

and correctited

£
(]

ealna

that

lary D.

v and

ng
=)

subsceribed in my presence; and that there

returned said deposition by registered mail to t

NESS WHERECF, I have hereunto set my ha

H

7«-—~,—

count

of

s
n the

fa W }

affixed

T959%

. JQMARY T PUBLIE
Eneans RO Lle County of
of California.

My Commission Expires Ssplomber 2, 1941
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1 OF CALIFORNIA, )
= ‘ : ' ) Ses,
2| City and County of San Francisco. )
3 I, MARY D. F, HUDSON, a Notary Public in and for the C1ty
) b J
4| end County of San Francisco, State of California, do hereby
~ B ) A
5 eertity.
8 That the witnesses in the foregoing depositions named,
7| STANLEY PEDDER, G. A. KEEP and CHARLES HCKLAND, were by me dul
8 sworn to testify the truth, the whole truth, end nothing but the
g| truth, in the within-entitled cause; that said depositions were
10| teken at the times and place therein named; that the testimony
11| of sald witnesses was taken down in shorthand by HAROLD H. HART,
12| & competent ofriciel shorthend reporter and a disinterested
13| Person, and by him thereafter to longhend typewriting,
14| under my supervision, and wi ted, the testimeny of said
15| STANLEY PEDDIR and CHARLES ECILAND was carefully read by, or to,
18 the sald STANIEY PEDDER and CHARLES ECKLaAWD, and, being correctefi
17 by them in every particular they desired, was by said STANLEY
18 DDER and CH IS ECKLAND thereafter duly subscribed.
19 Aand I further certify that I am not of counsel or attorne;
20 for either of the parties to said deposition, nor in any way
21 interested in the outcome of the cause named in said caption.
TITNESS: WHEREOE , I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my.seal. of offiee, this
Aéé( day of e oo ~ , one
thousand nine hundred and thirty-nine.
wg/@ J/Qé@g@m‘
K'J..;Ll{-w PUBLIC \
In and fpr the City and County of San 2,
Frencisco, State of California.
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